
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

The Economy, Housing and the Arts 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Agenda 

 

Tuesday 9 November 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

This is being held as an informal remote meeting 
 

You can watch live on YouTube: https://youtu.be/jonF2_FRXYA 

 
 
 
 
 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rory Vaughan (Chair) 
Councillor Daryl Brown 
Councillor Ann Rosenberg 
Councillor Helen Rowbottom 
 

Councillor Adronie Alford 

 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672945 
 E-mail: charles.francis@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 
 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy 
 

Date Issued: 01 November 2021 

https://youtu.be/jonF2_FRXYA


 

  

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

The Economy, Housing and the Arts 
Policy and Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

9 November 2021 
 
Item  Pages 

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
  
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
  
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES  4 - 13 

 To note the minutes of the previous meeting.  
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 This meeting is being held remotely on Zoom and will be live streamed 
to YouTube: https://youtu.be/jonF2_FRXYA 
 
If you would like to ask a question at the meeting about any of the items 
on the agenda please send your question to governance@lbhf.gov.uk 
by 12 noon on Friday, 5 November. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://youtu.be/jonF2_FRXYA


 

  

5.   RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT UPDATE  14 - 20 

 This report provides an update on the range of environmental 
improvement projects that the council’s Resident Involvement Team in 
the Economy Department has undertaken with the resident-led 
Investment Group and showcases projects that deliver direct benefits to 
our communities.  
 
It also provides an update on the wider involvement structure in housing 
and how H&F as a whole is coming together to develop a community 
engagement strategy to support the communities we serve. 
 

 

6.   UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL’S DELIVERY OF AFFORDABLE HOMES  21 - 32 

 This report provides an update on the Council’s delivery of affordable 
homes and its commitment made in the Building Homes and 
Communities Strategy in July 2019 to build 1,800 homes over the next 
10 years. 
 
It also outlines how the development programme embeds coproduction 
with local residents at the heart of development activities, as well as 
how the development team are playing their part in helping the Council 
achieve its ambitious net-zero carbon targets. 
 

 

7.   FIRE SAFETY HOUSING  33 - 59 

 As a landlord, H&F is the Responsible Person in law for managing fire 
safety of its 17,000 housing properties, of which just over 12,000 are 
tenanted households.  
 
This report provides an overview of the fire safety arrangements in 
place, on-going monitoring and reporting arrangements and planned 
capital fire safety works. 
 

 

8.   DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 Dates of future meetings: 

 25 January 2022 

 22 March 2022 

 



 
 

‘.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
The Economy, Housing and the Arts Policy 

and Accountability Committee 
Minutes 

 
Tuesday 20 July 2021 

 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rory Vaughan (Chair), Daryl Brown,  
Ann Rosenberg, Helen Rowbottom and Adronie Alford  
 
Other Councillors: Councillors Andrew Jones and Guy Vincent  
 
Karen Galey – (Assistant Director for the Economy), Nicki Burgess – (Business and 
Enterprise Manager, the Economy),  Sam Ridley – (Economic Development Officer 
High Streets and Markets),  Ed Shaylor – (Private Sector Housing Manager), 
Debbie Ricketts – (Private Housing Enforcement Manager), Valerie Simpson- 
(Strategic Lead for Environmental Health), Matthew Hooper (Chief Officer Safer 
Neighbourhoods & Regulatory Services) and Charles Francis (Committee Services) 
 
Representatives from different several local business networks  
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Lisa Homan. 
 
 

2. ROLL - CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2021 were noted. As this was an informal 
meeting, minutes will be formally agreed at the next meeting. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 
No public questions were received.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 
 

5. UPDATE ON THE CURRENT AND FUTURE PROVISION OF SUPPORT FOR 

LOCAL BUSINESSES DURING AND BEYOND THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

Karen Galey – (Assistant Director for the Economy) introduced the report, which 
provided an update on the range of activity that the council’s Business and 
Enterprise Team had undertaken to assist local businesses through further Covid-19 
restrictions since the last update to the Committee in November 2020. It also 
outlined the scope of planned business support initiatives until the end of March 
2022. 
 
The Chair thanked Karen Galey for the overview and invited Councillor Andrew 
Jones (Cabinet Member for the Economy) to address committee.  
 
Councillor Andrew Jones began by thanking Karen, her team and Councillor Guy 
Vincent for all their hard work during what had been one of the most challenging 
periods for many people in their careers and working lives. Councillor Andrew Jones 
explained that the Council had been very effective in distributing money and 
acquiring further funding from the government. The current phase of work now 
focused on building back better out of the recovery through the Industrial Strategy 
which had evolved to reflect the post-pandemic landscape. 
 
Commenting further, Councillor Andrew Jones highlighted that there had been a very 
uneven impact (from the pandemic) on different businesses and industries. As well 
as  a huge impact on the Arts, Cultural Industries and Hospitality Sector which the 
Council were acutely aware of. He explained that one of the Council’s aims was to 
rebuild and re-energise the Arts and Cultural offer which was to key to Hammersmith 
and Fulham’s place making. Further goals included developing the Industrial 
Strategy, the White City Innovation District and reimagining town centres. While it 
was acknowledged the pandemic was not over, the action to date demonstrated that 
the Council had effectively risen to the challenge, and had a coherent plan for 
supporting different businesses so they could emerge from the pandemic in a strong 
position. It was  noted that part of this centred on the money the Council had 
received so it could support businesses in the digital shift highlighted in the report. 
 
Closing his initial remarks, Councillor Andrew Jones highlighted there were  
opportunities for the borough. Given it had one of the highest proportions of 
residents who had shifted towards hybrid (home) working, and this local focus, which 
was good news for high streets and local businesses as it emerged from the 
pandemic. 
 
The Chair invited Guy Vincent, (Local Business Champion) to address the 
committee. Beginning on downbeat note, Councillor Guy Vincent explained that the 
Council had received several push backs in relation to grants, as these were not 
always issued in a coherent way. The implications of this meant that funding could 
not always be allocated to all the businesses the Council wished to provide it to. And 
in some exceptional cases, there were still some  businesses which had not 
benefitted from any grant money. Councillor Guy Vincent highlighted that the 
Business Grants Team, under Jamie Mullins, had been working extremely hard to 
release all the grant funding despite these challenges.  
 

Page 5



 
 

Councillor Guy Vincent explained that the pandemic was far from over from an 
economic perspective. It was noted that a considerable number of smaller 
businesses had been burdened with debt, either through rents, VAT, corporation tax 
and the deferment of over debts or loans. Therefore, one of the key activities was 
providing advice and guidance to businesses either directly or through business 
advice agencies. 
 
On a positive note, Councillor Guy Vincent provided a summary of some of the 
improvements which were in the pipeline, such as the Hammersmith BID for the King 
Street renewal, Ikea, as well as the new Town Hall and their cumulative regenerative 
effects. It was noted North End Road would benefit from the Fulham BID, and a 
number of smaller high streets across the borough which were well represented at 
the Business Networks. Wandsworth Bridge Road was cited as an example of 
innovation and development which had won seed money from the Mayor of London 
and the potential changes were highlighted. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent explained that the Business Network was in the process of 
being relaunched with a more strategic approach and he confirmed that businesses 
were being proactive in advising the Council what their specific needs were. 
 
The Chair invited Paul Kelly, Chief Helper from I Can Help Your Business, to share 
his experiences with Committee. He explained that having worked with many 
Boroughs over a number of  years; the London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham was one of the more supportive boroughs of small businesses within Greater 
London and had been proactive in assisting smaller businesses and start-ups. It was 
noted that the past 18 months had been difficult for smaller businesses, especially 
those which had missed out on funding streams which were primarily  non-rate 
paying businesses who had not be able to access the Self-Employment Income 
Support Scheme (SEIS) . In which case, Paul Kelly confirmed the Council had been 
able to assist some of these businesses with the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG)  
instead. 
 
Paul Kelly confirmed one of the services he provided to the Council was that he 
operated the business and support helpline which provided general business support 
within the borough. He explained that at the outset of the pandemic every borough 
had an issue with reaching out to its community, and not enough businesses knew 
what support was available to them. However, since then, a significant amount of 
work had been conducted by the Council’s Economic Development Team to improve 
outreach. He confirmed that looking through the list of all the various projects the 
Council was supporting, or had planned, the Authority was one of the leading 
Councils in London for putting forward a wide range of support options for 
businesses. 
 
The Chair welcomed the positive feedback, as well as confirmation of how the 
Economic Development Team had reacted throughout the period. The Chair invited 
Patricia Bench, Hammersmith BID, to address committee. 
 
Patricia Bench explained that repeated lock downs had affected Hammersmith town 
centre and particularly the office sectors. She confirmed that Hammersmith Bid 
intended to contact serviced offices in the next few days to see whether the lifting of 

Page 6



 
 

restrictions on 19 July 2021 had improved the situation or not. In her view, there had 
been an uplift in the number of office workers, but one of BIDs greatest challenges 
was improving office and retail footfall in Hammersmith. To achieve this, the BID had 
embarked on a public realm vision (in partnership with Rogers Stirk Harbour) which 
sought to develop and energise the high street.  
 
The Committee noted that the summer cultural programme was progressing and the 
screen outside 245 King Street had been used to great effect, showing matches 
throughout the Wimbledon tournament. A film night was scheduled for 21 July 2021 
which was already over-subscribed, along with future coverage of the Olympics and 
Para-Olympics. This demonstrated there was an appetite for residents to attend 
outside events which were managed and where they felt safe. 
 
The Shop Local, Shop Safe campaign was ongoing and a Pub Watch had been 
conducted before restrictions eased on 19 July 2021. Patricia Bench confirmed BID 
was providing monthly Dr Bike sessions and further work was being conducted on 
the 15-Minute High Street initiative. Tempering this, Patricia Bench referenced how 
the recent flooding had impacted on businesses, including Kings Mall, and several 
hospitality venues which had lost food stocks. Concluding her remarks, Patricia 
Bench confirmed that the BID had been working successfully with the Business 
Development Team and Councillor Guy Vincent  to support the various Business 
Networks. 
 
Councillor Adronie Alford asked officers  to provide further details on the proposed e-
commence platform, including how it would work, its security and administration. In 
response, Nicki Burgess (Business and Enterprise Manager), explained the virtual 
high street would be procured from an established e-supplier which would enable 
residents to source goods from local shops. It was noted the supplier would be 
responsible for ensuring transactions were safe and secure (to prevent scamming) 
and the Business Development Team would be conducting a comprehensive 
marketing campaign with businesses and residents. The intention was for each 
business to have its own personal shop page and for there to be as many 
businesses as possible to ensure it was successful. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent confirmed the Business Networks supported the virtual high 
street concept but had already underlined it was essential there was a strong 
marketing plan to underpin its success. Councillor Adronie Alford expressed concern 
at how recently established businesses, such a start-ups, could demonstrate their 
authenticity when they might struggle to provide the requisite information (history) to 
join the e-commerce platform. In response, Nicki Burgess confirmed a 
comprehensive vetting process would be undertaken by all participants in the 
platform and it was anticipated that most of these would also be bricks and mortar 
businesses.  
 
Councillor Helen Rowbottom asked if there was scope to expand the Business 
Advice Clinics offer and whether the Council had a good impression of what office 
space utilisation looked like across the borough. In response, Karen Galey confirmed 
that one of the objectives of the Industrial Strategy was to source as much affordable 
work- space as possible (such as the Scale Space at White City). However, due to 
the high proportion of home working across the borough, it was difficult to gauge 

Page 7



 
 

current office- space requirements but this was being closely monitored. Making a 
supplementary point, Councillor Helen Rowbottom remarked it would be interesting 
to see if anticipating building developments (office space) went ahead given the 
current climate and what the wider ramifications (rent generation and business 
bounce-back) for the borough might be. Karen Galey confirmed Hammersmith and 
Fulham was well placed to benefit from the migration of central London businesses 
westwards. 
 
Councillor Andrew Jones provided an overview of land development within the 
borough and confirmed there was demand for more affordable office space than 
could currently be met. Looking at the soft data and pipeline of planning applications, 
he noted that developers were looking at the nature of office buildings and 
propensity for hybrid working but the overall landscape had changed since 2019. 
Paul Kelly highlighted the use of Meanwhile Space and how containerisation 
remained an attractive option to smaller businesses. In turn, it was noted that box 
city environments could be used as a springboard to migrate some businesses 
towards fixed term, more permanent office spaces and that the demand for 
temporary office space would remain high in the short to medium term. 
 
In relation to Business Advice Clinics, Nicki Burgess confirmed they had been 
extremely popular and forthcoming Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) funds would 
enable the Council to expand the offer. 
  
Councillor Ann Rosenberg noted the overall rise in online shopping but highlighted 
there was still a need to shop locally occasionally (such as DIY retailers) and asked 
how these shops would be marketed to residents without internet access. In 
response, Nicki Burgess confirmed that as part of the e-commerce platform 
developmental work, a significant amount of outreach and engagement work would 
be conducted by the Business Development Team with every single retailer on the 
high street. Karen Galey confirmed teams from across the Council (such as the 
Licensing Service) would be used to ensure the Council engaged with harder to 
reach businesses in a cohesive and effective way. Councillor Ann Rosenberg 
suggested it would be useful if a directory of local businesses was developed as part 
of the e-commerce project. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for a concise and informative report  and all the 
contributors for their work which had been highlighted during the discussions. The 
Chair confirmed the broadband improvement initiative had supported hybrid working 
and commended the work on the cultural recovery. The Chair asked officers to 
provide further details on the project to support over 50’s who had been made 
redundant over the pandemic period. In response, Karen Galey confirmed the 
Council had run several sessions (which had been over-subscribed) and a further 
session was planned in September. The Chair requested an update on how this was 
progressing later in the municipal year. 
 
Action: That a future update be provided on Support for Over 50’s employment 
 
The Chair asked officers to comment further on the high street and town centre 
development (mentioned in paragraph 3.3 in the report) and its importance in the 
post-COVID recovery of the borough. In response, Karen Galey confirmed this work 

Page 8



 
 

had not yet started, but the intention was to examine all the high streets and town 
centres in the borough through a combination of GLA and Mastercard transactional 
data to better understand what the current high street looked like. Officers would also 
speak to all the businesses and stakeholders and conduct a mapping exercise to 
build up a picture of what was currently happening. The Chair acknowledged it was a 
significant piece of work that the Committee would look forward to an update when 
this had progressed further. 
 
Action: That a future update be provided on High Street Development. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent confirmed there were twenty-six high streets in the borough 
and while there was an over-arching Industrial Strategy, the local aspects of the 
strategy had to be driven by local businesses. Councillor Andrew Jones remarked 
that  
 it was important small business were given the necessary support to enable then to 
respond to the new world, business was emerging into, and to enable them to 
continue to thrive. 
 
Closing the discussion, the Chair thanked everyone who had contributed to the work 
that had been done. The Committee were impressed with what had been achieved 
so far, especially the exciting work which was being done to enable small businesses 
to get on to digital platforms.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Committee noted and commented on the report. 
 
 
 

6. IMPROVING PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING THROUGH DISCRETIONARY 

PROPERTY LICENSING 

Ed Shaylor – (Private Sector Housing Manager) introduced the item which set out 
the steps taken to improve Private Sector Housing through discretionary property 
licensing. 
 
Ed Shaylor provided a short presentation and the following points were noted: 

 The private rented sector in H&F is the sixth highest in London and eighth 
highest in the country and accounts for 30% of all households (2011 census). 

 In 2017, the council introduced two discretionary property licensing schemes 
which expire in June 2022.   

 These schemes require landlords of privately rented houses/flats to be 
licensed, as follows: 

 Additional Licensing: Houses and Flats in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) for 
HMOs which are NOT Mandatory HMOs. To improve standards of property 
management and living conditions; and 

 Selective Licensing: All rented dwellings in 128 specified streets to reduce 
antisocial behaviour (ASB) where the levels of ASB, rubbish and noise 
problems from private renters was above average  
 

Page 9



 
 

Key points: 
• Public consultation to gather opinions about re-designating both schemes 

from June 2022 for a further 5 years. 
• Can only include 20% of the borough’s private rented addresses in the 

licensing scheme, without secretary of state approval.   
• HMO licensing Borough wide will ensure all areas of the Borough are properly 

supported by the private sector housing team.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reasons for Proposal of new licensing Scheme: 
1. Survey of private renting tenants in the borough from December to February 

2021: Showed significant minorities of tenants who were dissatisfied with their 
landlords and / or stated deficiencies in safety or amenity standards in their 
rented property.  

2. Preliminary finding from the current consultation: Privately renting tenants 
have a high level of support for licensing schemes (around 80%).  

3. Interventions: Issues relating to antisocial behaviour, noise nuisance, poor 
waste management and public health nuisance, are easier to address if 
specific streets are designated. Dedicated resource can be focussed on 
targeted enforcement interventions in those areas. 

4. Housing standards: Inspections have uncovered significant problems which 
can be improved through licensing conditions, e.g. Lack of fire doors or fire 
detection systems; undersized kitchen for the number of occupiers; 
Overcrowding; bedroom too small.  
Leasehold ownership: Flats formerly owned by the Council altered internally 
are sometimes unsuitable for multiple occupancy in terms of space, amenities 
and pressure on services and utilities 
 
Proposals for June 2022 to June 2027 scheme 

a) Continue discretionary licensing schemes but substantially reduce the number 
of streets in the Selective Licensing scheme from 128 to 23. 

b) Focus on busy roads, flats above shops, and roads with a significant private 
rented sector: 4 streets in W6; 4 streets in W14; 9 streets in W12; 5 streets in 
SW6; and 1 street in NW10. 

c) New scheme will have the same number of addresses as the old scheme, just 
fewer roads as the roads are larger.  

d)  Proposal to prohibit multiple occupation use of leasehold flats where the 
council is the freeholder - pressure on block infrastructure and nuisance to 
neighbours 
 

Councillor Helen Rowbottom thanked Ed Shaylor for the presentation and 
commented that the discretionary property licensing scheme was a welcome 
initiative. She asked if more details could be provided on how the scheme impacted 
on tenants, especially those tenants whose current living conditions breached the 
bare minimum threshold set by the scheme. In response, Ed Shaylor acknowledged 

Page 10



 
 

the scheme was a balancing act to try and keep accommodation as affordable as 
possible without eroding standards to such a degree, that people were renting sub-
standard accommodation. He confirmed the scheme did allow circumstances where 
all the rooms in a house or flat could be used as bedrooms, however the minimum 
standard of a 10m squared room was introduced.  
 
Ed Shaylor confirmed if ancillary accommodation was available for use, such as a 
communal living room or kitchen, this standard was adjusted to 6.5m squared which 
was the government minimum standard. Ed Shaylor acknowledged that if landlords 
had undertaken internal modifications to their properties in good faith, it would then 
be very difficult to ask them to undo this work. 
 
Asking a follow-up question, Councillor Helen Rowbottom asked about the vision of 
the scheme in terms of who could live where and under what conditions. In 
response, Ed Shaylor commented it was an aspiration for rents to decrease and to 
maintain standards. Ed Shaylor explained that Licensing had other advantages 
besides increasing the quality of the conditions of the accommodation. These 
included making it easier to identify rogue landlords, so by publicising the Council’s 
amenity standards and conditions, landlords knew what these were when they 
applied for a license and so by a process of elimination, the Council could deduce 
which properties did not have a valid licence. 
 
Councillor Helen Rowbottom enquired if there was a mechanism for tenants to 
contact the Council, if for example, they did not have a valid gas safety certificate. Ed 
Shaylor explained any resident could email phs@lbhf.gov.uk or use the Council’s  
Private Sector Housing pages to access further contact details. Ed Shaylor 
confirmed that in those circumstances were remedial action was required, the 
Council would provide landlords with a notice period to make good the repairs / 
issues which required attention. 
 
Councillor Adronie Alford asked for further clarification about how the selective 
licensing scheme worked. In response, Ed Shaylor explained that the Council had 
two separate schemes. Selective licensing which was proposed to be on 23 main 
roads in the borough which was for any flat or house which was rented to a tenant. 
And houses or flats in multiple occupation (3 unrelated people sharing a property) 
which the Council proposed to licence across the whole borough. Ed Shaylor 
confirmed that estimates from 2017 had suggested there were about 4100 of each 
type of property in the borough (selective and HMO). Currently, the Private Rented 
Sector Team has licensed 3,000 of each type so are working on finding the 
remaining 2200 or so properties. 
  
According to the ten-year old census, the rented sector within Hammersmith and 
Fulham numbered about 27,000 properties and this estimate would be revised by the 
new census data when it arrived. Ed Shaylor reported that over the next 5 years from 
June 2022, the Private Rented Sector Team aimed to process 5,000 properties in 
the new Selective Licensing scheme and 4,000 in the Additional HMO licensing 
scheme. 
 
Councillor Adronie Alford asked whether it was Council policy to not allow any form 
of sub-letting in council leasehold flats. Ed Shaylor confirmed that this only applied to 

Page 11

mailto:phs@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 

sub-letters to sharers of 3 or more and this sought to reduce the pressure on the 
infrastructure of some of the more aged properties within the borough. Details were 
provided on the different types of properties and the iterations this had on the 
licence. Ed Shaylor confirmed the exact details of those tenants which might qualify 
for a waiver was still under discussion, and the full details would be discussed at 
Cabinet in December 2021. 
 
Councillor Adronie Alford asked for further clarification about what constituted an 
under sized kitchen. In response, Ed Shaylor confirmed that this was 4m squared 
(for up to 4 people) with a further square metre added for each additional person 
after that. Asking a further question, Councillor Adronie Alford explained the 
paperwork to licence an individual property was complicated and, citing anecdotal 
evidence, mentioned that the assistance provided by the Council could have been 
better. Ed Shaylor confirmed that improvements had been made and now licensing 
officers took telephone and email addresses from people in difficulty and would 
follow up these accordingly. 
 
Councillor Adronie Alford asked for further details to be provided about the 
enforcement activities which had been undertaken against rogue landlords. In 
response, Ed Shaylor explained that each individual case was different, but it was in 
the public interest to concentrate resources on those landlords with multiple 
properties with significant degrees of non-compliance, so a clear deterrent was sent. 
 
The Chair endorsed the selective licensing scheme and asked for further clarification 
on the reduction of the number of streets where this would be applied and what this 
would mean in practice. Ed Shaylor confirmed the reduction was significant from 128 
streets to 23. The Council would be focusing on areas which had been problematic 
in the past so resources could be concentrated and used most effectively.  
 
The Chair asked how frequently the Council undertook surveys of tenants (in relation 
to waste collection and complaints arising from non-collection) and how the 
Department addressed these types of thematic issues. Ed Shaylor confirmed that 
consultation feedback was not particularly strong, and it was often complaints data or 
member casework that was used to inform issues with landlords. He explained 
private dwellings were one of the most highly regulated areas, in terms of public 
health and housing regulations, so there were a significant number of powers the 
Council could use. Where the Licensing scheme was helpful, was that it enabled the 
Private Rented Sector Housing Team to join up resources with law enforcement, 
planning enforcement and street cleansing to target and tackle problem areas as 
specific projects. It also allowed the Private Rented Sector Team to, through a 
process of elimination, uncover those landlords which had not applied for licences.  
 
Summing up the discussions, the Chair thanked Ed Shaylor and his team for all the 
work which had been done and confirmed the Committee looked forward to 
reviewing the final proposals when they were finalised in December 2021. 
 
Action: That the Committee review and comment on the Cabinet report 
 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 12



 
 

 
That the Committee reviewed and commented on the report. 
 
 
 

7. DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

The date of the next meeting was agreed as Tuesday 9 November 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting started: 
 
6.30 pm 

Meeting ended: 8.18 pm 
 

Chair   

 
 

Contact officer: Charles Francis 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672945 
 E-mail: charles.francis@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 13



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 
 
Report to: The Economy, Housing, and the Arts Policy and Accountability             
Committee 
 
Date: 9 November 2021 
 
Subject: Resident Involvement Update  
 
Report of: Daniel Miller, Head of Community Engagement /Resident Involvement & 
Service Improvement Manager 
 
Responsible Director: Jonathan Pickstone, Strategic Director for the Economy 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
This report serves to update the Committee on the range of environmental 
improvement projects that the council’s Resident Involvement Team in the Economy 
Department has undertaken with the resident-led Investment Group and showcases 
projects that deliver direct benefits to our communities.  
 
This report also provides an update on the wider involvement structure in housing 
and how H&F as a whole is coming together to develop a community engagement 
strategy to support the communities we serve. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Committee both note and comment on the report. 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 
  
 
H&F Priorities  
 
Please state how the subject of the report relates to our priorities – delete those 
priorities which are not appropriate. 
 

H&F Priorities  How this report aligns to the H&F Priorities  

Building shared prosperity All our improvement projects are based on the 
concept of co-production and joint development, 
providing numerous opportunities for residents 
to get involved and build new skills. We work 
with contractors who provide apprenticeships 
and volunteering opportunities. All our projects 
see beneficial local environmental regeneration 
on parts of our estates, adding to our shared 
prosperity. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



Doing things with residents, not 
to them 

The environmental improvement projects are 
resident-led, where co-production ensuring a 
strong voice in conception and development 
from start to finish. This includes everything from 
the initial bid or proposal, through to site visits, 
making decisions with contractors and the 
installation of elements.  

Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient  

The allocation of funding for projects is awarded 
through a rigorous approach of resident scrutiny 
to ensure the most cost-effective and 
sustainable projects are being delivered. We 
aim for our projects to have self-sustaining and 
long-term elements to ensure a maximum return 
potential.  

Taking pride in H&F The pandemic has highlighted the need for high 
quality public spaces and these have become of 
increased value to our communities. These 
environmental initiatives are centred around the 
community spaces on our estates, and the 
continued safety, health and well-being of our 
residents to live in more sustainable and 
greener spaces. 

 
 
 

1.  Introduction 
 

1.1. The Resident Involvement Team works collaboratively with residents to 
deliver environmental improvements on council housing estates across the 
borough. Improvements range from playgrounds, community growing 
gardens, multi-use games areas, secure bike storage, waste and recycling 
enclosures, planting and biodiversity projects, and surface urban drainage 
(SuDS) projects. 
 

1.2. All improvements relate to communal housing land on our estates, at 
sheltered housing schemes and purpose-built blocks.  

 
1.3. In the last two years, over £500,000 has been invested in environmental 

improvement projects. We’re particularly proud that we’ve been able to 
continue to work with and invest in our communities during the challenges 
that the pandemic has presented.  
 

1.4. Bids are resident-led with a focus on improving:  

 Biodiversity 

 Sustainability  

 Community safety and community development  

 What component of a bid can be funded?  

 Estate/block historic investment  

 Project life expectancy. 

Page 15



 
1.5. We place a strong focus on projects being sustainable and cost-effective 

and we strive to deliver the maximum capital benefits in the final project. 
 

1.6. We work with and consult with the community as the project evolves and 
ensure that the improvements meet the aspirations of residents. During 
the pandemic this has involved letters to all households, consultations 
(online and postal), online meetings and site visits. 

 
1.7. There are two main funding streams for our environmental improvement 

projects – the Neighbourhood Improvement Projects (NIP) and the Place 
Environmental Rejuvenation Programme (PERP). Further information on 
both funds is set out below.  

 
2. Overview & Outcomes 

 
2.1. Neighbourhood Improvement Projects (NIP) 

 Neighbourhood improvement projects are for works to community 
spaces on council housing land to improve the environment of the 
estate, block, or sheltered housing scheme for all residents.  

 Residents can bid for a wide range of improvement works where 
the expenditure results in buying, building or improving fixed assets 
up to the value of £25,000 per bid. 

 The fund cannot be used for maintenance, replacement or repairs, 
for improvement to individual properties, or for wages or running 
costs. 

 All council housing residents can apply either through their Tenants 
and Residents Association (TRA) or by a smaller group of residents 
acting on behalf of their block, street, or sheltered housing scheme. 

 Where there is no active representation, the relevant housing officer 
can submit a bid. In all cases, evidence of consultation and support 
for the proposal needs to be provided. 

 Funding applications can be made throughout the year. 
 

2.2. Completed NIP projects include: 
 

 Aspen Gardens – new seating in communal garden 

 Clem Attlee – secure bike storage 

 Bayonne estate – new playgrounds 

 Field Road (Muscal House) - secure bike storage and planters 

 Flora Gardens – planting, seating and railings 

 Lugard House - secure bike storage 

 Lytton Estate - new playground 

 St Peters Terrace – planters and seating. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



2.3. NIP projects that are underway include: 
 

 Ashchurch Court – community growing garden, seating, railings and 
planters 

 Clem Attlee – bulk storage unit improvements, including the 
installation of a green wall 

 Linacre Court- new waste and recycling facilities along with a new 
bulk storage enclosure  

 Marryat Court- new waste facilities and improvements to communal 
garden by installing seating/children's play equipment  

 Michael Stewart House- greening the grey and improving 
the communal garden area with planters, new picnic tables and 
benches to match existing ones 

 Millshott Close - resurfacing the turtle tops in the communal garden 
with hard-wearing mulch 

 Queen Caroline estate - installation of 2 secure bike hangars  

 St Andrews Court - planters in the communal room and communal 
garden and a green screen across the perimeter of the garden to 
increase privacy for residents. 
 

2.4. Place Environmental Rejuvenation Programme (PERP) 

 The place environmental rejuvenation programme supports tenants’ 
and residents’ associations and other resident groups to transform 
public spaces on estates, so they are greener, safer and benefit the 
local community.  

 Residents can apply to improve the external communal areas of the 
estate, block, or sheltered housing unit. 

 Each proposed bid can be for a maximum of £75,000. Projects are 
delivered through our approved contractor. 

 Funding applications are open once a year at the start of the 
financial year. 
 

2.5. Completed PERP projects include: 
 

 Clem Attlee - biodiversity/wildflower planting 

 Orchard & Cheeseman's - community growing garden 

 West Kensington & Gibbs Green- improvements to ball court and 
multi-use games area and the installation of an outdoor gym 

 Woodmans Mews- community growing garden, outdoor gym 
and playground. 

 
 

2.6. PERP projects that are underway include:  
 

 Aspen Gardens - improvements to basketball court and 
repainting of mural with designs from the children of the estate  

 Becklow Gardens - improvements to playground  

 Barton House- greening the Grey by installing planters 
and refreshing existing signs  

Page 17



 Field Road- greening the grey by removing concrete slabs and 
laying biodegradable seed matts pathways 

 Lytton Estate - resurfacing of Multi Games Area (MUGA) as part of 
a joint project with the Garages team to resolve leaks and ensure 
the surface is weatherproof 

 Riverside Gardens- improvements to basketball court and 
repainting of mural with designs from the children of the estate. 
 

2.7. The presentation given by residents and officers at the committee meeting 
will outline more of the benefits and outcomes of the projects.  

 
3. Rising to the challenge of the climate and ecological emergency  

 
3.1. The resident-led Investment Group is working more closely with the 

Climate Change Unit to raise awareness of climate change and the steps 
every one of us can take to do our bit to addressing this. 

 
3.2. An Urban Ecology Trail, featuring some of the completed NIP and PERP 

projects was launched as part of the Climate Carnival events that took 
place during half-term week in October 2021. The trail is a self-guided tour 
(on foot or by bike) of key housing projects around the borough. The route 
was planned to avoid main roads wherever possible and to pass through 
some of the borough’s 19 green flag parks. 

 
4. Housing Resident Involvement Update 

 
4.1     The Economy Department works with council housing residents to 

improve the housing services they receive and to support the communities 
they are a part of. Our approach is set out in the Resident Involvement 
Strategy 2019 – 2022: 

 
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/resident-
involvement-strategy-2019-22.pdf 

 
4.2     The strategy was co-produced with residents and has the collective vision    

of Make Your Voice Count, No Decision About You, Without You.   
 

4.3       The key priorities of the strategy are: 
 

 Focusing on outcomes  

 Working together  

 Delivering more consistently  

 Improving communication  

 Ensuring continuity  

 For us to keep listening. 
 

4.4 We work with residents through an agreed resident involvement 
structure that includes over thirty listed tenants and residents 
associations (TRAs), representation forums, service improvement 
groups, and adhoc engagement activities.  

Page 18

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/resident-involvement-strategy-2019-22.pdf
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/resident-involvement-strategy-2019-22.pdf


4.5     At our central body for resident involvement, called the Housing 
Representatives Forum, a wide range of housing matters have been 
discussed and decisions made over the last twelve months on areas 
such as:  

 

 Changes to the long-term repairs model  

 Implementation of the Defend Council Homes Policy  

 The significant capital works programme designed to make homes 
and communities safer and better places to live 

 The vital work being undertaken with communities to address the 
climate and ecological emergency 

 Housing Strategy, Tenancy Strategy, and Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping Strategy consultations 

 Fire safety and building compliance works taking place  

 The Housing Transformation Programme and establishing a 
resident-led task and finish group to work with us on this called the 
Housing Transformation Review Group 

 The progress towards actions as set out in the Resident 
Involvement Strategy 2019 - 2022  

 Agreement on a revised Resident Expenses Policy that strengthens 
support for digital inclusion  

 Work with residents as part of the TRA Halls and Rooms Re-
opening Task & Finish Group to agree a process for consideration 
of the safe re-opening of halls for priority activities 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan for 2021/22. 
 

4.6 The Disabled People’s Housing Strategy was formally launched at an 
online Zoom event on 17 September that attracted over 100 attendees. 
Residents, H&F officers, and representatives from third sector 
organisations gave informative and engaging presentations to launch 
the Strategy. The next step is to launch the Disabled Residents 
Housing Group.  

 
4.7 The launch event encouraged a renewed interest from residents in the 

group, with 12 expressions of interest being received. We’ll be holding 
an introductory group meeting on 4 November 2021 to begin the work 
of this important group. The group’s main focus will be on working with 
offers in co-production to deliver on the actions that are set out in the 
Disabled People’s Housing Strategy.  

 
5. H&F Community Engagement Strategy 

 
5.1 The council has started work on developing a Community Engagement 

Strategy to ensure that the engagement and inclusion activities we 
undertake are of a high quality, are joined up and consistent.  

 
5.2 A key part of this strategy will be to ensure that we are identifying any 

gaps in community engagement and addressing these by working with 
the communities we service, the voluntary sector and local businesses.  

Page 19



 
5.3 We will be co-producing this strategy with residents and working hard 

to develop approaches to increase participation from not yet convinced 
individuals and group, and ensuring that H&F is an enabling ally for 
communities.  

 
5.4 A key element of this evolving strategy will be the mapping of 

community engagement across the borough. This will be done by 
working with communities, listening to their views and priorities and 
acting on these. We’re in the process of recruiting to a number of 
Community Organiser roles who will work in the borough to provide 
advice and guidance for residents, community and voluntary 
organisations and key partners by supporting the delivery of 
engagement activities.   

 
5.5 The roles will also promote the council’s services and policies by 

signposting to information and activities that will positively impact 
communities. The initial focus of these roles will be on the continued 
covid recovery and health and wellbeing of our communities.  

 
 

 

Page 20



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 
 
Report to: The Economy, Housing, and the Arts Policy and Accountability             
Committee 
 
Date: 9 November 2021 
 
Subject: Update on the Council’s delivery of Affordable Homes  
 
Report of: Matt Rumble – Strategic Head for Regeneration and Development  
 
Responsible Director: Jon Pickstone – Strategic Director for the Economy 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
This report updates the Economy, Housing and the Arts Policy and Accountability 
Committee on the Council’s delivery of affordable homes and its commitment made 
in the Building Homes and Communities Strategy in July 2019 to build 1,800 homes 
over the next 10 years. 
 
The report will also outline how the development programme embeds coproduction 
with local residents at the heart of development activities, as well as how the 
development team are playing their part in helping the Council achieve its ambitious 
net-zero carbon targets.  
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Committee both note and comment on the report. 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 
  
 
H&F Priorities  
 
Please state how the subject of the report relates to our priorities – delete those 
priorities which are not appropriate. 
 
H&F Priorities  How this report aligns to the H&F Priorities  
Building shared prosperity The development programme will lead to the 

delivery of much needed affordable housing in 
the borough. Each project will use the Council’s 
Social Value strategy to ensure that local 
businesses and residents benefit from the 
contracts that are procured. 

Doing things with residents, not 
to them 

All schemes will be subject to extensive 
engagement and have resident involvement built 
into the process for developing designs as 
schemes progress from initial feasibility to the 
development of more detailed designs. In 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



addition, the Development Team are the first to 
comply with the Defend Council Homes Policy 
which was adopted in January 2021. 

Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient  

Each project in the development programme is 
subject to strict viability appraisal that 
demonstrate it is financially viable and capable 
of delivering long term returns for the Council. 
In addition, the Council is utilising external 
government funding to support its development 
ambitions. 

Taking pride in H&F The development programme will deliver quality 
additions to the borough in terms housing, 
schools and civic spaces.  We will encourage 
inclusion of carbon neutral design proposals and 
green initiatives wherever possible. 

 
Contact Officer: 
Name: Matt Rumble  
Position: Strategic Head for Regeneration and Development  
Telephone: 0208 753 4552 
Email: matt.rumble@lbhf.gov.uk   
 
 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report  
 

None 
 
 

1. Background and Context 
 

1.1. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) income comes from rents and service 
charges, collected from tenants. This money is spent exclusively on 
building and maintaining the Council’s housing stock. The Council is able 
to borrow money within the HRA to refurbish the housing stock, as well as 
build new homes, thus boosting its income. 
 

1.2. Historically, central government imposed borrowing limits on Councils with 
an HRA. This was known as the HRA debt cap. This restriction 
significantly constrained the council’s ability to borrow to invest in its 
housing stock, or build much needed genuinely affordable homes, to meet 
the housing need in the borough. 

 
1.3. Constrained by the HRA debt cap, the Council worked creatively to set up 

the Affordable Housing Delivery Framework, and partnered with housing 
associations on several projects, to deliver new affordable homes in the 
borough. Council owned sites were allocated to framework partners with 
the council retaining nomination rights to the homes in perpetuity. 
Applicants on the council’s housing registers, were nominated and 
allocated the new homes. 

 

Page 22



1.4. Examples of partnership projects are Lavender Court in the north of the 
borough, and Mo Mowlam House (Clem Attlee) and Vanwall House 
(Emlyn Gardens) that collectively delivered 89 new homes, of which 56 
(63%) are genuinely affordable. 

 
1.5. While the Council met some of its objectives, around partnership working 

with housing associations and securing provision of genuinely affordable 
homes through nomination rights to the homes, the financial benefit and 
returns are all taken up by the Housing Associations who build, own and 
manage the homes. 

 
1.6. In late 2018, central government announced the scrapping of the HRA 

debt cap, which meant councils had greater freedoms to borrow to invest 
in existing and new housing stock. This context provided a strategic driver 
for the Council to review its strategic capital and asset management 
strategies, and the way in which they can support the Council’s revenue 
budget, and the administration’s future priorities.  
 
Building Homes and Communities Strategy 

 
1.7. In July 2019, Cabinet approved the Building Homes and Communities 

Strategy which set out the principles of a self-funded development 
programme of investment in homes and community assets in the borough. 
Through this strategy, the Council committed to using its assets to meet its 
strategic objectives of delivering genuinely affordable homes, and 
generating long-term income streams to support the Council’s financial 
challenges. 
 

1.8. Officers undertook high-level capacity studies and identified a long list of 
opportunities that could deliver up to 1,800 homes. The strategic business 
case in the strategy sets the following objectives: 

 
o Build new, genuinely affordable housing which will help maintain the 

borough’s vibrant social mix; 
o Support the Council’s priority of ‘Building Shared Prosperity’; 
o Renew key community assets, including schools and leisure centres; 
o Generate income to reinvest in frontline services 

 
1.9. Following the recent global events, the Council’s financial stability is even 

more important in the post-Covid-19 recovery stage. The development 
programme plays a central role in helping the Council balance its budgets 
and secure additional capacity for future capital programmes. 
 

2. Development Governance & programme 
 

2.1. As part of the Building New Homes and Communities strategy, Cabinet 
approved the creation of a Development Board and a gateway approval 
process for all development projects (see Appendix 1).  
 

Page 23



2.2. The Development Board, chaired by the Strategic Director for Economy 
and attended by the Director of Finance and Strategic Head of 
Development and Regeneration, is responsible for managing schemes 
through the gateway process.  

 
2.3. This approach set a governance structure with a with a clear and robust 

set of financial and development hurdles to demonstrate each scheme is 
viable and deliverable at each stage. The Development Board also 
ensures the correct governance processes are followed for each stage of 
a project, including approval of a budget to take schemes from feasibility to 
planning, procurement of contractors and budgets for construction.  

 
2.4. A development team has also been recruited to manage the direct delivery 

of housing schemes and to meet the range of skills required for successful 
development projects including resident and stakeholder engagement, 
design management, procurement and scheme viability management :  

 
2.5. The Development Team are currently overseeing the direct delivery of 

projects on 16 council-owned sites throughout the borough. The schemes 
and the estimated level of affordable housing for each project is described 
in Appendix 2.  

 
2.6. The current programme aims to deliver more than 1,100 new homes over 

the next 8 to 10 years, of which at least 704 will be affordable. Of the 704 
new affordable homes 347 will be genuinely affordable (LAR or Social 
rent), and 357 will be intermediate rent or shared ownership). Appendix 3 
summarises the definition of these tenures. 

 
2.7. In addition, some schemes also re-provide civic space, schools, 

playgrounds and other community assets. For example, the Education City 
project will deliver 132 affordable homes, a new nursery, an adult 
education facility, a new primary school and a Youth Zone. The White City 
Central Project proposes to re-provide an early year learning centre and 
new state of the art community facilities, as well as more than 270 new 
homes. 

 
2.8. The Development Team also manage a further 6 partnership development 

projects with Housing Associations, (see Appendix 4). This partnership 
programme will deliver over 640 new affordable homes. 
 

2.9. A map of the development sites in the borough can be viewed in Appendix 
5. 

 
3. Funding the programme 

 
3.1. The success of the development programme requires borrowing through 

the HRA or General fund (if the sites are not on housing land) to fund 
development costs. Alongside this, the Council will bid for and use other 
funding streams, such as GLA Grant, RtB Receipts and section 106 
money, received in lieu of affordable housing in private developments.  

Page 24



 
3.2. Importantly, the Council has secured external grants from the Greater 

London Authority (GLA) to support the delivery of the affordable housing in 
the programme. In September, the GLA announced that this Council had 
secured £32m of grant, to fund 9 schemes to deliver 400 new affordable 
homes. This is in addition to the £11m secured from the GLA’s earlier 
funding programme. Together, the £44m of grant will see at least 650 new 
affordable homes built in the borough. 

 
3.3. The cost of development is repaid initially by the sales receipts from the 

market homes, while the longer-term debt is repaid from the rental income 
of the new homes.  

 
3.4. Current financial assessments of the 16 direct delivery schemes indicate 

that, on average, individual projects will have repaid the cost of 
development from year 17. This means that from the 18th year, the Council 
will start receiving financial returns on its investment in this development 
programme. Therefore, not only does the development programme deliver 
new homes and community infrastructure, it underpins the long term 
viability of the HRA.  

 
3.5. To demonstrate each project is viable and deliverable, they must deliver a 

minimum of 50% affordable homes while producing a minimum positive 
net present Value (NPV) financial contribution of £1 at year 50.  
 

3.6. The programme’s current Gross Development Value (GDV) is estimated at 
£685m, this is against a total programme cost of £500m, of which c. 50m 
will be for re-provided community amenities.  

 
3.7. This ‘growing of the pie’ approach and the positive long term financial  

contribution of the development programme supports the Council ability to 
invest in planned maintenance and compliance programmes, its Climate 
and Ecology Strategy objectives around decarbonising council homes, 
reducing the need to make future savings or increase income. 
 

4. Resident Involvement and Defend Council Homes Policy 
 

4.1. Successful development and regeneration schemes put resident at the 
heart of the process. One of the key commitments in the Building Homes 
and Communities strategy is carrying out extensive resident engagement 
at each stage of the development process.  

 
4.2. Embedded within each development project, are the principles of co-

production and the Defend Council Homes Policy. The Defend Council 
Homes Policy (DCHP) was approved at Cabinet in January 2021 and has 
established a clear set of principles describing how residents of council 
estates, will be engaged in design and involved in decision-making, 
around  development activity that impacts on their council homes. 

 

Page 25



4.3. The Development Team have worked in partnership with the Defend 
Council Homes Unit and, latterly, the sub-group of the Housing Reps 
Forum (HRF) to create the DCHP Implementation Guide for the 
Development Team (a step by step guide about how to apply the policy to 
development activities), and a reporting dashboard for the HRF Subgroup .   

 
4.4. The approach to engagement and co-production has so far underpinned 

the success in the White City Central and Hartopp and Lannoy projects, 
with both schemes being led by resident steering groups and becoming 
excellent examples of co-production. 

 
5. Sustainability & Climate Challenge 

 
5.1. The baseline statutory standards (i.e. Building Regulations) and Local Plan 

policy requirements for sustainability results in approximately 35% 
reduction in on-site operational carbon for new developments. Even with 
the implementation of ‘Future Homes’ standard 2025, which looks to 
eliminate the use of fossil fuels altogether, the CO2 reductions do not 
fundamentally change sufficiently, to facilitate moving towards achieving 
net-zero homes. 
 

5.2. Therefore, as a base position, the Council is embedding additional design 
principles that will deliver homes that will reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions and exceed the current policy targets for new homes by 10%. 
This means the Council will seek to achieve, at minimum, a 45% reduction 
in on-site operational carbon. 
 

5.3. Under the Climate and Ecology Strategy, the Council has set ambitious 
targets of achieving net zero carbon homes by 2030, as well as helping 
tackle fuel poverty.  
 

5.4. Building further on this, and as part of a step-change to delivering net zero 
carbon homes, the Development Team are currently progressing three 
pilot projects (Hartopp and Lannoy, The Grange and Land near Jepson 
House). The design of these project will use industry recognised 
Passivhaus principles, to achieve ‘operational’ net zero carbon (i.e. carbon 
neutral from an operational use of the building).  Importantly, the 
institutional knowledge, gained from these schemes, will be used to inform 
and influence the way we deliver and build future schemes, in the 
development programme.  
 

5.5. However, focusing on achieving the net-zero operational carbon standards 
will require a careful balance. Adopting these Passivhaus sustainability 
standards, will mean an increase in the development costs of projects and, 
therefore, a reduction in the projected long term revenue to the HRA - or 
the total quantum of affordable housing delivered programme. 

 

Page 26



Appendix 1 – Development Gateway Process 
 

Gateway Description 

0.   Identifying a Site  This is when a site has been identified. Initial internal checks are carried out and 
conversation with other council teams. 

1.   Assessing Feasibility 
If development on the site is feasible, a consultants team are commissioned to help develop 
a final proposal. Engagement begins by sending the first Defend Council Homes Policy 
notice to local residents and then recruiting a Resident Steering Group to help develop the 
proposals. 

2.   The Planning Process 
Ongoing consultation and engagement with local residents culminating in submission of 
planning application based on the final project proposal developed with Resident Steering 
Group. Statutory Planning public consultation begins.  

3.   Appointing a Contractor 
At this stage we procure an appoint a contractor to build the proposed development we 
development following intensive engagement and with support from local residents. We 
also issue the second Defend Council Homes Policy Notice. 

4.   Construction 
The successful bidder is appointed contractor and takes handover of the site. They begin 
building the development. Residents will have dedicated points of contact throughout the 
programme. The building programme could be phased or in one go. 

5.   Completion 
This is when the council takes handover of the built development and completes its checks, 
prior to allocating homes to perspective tenants. A 360-review is undertaken with Resident 
Steering Group to recognise achievements and recommend improvements. 

P
age 27



Appendix 2 – Direct Delivery Programme 
 

Site / Scheme
Affordable Housing Market Housing

Total
Homes

Development Stage
/ Status

Start On Site
(estimate)

Completion
(estimate)Genuinely

Affordable Intermediate Total
Affordable % Homes %

Springvale 10 0 10 100% 0 0% 10 Construction Dec 2019 Jan 2022

Education City 33 99 132 100% 0 0% 132 Construction Jul 2021 Nov 2025

Flora Gardens School 32 22 54 50% 55 50% 109 Feasibility Dec 2022 Dec 2024

Avonmore School 27 18 45 49% 46 51% 91 Feasibility Dec 2022 Dec 2024

Farm Lane Site 8 7 15 50% 15 50% 30 Feasibility Oct 2023 Apr 2025

Mund Street Site 25 25 50 50% 50 50% 100 Feasibility Sep 2024 Mar 2027

Lillie Road Site 12 11 23 51% 22 49% 45 Feasibility Jan 2024 Jul 2026

White City Central 71 69 140 51% 142 49% 282 Feasibility Aug 2023 Aug 2027

Hartopp & Lannoy Site 67 45 112 94% 7 6% 119 Feasibility Jan 2023 Jul 2025

Old Laundry Yard 19 12 31 51% 30 49% 61 Feasibility Mar 2023 Mar 2025

Commonwealth Avenue 20 20 40 100% 0 0% 40 Feasibility Dec 2023 Oct 2025

Barclay Close 2 4 6 100% 0 0% 6 Feasibility Mar 2025 Mar 2027

Becklow Gardens 4 8 12 92% 1 8% 13 Feasibility Mar 2025 Mar 2027

The Grange 4 4 8 50% 8 50% 16 Feasibility Jan 2025 Jan 2027

Hemlock Garages 2 1 3 50% 3 50% 6 Feasibility Jan 2025 Jan 2027

Land near Jepson House 11 12 23 51% 22 49% 45 Site Identification Apr 2024 Mar 2026

Total 347 357 704 64% 401 36% 1105

 

P
age 28



Appendix 3 – Glossary 
 

Term Definition 

Affordable Housing Generally, these are homes for people whose needs are not met by the market. 

Affordable Rent Typically, these homes are let at rent levels are higher than social rent homes but lower than 
open market rent. 

Genuinely Affordable By this we mean the lowest and cheapest rents in the market. Typically, these are social rent or 
London Affordable Rent homes. 

Intermediate Housing 
These are homes that are for rent and sale below market levels. This type of affordable housing 
is aimed at people who do not qualify for social housing but cannot afford to rent or buy on the 
open market. It includes products such as Shared Ownership, shared equity and discounted 
market sales – as well as rent products such as London Living Rent and Intermediate Rent. 

  

P
age 29



Appendix 4 - Partnership Projects 

Site / Scheme

Affordable Housing Private Housing
Total
Homes

Development
Stage / Status

Start On
Site

Completion
(estimate)Genuinely

Affordable Intermediate Total
Affordable % Homes %

Civic Campus 69 36 105 51% 99 49% 204 Construction Jan 20
Phased

from May
2022

Lavender Court 24 21 45 100% 0 0% 45 Completed Apr 18 Apr 2021

Emlyn Gardens 14 0 14 100% 0 0% 14 Construction Mar 18 Dec 2021

MoMowlam House 18 12 30 100% 0 0% 30 Construction Jun 19 Jan 2022

Edith Summerskill House 105 27 132 100% 0 0% 133 Planning TBC TBC

Watermeadow Court 54 54 108 50% 108 50% 216 Planning TBC TBC

Total 435 150 434 68% 207 32% 642

P
age 30



Appendix 5 – Borough Map with Development Projects 

P
age 31



W
ood Lane

Scrubs Lane

A40 Westway

Uxbridge 

Uxbridge Road

D
alling 

A4020 -

Goldhawk 

Paddens 

Bush Green

B

Road

Shepherds Bush Road
s 

Shepherd's

S
rd's

King 

A
skew

 

Road

Street

Road

w
ick 

Road
Road

A4 A4

Fulham
 

ersmith FlyHamme yoverh Flyo

Flyover

sm
ith 

End Road
N

orth End Road

Hammer 
Road

Lillie
 Road

Dawes Road

Fu
lham

 

Fulham 

Harwood Rd

New 

W
andsw

orth 

M
unster Road

- Great West Road - Talgarth Road

North 

Palace Road

Road

Road

Kings Ro
ad

Bridge Road

Pu
tn

ey
 B

rid
ge

 

Ha
m

Ha
m

Ha
m

m
er

sm
ith

 Bh
Br

id
ge

 

ge 
ge

WW
andsw

orth Bridge

ulham
 H

g St

Ful
St 

hhhHammersmith

Barons
CoCourt

West 
nsingtonnsingtoniKenKensin

lhFulham
BroadwayBroadway

ImperImperial
hWharf

Parsons
Green

yPPutney 
gidBridge

hHammersmith

d sShepherddShepherd’s
hBush

tKensington
pOlymp(Olympia)

yWhite CityWhite City

LLdWood Lane

sphepherd’sShepherd’s
h kkMh MBush Market

AAt A tEast Acton
iStation

kkldhdGoldhawk
dRoad

Ravenscourt
kPark

dStamford
kBrook

Wormwood Scrubs

Ravenscourt
Park

WendellWendell
Park

Fulham 
lPalPalace

Hurlingham
Park

South 
Park

Eel Brook 
Common

NormanNormand 
Parkrk

BromptonomptoBro nomB
rkPark

ush

A4

lham

Lillie
 Road

Dawes Road
F

New

w
orth

oad

- Talgarth Road

Palace
Road

Br

ulham
 H

g S

Ful
St

ns
t

t 
nsingtoKensingto

wayway

ns
n

Bush Green

B

awk
dd

W
ood Lan

A40 Westway

Uxbridg

g

A4020 -

Goldhawk
Roa Road

Road

R

City

1

222

4444

55

6666 888

9999

11

1001010000111

1313313133

14144

15515
161661

122112222

77777

3333

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS IN 
HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
H&F development projects
Partnerships development projects

Underground stations
Parks and Green spaces
Landmarks LB

H
F0

05
3.

 2
02

1.

WARD BOUNDARIES
1. College Park & Old Oak
2. Wormholt & White City
3. Shepherds Bush Green
4. Askew
5. Ravenscourt Park
6. Hammersmith Broadway
7. Addison
8. Avonmore & Brook Green
9. Fulham Reach
10. North End
11. Palace Riverside
12. Munster
13. Fulham Broadway
14. Town
15. Parsons Green & Walham
16. Sands End

2

5

6

4

3

1

13

5

7

14

4

16

9

3

2

68

15

10

11

12

PARTNERSHIP 
PROJECTS

Project
1 Civic Campus
2 Edith Summerskill House
3 Emlyn Gardens
4 Lavender Court
5 Mo Mowlam House
6 Watermeadow Court

HAMMERSMITH 
& FULHAM 
PROJECTS

Project
1 Avonmore School
2 Barclay Close
3 Becklow Gardens
4 Commonwealth Avenue
5 Education City
6 Farm Lane Site 
7 Flora Gardens School
8 Hartopp & Lannoy Site
9 Hemlock Garages
10 Land Near Jepson House
11 Lillie Road Site
12 Mund Street Site
13 Old Laundry Yard
14 The Grange
15 Springvale
16 White City Central

Page 32



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

Report to: The Economy, Housing and the Arts Policy and Accountability 
Committee  

Date:  09/11/2021 

 
Subject: Fire safety housing 
  
Report author: Richard Buckley, Assistant director, residents and building safety 
  
Responsible Director: Johnathan Pickstone, Strategic Director, Economy 
 
  

 
SUMMARY 
 
As a landlord, H&F is the Responsible Person in law for managing fire safety of its 
17,000 housing properties, of which just over 12,000 are tenanted households. This 
report provides an overview of the fire safety arrangements in place, on-going 
monitoring and reporting arrangements and planned capital fire safety works. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 

1.  ‘For the Committee to note and comment on the report’.  
 

 

Wards Affected: ALL 
 

 
 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Values 

Building shared prosperity Safe council housing for all residents 
 

Creating a compassionate council 
 

The Administration has championed 
operating above minimum legal 
standards. H&F has proactively 
introduced personnel emergency 
evacuation plans for residents in tower 
blocks who are unable to self-evacuate. 
Leaseholders safeguarded from costs of 
fire safety works. 

Doing things with local residents, not to 
them 
 

FRAG is a resident led, fire and building 
safety residents working group that 
leads on working with residents to 
aware of the fire safety arrangements in 
place for their homes. 

Being ruthlessly financially efficient 
 

The Administration prioritises safety of 
all residents and has exempted fire 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



safety capital work recharges to 
leaseholders. Capital works are 
procured in accordance with value for 
money processes and maximising social 
value. 

Taking pride in H&F 
 

Leading in fire safety compliance with 
highly competent teams to enhance our 
existing properties & making residents 
feel safe and heard. 

Rising to the challenge of the climate 
and ecological emergency 
 

Building in resilience to our properties 
such as boroughwide LED reducing 
CO2 emissions through high quality 
product and maximising technology. 

 
 

Contact Officers 

  
Name: Richard Buckley 
Position: Assistant director, residents and building safety 
Telephone:  
Email: Richard.buckley@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

  
Not applicable 
 
  

 
DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 
1. The Grenfell tragedy 14 June 2017 has impacted greatly and widely throughout 

the country and continues to do so. The subsequent Dame Judith Hackitt 
review and the on-going Public Inquiry continue to shape changes to the law 
and associated guidance and British Standards. The Building Safety Bill is set 
to fundamentally change the way we operate with the introduction of the 
Accountable Person, the Building Safety Regulator, Building Safety Certificates 
and Building Safety Managers. 

2. London is home to 60% of the nation’s tower blocks of seven storeys (18 
metres) and above, and currently over 1,000 blocks have moved from Stay Put 
to Simultaneous Evacuation requiring a Waking Watch. The impact on 
leaseholders who have to cover these costs, are unable to sell their properties 
or re-mortgage is reported in the press to be destroying many lives.  

3. As revealed in Phase 2 of the Public Inquiry, trust and confidence in all areas of 
fire safety from the product, testing, designing, installing, checking and 
managing has shown to be fractured and the process, as stated by Dame 
Judith Hackitt, is not fit for purpose. 

4. Against this background the H&F Administration has committed to operate 
above minimum legal standards, adopting best practice, and not to pass on 

Page 34



charges to leaseholders. H&F has committed significant investment, in excess 
of £80 million to enable compliance works and has just committed (6 
September 2021) to further investment of over £600 million in upgrading its 
housing stock as part of a 12 year capital strategy. 
 

H&F properties & responsibilities 

  
5. H&F, as the Responsible Person under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 

Order has set duties in law, which includes fire risk assessment, fire safety 
arrangements, firefighting and detection, emergency routes and exits, 
maintenance, training for employees etc. 

6. In H&F, we are landlord to just over 17,000 properties, of which 12,000+ are 
tenanted households and the remainder are leaseholders. Leaseholders are 
responsible for the inside of their homes, whilst H&F remains responsible for 
the communal parts including external façade, lobbies, stairwells, plant rooms, 
etc. 

7. We have sixty eight blocks that are six storeys and above, it is likely that circa 
40 of these will be subject to the new bill and require the Appointed Person to 
register with the new regulator to acquire a building safety certificate 
confirming: 

 appointed a Building Safety Manager (BSM) 

 assessed building risks 

 taken steps to prevent a major incident 

 produced a safety case report 

 put in place a mandatory occurrence reporting system 

 keep prescribed information (Golden Thread) on the building 

 given prescribed information to residents 

 produced a residents’ engagement strategy 

 respond to requests for additional information 

 a system for the investigation of relevant complaints by the BSM 
8. Failure to comply with the Fire Safety Order and the Building Safety Bill can 

result in imprisonment of officers and significant fines to the organisation. 

fire safety arrangements 

9. We have in place a fire safety management system document setting out the 
policy, roles and responsibilities and arrangements for managing our premises. 

10. All properties of six storeys and above have a safety case file detailing the 
features unique to that building. Schematics of the building for the fire brigade 
(LFB) are held in Premise Information Boxes (PIBs) normally located in the 
entrance lobby. Our sheltered properties have PIBs too. 

11. A team of fire safety officers oversee the fire safety risk assessment process 
including quality checks. There are in place circa 1,488 fire risk assessments 
(FRAs) that cover all the communal parts of our buildings. The FRAs for six 
storeys and above are published on our website and updated routinely. Other 
FRAs are available upon request. 

12. The actions from the FRAs are manifold. Many are batched as part of capital 
works programme, such as fire door upgrades, whilst others require minor 
works such as firestopping by our in-house fire safety works team (DLO).  

Page 35



13. Our Safety First team oversee the proactive identification of persons requiring 
assistance in an emergency to self-evacuate a tower. Officers work with 
residents to put a plan in place. Information is provided to the LFB. 

14. A dedicated officer from the fire compliance team is attached to the 23 
sheltered blocks, working with staff and providing training. Person Centred Fire 
Risk Assessments are completed for residents requiring assistance in an 
emergency. 

15. Housing officers, geographically located, routinely inspect to a set programme 
the internal means of escape to work with residents or removing hazards to 
escape or potential fuel sources. All inspections are recorded. 

16. Training is provided using in-house expertise for housing officers, sheltered 
officers, concierge and wardens. Bespoke specialist training is also sourced as 
required, for example, from the British Research Establishment on facades and 
Association of Specialist Fire Protection on firestopping. Records of training are 
maintained. 

17. In preparation for the Building Safety Bill becoming law, we have appointed two 
Building Safety Managers. The Bill sets out the legal requirement for these 
posts and their duties. We are working with other London Boroughs through the 
London Councils to develop the role as guidance takes shape under the new 
regulator. 

18. There are bi-monthly meetings in place with the LFB to discuss strategic and 
operational matters. The new Borough Commander has recently taken up the 
post. The LFB are initiating a number of operational exercises at our tallest 
blocks at Edward Woods and Charecroft estates to identify any issues 
proactively. 

19. FRAG, fire safety and building safety action residents group, was set up in 
2017 and is chaired and made up of a group of residents, many who live in 
tower blocks, to act as the voice of residents and who shape policy and 
decisions with officers. FRAG reports to a wider Housing Representatives 
Forum made of resident representatives from estates across the council. FRAG 
is currently working with officers on the format and content of the bespoke 
Resident’s Strategy required under the Building Safety Bill for each relevant 
building. 

20. The status of building compliance is reported to the Cabinet Member for 
Housing on a fortnightly basis, with a copy sent to corporate risk, and to the 
Strategic Leadership Team (including CEO) every six months. 

fire incidents 

21. The LFB is the busiest brigade in the country. In 2020, in H&F there were 313 
fires: London Fire Brigade Incident Records - London Datastore. 

22. With over 17,000 properties there are routine fire incidents in our own approx. 
20 per annum. All reported incidents are investigated by the team to establish 
learning in terms of cause and preventative measures from compartmentation 
to detection. 

fire safety maintenance  

23. All tenanted properties have internal smoke and heat detection. As part of the 
rolling Electrical Condition Installation Reporting (EICR) 5 year cycle, to check 
the hard wiring (electrical circuitry), all detectors are checked to ensure they are 
in date and upgraded as required. In addition, owing to changes in regulations, 
the engineer will upgrade the consumer unit (fusebox) and install additional 

Page 36

https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/london-fire-brigade-incident-records


detection (see table 1) as required, which reduces further the likelihood of 
electrical fires and ensure early detection.  
 
Table 1 – electrical upgrades since August 2020 to August 2021 
Items Q1 (August 

start) 

Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

Consumer 

Units  

77 223 244 
257 

801 

Heat detectors  183 properties 634 properties 687 567 2,071 

Smoke 

Detectors  

681 for 278 

properties 

1273 for 716 

properties 

1307 for 797 

Properties 
1095 

4,356 

24. The Fire Safety Plus initiative, introduced by the Administration, provides a 
proactive free service to all residents (leaseholders too) to request an 
inspection by an officer of the internal fire safety arrangements. This includes a 
Portable Appliance Test (PAT) of white goods (e.g. fridges), with free 
replacement where necessary, a check of fire detection and the kitchen door as 
well as general advice. 
 
Table 2 – fire safety plus inspections 

Number of visits 922 

Alarm Works  304 

FED Installations 26 

Kitchen/Internal Door Installations 95 

PAT Completed 594 

25. The Mechanical & Electrical team oversee maintenance and checks of 
communal firefighting systems as set out below, for period August 2020 to July 
2021: 
FFE (firefighting equipment) 

 Services undertaken: 389 (100% of target) 

 Number of Assets upgraded: 196 (from inspection) 
 

Fire Panel / system testing programme 

 Services undertaken: 20 (100% of target) 

 Repair jobs raised: 69 
 

AOV testing programme (smoke control systems) 

 Services undertaken: 6 (100%) - 2 blocks in West Ken that are not on any 
schedule are to be upgraded following engineer report 

 Repair jobs raised: 3 
 

Emergency Lighting programme 

 Services undertaken: 794 (100% of target) 

 Repair jobs raised: 442 (from inspection/test) 
 

Lightning Protection testing programme 

 Services undertaken: 95 (100% of target) 

 Repair jobs raised: 93 (from inspection) 
26. An in-house fire safety works team sits within the DLO and undertakes 

compartmentation, firestopping, signage, fire detection and door installation and 
maintenance works. The works originate from the FRAs and fire safety plus 

Page 37



inspections. There is circa 7,000+ works programmed over the next two years. 
The team is working to a recognised system, and a percentage of works are 
independently verified to maintain assurance. All records are maintained for 
uploading to the asset management system. 

27. The frequency of inspections of front entrance fire doors and communal fire 
doors is still to be determined through regulations. Across our estate we have 
circa 17,000 fire doors. The in-house team will be part of the team to maintain 
and inspect with records held on the asset management system. The team will 
shortly seek to attain recognised accreditation through a third party body. 
 

fire safety capital works programme 

28. A major compliance based programme signed off by Cabinet in 2018 continues 
to progress. See ward maps of works in appendix 2. 

29. Works include the installation of 4,000+ enhanced fire doors in blocks of six 
storeys and above, sheltered and higher risk properties. Over 3,500 have been 
installed to date. 

30. A borough wide LED programme to communal parts of our estates includes 
upgrade of emergency lighting that will employ cloud based technology to 
check and test it in accordance with regulations. 

31. Sprinklers and evacuation alarm systems (in the event of an emergency – LFB 
activated) are being installed in five tower blocks (approx. 600 households), 
with others planned. Show flats are in place for residents to view and a H&F 
video made by officers demonstrating the installation process as well as a FAQ 
sheet to dispel any myths and address concerns and to ensure full 
engagement. 

32. Converting dry wet risers in five towers over 50m in height is planned over the 
next 18 months including Roseford, Woodford, Linacre, Barton, Herbert 
Morrison and Jepson House. 

building specific issues  

33. Complex works are programmed at Edward Woods towers (Stebbing, Norlands 
and Poynter) which will see the replacement of the rainscreen cladding and 
removal of photovoltaic panels. Internal works, including the installation of 
sprinklers and evacuation alarm are underway. The buildings are staffed by 
concierge and fire wardens patrol every hour to ensure any risks (e.g. 
flammable materials such as mattresses etc) are resolved and reported 
immediately. Residents are routinely updated. 

34. Historic design issues at Drake and Shackleton towers create a potential risk in 
exiting the internal rooms of a flat in an emergency. Works to address include 
the installation of sprinklers and a LD1 fire detection system throughout each 
flat; these are on-going. 

35. Cheesemans – historic configuration of a number of properties creates an inner 
room scenario where residents must pass through a room, rather than a 
protected route, to exit in the event of a fire. Properties are currently fitted with 
suppression systems and fire detection in all rooms, but further works, 
alterations, are required to the interior layout; a pilot is underway. 

36. The fire at Shepherds Court in Charecroft estate, 2016, resulted in the damage 
of seven flats. The blocks are not owned by the council, with two that sit above 
a shopping centre and the others next to a petrol garage; creating access 
issues for external work at height. Works have been delayed owing to the 

Page 38



complexity. Interim arrangements remain in place with fire wardens patrolling 
24/7. A feasibility study is now complete, and we are commissioning the 
scoping and delivery of works. We continue to engage with residents and 
landlords. 

37. Twenty seven towers have some form of combustible infill panel on the external 
façade, not cladding (see appendix 1). All properties have been risk assessed 
and are part of the capital programme for upgrade works over the next 18 
month – 24 months. 

38. It is worth noting that current national skilled labour shortages, material costs 
and supply chain issues are delaying projects nationally. 

Conclusion 

39. There is a robust fire safety management system in place, and it continues to 
develop and enhance as we gather detailed information on our buildings and 
internal assets, work through capital programmes and FRA actions. 

40. The new Building Safety Bill is a gamechanger for compliance and though it 
brings with it many challenges and resource demands, both financial and 
expertise, it importantly prescribes requirements leaving no room for ambiguity. 
It gives residents who live in the buildings, in law, a mechanism to identify who 
is accountable, complete transparency on the technical details and 
maintenance regimes and a route to escalate. 

41. H&F has committed to operate above minimum legal standards, to significant 
long-term investment in its buildings, to working with residents who know their 
homes and estates best, and to not re-charge leaseholders for fire safety 
improvement works. 

42. Mazars are currently undertaking an independent audit of housing fire safety 
arrangements. 

  
 
LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 - Spandrel panel update 
Appendix 2 – programmed capital works including fire safety by ward 
 
 
 
  

Page 39



Appendix 1 

Appendix 1 - Spandrel Panel Update. 
  

    

    Package 1 
   

Block Location Risk Status 

Churchward House West Kensington Estate High 

Spec confirmed, 
planning approval 
obtained, awaiting 
contract sign off.  

Desborough House West Kensington Estate High 

Spec confirmed, 
planning approval 
obtained, awaiting 
contract sign off.  

Fairburn House West Kensington Estate High 

Spec confirmed, 
planning approval 
obtained, awaiting 
contract sign off.  

Lickey House West Kensington Estate High 

Spec confirmed, 
planning approval 
obtained, awaiting 
contract sign off.  

        

    Package 2  
   Block Location Risk Status 

Barton House Townmead Road High 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
submitted. 

Drake Court William Church Estate High 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
submitted. 

Shackleton Court William Church Estate High 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
submitted. 

Barclay Close Barclay Close High 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
submitted. 

      
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 40



Package 3 
   Block Location Risk  Status 

Michael Stewart House Clement Attlee Estate High  

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
submitted. 

      
 

    Package 4  
   Block Location Risk  Status  

Verulam House 
Hammersmith Grove W6 
ONW Low 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
to be submitted. 

      
 

    Package 5  
   Block  Location Risk Status 

Jepson House Bulow Estate Medium 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
to be submitted. 

Muscal House Field Road/ Margavine Medium 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
to be submitted. 

Standish House 1-28 St Peter's Grove Low 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
to be submitted. 

Herbert Morrison 
House Clement Attlee Estate Medium 

Spec confirmed. 
planning application 
to be submitted. 

        

    Complex Works  
   

    Block Location Risk Status 

Norland House Edward Woods Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

Poynter House Edward Woods Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

Stebbing House Edward Woods Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

Bush Court Charecroft Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

Roseford Court Charecroft Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

Shepherds Court Charecroft Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

Page 41



Woodford Court Charecroft Estate 
High 

 Feasibility/ Design 
stage 

      

   Block Location Risk Status 

Walham Green Court 
112-126 

Walham Green Court 
Medium Complete 

Cox House Field Road/Margravine Low Complete 

Horton House  Field Road/Margravine Low Complete 

    

    Block Location Risk Status 

Ash Lodge non estate Unknown unactioned 

Cedar Lodge non estate Unknown unactioned 

Cobbs Hall non estate Unknown unactioned 

 

  

Page 42



Appendix 2 – programmed capital works including fire safety by ward (draft) 
 

Page 43



GRAND

UNIO
N

CANAL

Kensal Green

White City

East Acton

Willesden
Junction

Wood
Lane

N
ational R

ail

Hammersm
ith

& City 
Line

Central line

TH
IR

D

B R A Y B R O O KW
 U

 L F S T A N

ERCONW
ALD

FITZNEAL

M
A

P
LE

A
V

AVE

C
T

G
LE

N
D

U
N

B
R

O
M

Y
A

R
D

BOWES ROAD

R
D

G
LE

N
D

U
N

ASHFIELD

A
V

E
N

U
E

TRINITY

O
LD

 O
A

K

LA
N

E
C

O
M

M
O

N

MUIR

BRASSIE

FAIRWAY

DRIVE

R
O

A
D

A
V

K
IN

G
S

D
O

W
N

H
O

Y
LA

K
E

AVE A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
S

T
R

O
A

D

THE

M
A

S
H

IE
G

R
N

T
A

Y
LO

R
'S

B
Y

E
TH

E

THE GREEN

SUNNINGDALE

A
V

E

AVE

FOLIO
T

M
ID

LA
N

D

TELFORD

BRUNEL RD

W
E

LL
S

 H
O

U
S

E
 R

D

W
AY

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ROAD

A
T

LA
S

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

ST

G
O

O
D

H
AL

L
ST

NORTH P
OLE

W
ALLIN

G
FO

R
D

RD
SNARSGATE

H
IG

H
LEVER

ROAD

ROAD

IMRE CL

CREIGHTON

PRIMULA

LIL

CU

STREET

RD

COURT

ASKHAM

THE

ARMSTRONG

A
V

S
E

C
O

N
D

A
S

K
H

A
M

A
V

OLLGAR CLOSE

R
O

A
D

W
ALLFLO

YEW

L 
O

 C
 K

STEVENTON

ROAD

A
V

E
N

U
E

FIR
S

T

ROAD

ST

HILARY

WAY

FOXGLOVE

SQTAMARIS
K

H E
 M

RD

R
O

A
D

AYCLIFFE

URNE

S A W L E Y

ALDBO

R
O

A
D

S
T

S
E

D
G

E
FO

R
D

ROAD

CLEMATIS

TREE

R
 O

 A
 D

DAFFODIL

W
ER

VIOLASQ

SU
ND

EWSTREET

MELLITUS

NORBROKE

W
A

LK

ST

STREET

S T R
 E E T

STR
EET

C
A

C
TU

S

STREET

H
ILA

R
Y

W
K

O
N

IA

STREET

HENCHM
AN

STOSMUND

S
 T

 R
 E

 E
 T

B
E

G
-

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

S
W

EST

STREET

BENNELONG

AV
EN

UE

RD

AUSTRALIA

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

V
A

LE
W

ILLO
W

DUNRAVEN

G
R

A
V

E
S

E
N

D

W
O

R
M

H
O

LT

ROAD

ROAD

TH
O

R
P

E
B

A
N

K

G
A

LLO
W

A
Y

R
D

S
T

P
A

N

ST

BRYONY

ORCH ID

AC

RVE

ST

THE

CU

G
D

S

SY

RVE

M
ILFO

IL

R O A D

A
D

E
LA

ID
E

O
A

K
LA

N
D

S

O
R

M
IS

TO
N

HALSBURY

ROAD

S
T

E
R

IC
A

ROAD

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

R
O

A
DR

D
IN

G
E

R
S

O
LL

R
D

A
R

M
IN

G
E

R

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

C O M M O N W E A L T H A V E

ROAD

ELLERSLIE

AVE

RDETHELDEN

W
A

Y

COMMON-

AUSTRALIA

IN
D

IA

C
A

N
A

D
A

A
B

D
A

LE

LO
FTU

S

CLOSE
BATMAN

STAN

SWINDON ST

TU
N

IS

ROAD

W
A

Y

R
O

A
D

A
U

S
T

R
A

LIA

BENTWORTH

A
R

T
ILLE

R
Y

 LA
N

E

STREET HEATHSTAN

M
A

U
R

IC
E

S
T

S
T

TE
R

R
IC

K

MEWS

SHALFLEET DR

S
ILV

E
R

 R
O

A
D

M
A

C
F

A
R

LA
N

E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

FR
ITH

V
ILLE

OSE
C

L

W
HITE CITY

EXHIBITIO
N

CLOSE

R
E

LA
Y

 R
O

A
D

ARIEL

WAY

F
 R

 E
 S

 T
 O

 N

BAR
D

RD

L
 A

 T
 I M

 E
 R

SHINFIELD

CAV

EYNHAM

NASCOT

GLEN

STWALL

ST
ST

ROY

ERS-

ST

RO
AD

ST

OXFORD

KINGSBRIDGE

R
O

AD

LATIMER

R
 O

 A
 D

PL

KELFIELD

RD

DARFIE
LD

WAYNFLETE

WAY

FIN
STO

C
K

GARDENS

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
D

H
E

LE
N

'S

NEW ZEALAND

WAY

AVE

C
O

LLIN
G

B
O

U
R

N
E

R
O

A
D

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

W
A

Y

PEONY

GDS

STOKESLE
Y ST

PIONEER
CLOSE

S
T

A
N

LA
K

E

CL

APP

STATION

RUCKLIDGE

AVENUE

SALTER STREET

STATIO
N

CLIFTON

H Y T H E
R D

Trading Estate
Gateway

CREWE
PL

ENTER

ST

FORTUNE

W
A

Y

BUCKINGHAM

RD

HONEYW
OOD

RD

RO
AD

BRACEW
ELL RD

WOODMANS

Industrial Park

Mitre Bridge

M
ITRE

HILL FARM R
D

OAKWORTH ROAD

S T Q U I N T I N A V E N U E

C
A

LD
-

AVE

PL
ERON

BARLB
Y

DALGARNO

D A L G A R N O

BREW
STER G

DS

S
U

TT
O

N

H
IG

H
LEVER

Q
U

IN
TIN

R
D

GDNS

W
AY

W
A

Y

S
U

TTO
N W
AY

P
A

N
G

B
O

U
R

N
E

G A R D E N S

ROAD

PURVES

HAZEL RD

R O A DH Y T H E

LETCHFORD

VALLIERE

RIGELEY

WALDO

G
D

N
S

LE
TC

H
FO

R
D

K
E

N
M

O
N

T

RD

MS

RD

G
D

N
S

P A L E R M O

LEGHORN

RD

FURNESS

ROAD RD

ODESSA
WROTTE

R O A D

G
DN

S

TR
EN

M
AR

VICTOR

G
D

N
S

H
O

LB
E

R
TO

N

ROAD

PONSARD RD

NAPIER RD

R
O

A
D R

O
A

D
R

A
V

E
N

S
W

O
R

TH

F
E

LIX
T

O
W

E
 R

O
A

D

PLACE

ALMA

G
R

E
Y

H
O

U
N

D
 R

O
A

D

BATHURST GDNS

R
O

A
D

ASHBURNHAM
ROAD

BURROWS
ROAD

C
O

LLE
G

E

RAINHAM RD

WAKEMAN RD

MORTIMER ROAD

Hythe Road
Industrial

Estate

WAY

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

C
LS

ACTON

LANE

SHAF

G
D

N
S

HARLEY RD

CAPLE

RD
RANELAGH

RD

AVENUE
RD

BUCKINGHAMMW
S

SPEZIA RD

SUNBEAM
CR

SHREWSBURY ST

SHREWSBURY ST

ST.

CHARLOTTE

H
U

D
S

O
N

H
A

V
E

LO
C

K
C

L C
L

COMMONWEALTH

AVE

TEMPLEMEAD CL

CROW

WESTVIEW

CL

ST

NURSERY

LANE

BLAKESCL

M
E

TH
W

O
LD

 R
D

S
TA

B
LE

 W
A

Y

W
AY

W
E

B
B

C
L

WENDOVER

RD

ROAD

C
U

M
BER

LAN
D

 PK

R
D

TES

THORNE

FIELD

WEALTH

LAKE

RO
AD

BUCHANAN

GDNS

PRISE

W
AY

M
O

NS
O

N

LU
SH

IN
G

-

TO
N

 R
D

AL
L 

SO
U

LS
'

ROAD

DEPOT ROAD

C
L

M
A

C
K

E
N

ZIE

WHITE CITY

C
L

LA
U

R
E

N
C

E

RIN
G

ROAD

ROAD

M
E

W
S

BRAMBLE

GARDENS

B
A

LLIO
L R

D
BURY

AV
E

SLEY

A
R

C
H

-
D

A
L

E
 C

T

ROSEWOOD

SQUARE

SA
LT

ER

SUNDEWCLOSE

JOSLINGS
CLOSE

CL

PLOUGH CLOSE

LA
N

E

AVE

WEST

ROAD

W
 O

 O
 D

W
O

O
D

B
 L O

 E
 M

 F O
 N

 T E
 I N

C A N E
D U

R O A D

L A N E

A
 3 2 2 0

LA
N

E

NIGHT

RD

HARLESDEN

TUBBS ROAD

HIGH
STREET

SCRUBS

LANE

HARROW

SC
R

U
BS

LAN
E

ROAD

ROAD
HAR

ERN

ROW

NUE

INGALE

Kensington & Chelsea

of Brent

Royal Borough of

London Borough

Hospital
Louise

Princess

Hospital
Hammersmith

Stadium

Linford

Q P R
Football
Ground

Christie

BBC
Television
Centre

Scrubs

Old Oak
Sidings

Sidings

North Pole International Depot

Old Oak Common

H.M. Prison

Wormwood

Westfield
London

O
LD

O
AK

L A N
 E

O
 L D

C
 O

 M
 M

 O
 N

O
 A K

ROAD

SOUTH

AFRIC
A

DORANDO CLOSE

O
 L D

R
 O

 A
 D

O
 A

 K

R
 O

 A
 D

O
 L D

O
 A

 K
C

 O
 M

 M
 O

 N
L A

 N
 E

W A Y
W E S T

B
LO

E
M

F
O

N
TE

IN
 R

O
A

D

Dwg. No. 40500/2/1
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights

2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223
©

COLLEGE PARK & OLD OAK WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 44



White City

Goldhawk

East Acton

Shepherd's
Bush

Road

Wood
Lane

Market

N
ational R

ail

Hammersm
ith

& City 
Line

Central line

H
AR

TSW
O

O
D

JEDDO

KINNEAR RD

RD
SWAINSON

TH
IR

D

B R A Y B R O O KW
 U

 L F S T A N

ERCONW
ALD

FITZNEAL

RD

ABIN
G

ER

WENDELL

H
O

LLE
Y

 R
D

LE
F

R
O

Y
 R

D

M
A

Y
F

IE
LD

 R
D

A
Y

LM
E

R

V A L E T T A

A
G

N
E

S
R

O
A

D

ASHFIELD

TRINITY

O
LD

 O
A

K

LA
N

E
C

O
M

M
O

N

SUNNINGDALE

A
V

E

AVE

FOLIO
T

MAY-

ROAD

NORTH P
OLE

RD
SNARSGATE

H
IG

H
LEVER

ROAD

ROAD

IMRE CL

OLD

CLOSEPARNELL

ELG
IN

A
V

E

SIDE RDGREEN-

CREIGHTON

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

FIE
LD

 R
D

L
E

Y
S

-

W
E

S
TV

IL
LE

 R
O

A
D

R
Y

LE
TT

RCHBASSEIN

P
A

R
K

FL

MS

C
O

S

BALMORAL

R
O

AD

FO

BINDEN

CL

TERASHCHU

CRESCENT

RD

R
O

A
D

V
ILLA

S
A

S
H

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
ID

E
EN

G
D

S
K

E
LM

S
C

O
TT

W
IN

G
A

TE

BRACKENBURY

BENBOW

AD

R
O

A
D

B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

U
R

Y

IFFLE
Y

CARTHEW

GDNS

BEAUCLERC

RD

G
S

ROAD
MELROSE

BATOUM

S
TR

E
E

T
G

R
O

V
E

MS

A
S

TR
O

P

TCE
ASTROP

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E
 R

O
A

D

TC
E CROMWELL

GARDENS

M
E

LR
O

S
E

PRIMULA

LIL

CU

STREET

RD

COURT

ASKHAM

PL

C
U

R
W

E
N

VESPAN

THE

ARMSTRONG

R
D

C
O

W
LE

Y
 R

D
A

V

S
E

C
O

N
D

A
S

K
H

A
M

ASKEW

ST ELMO

R
D

FIE
LD

O
L

D
-

BECKLOW

S
TR

O
N

S
A

GAYFORD

R O A D

E
LIZA

B
E

TH
D

A
V

IS

GDS

A
V

R
D

ROAD

PARK

R
Y

LE
TT

ROAD

RD

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

M
S

LAU EN
C

E

R

LANDOR

WK

OLLGAR CLOSE

CLIFTON

CR

ASKEW

AV C
R

ES

R
O

A
D

W
ALLFLO

YEW

L 
O

 C
 K

STEVENTON

ROAD

A
V

E
N

U
E

FIR
S

T

ROAD

ST

HILARY

WAY

FOXGLOVE

SQTAMARIS
K

H E
 M

RD

R
O

A
D

AYCLIFFE

URNE

S A W L E Y

ALDBO

R
O

A
D

S
T

S
E

D
G

E
FO

R
D

ROAD

CLEMATIS

TREE

R
 O

 A
 D

DAFFODIL

W
ER

VIOLASQ

SU
ND

EWSTREET

MELLITUS

NORBROKE

W
A

LK

ST

STREET

S T R
 E E T

STR
EET

C
A

C
TU

S

STREET

H
ILA

R
Y

W
K

O
N

IA

STREET

HENCHM
AN

STOSMUND

S
 T

 R
 E

 E
 T

B
E

G
-

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

S
W

EST

STREET

BENNELONG

STANLAKE VILLAS

AV
EN

UE

RD

AUSTRALIA

ROAD

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

BATSON

FINDON

ROAD

S
TA

R
FI

E
LD

D
A

V
IS

V
IL

LE

PARK

ROXWELL

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

P
E

R
C

Y
P

E
R

C
Y

R
O

A
D

ROAD

LYCETT

KEITH

R
O

A
D

G
R

O
V

E

C
L

W
E

S
T

-

ROAD

R
O

A
D

GOODWIN

ST

R
O

A
D

RD

LEFFERN

R
D

E
LL

IN
G

H
A

M

ROAD

C
A

TH
N

O
R

M
ELIN

ARD
R

O
A

D

B
O

S

HAM
CONING-

ROAD

V
A

LE
W

ILLO
W

DUNRAVEN

G
R

A
V

E
S

E
N

D

W
O

R
M

H
O

LT

ROAD

ROAD

T
H

O
R

P
E

B
A

N
K

G
A

LLO
W

A
Y

R
D

S
T

P
A

N

ST

BRYONY

ORCH ID

AC

RVE

ST

THE

CU

G
D

S

SY

RVE
M

ILFO
IL

R O A D

A
D

E
LA

ID
E

O
A

K
LA

N
D

S

O
R

M
IS

TO
N

HALSBURY

ROAD

S
T

E
R

IC
A

ROAD

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

R
O

A
D

THORNFIELD

SCOTT'S

RO

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

H
E

TLE
Y

S
T

 S
T

E
P

H
E

N
'S

G
O

D
O

LP
H

IN
R

D
IN

G
E

R
S

O
LL

R
D

A
R

M
IN

G
E

R

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

G'HK

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

A
D

TITMUSS

ROAD

D
E

V
O

N
P

O
R

T

W
A

R
B

E
C

K

R
O

A
D

C
O

V
E

R
D

A
LE

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

C O M M O N W E A L T H A V E

ROAD

ELLERSLIE

AVE

RDETHELDEN

W
A

Y

COMMON-

AUSTRALIA

IN
D

IA

C
A

N
A

D
A

A
B

D
A

LE

LO
FTU

S

CLOSE
BATMAN

STAN

SWINDON ST

TU
N

IS

ROAD

W
A

Y

R
O

A
D

A
U

S
T

R
A

LIA

BENTWORTH

A
R

T
ILLE

R
Y

 LA
N

E

STREET HEATHSTAN

M
A

U
R

IC
E

S
T

S
T

TE
R

R
IC

K

MEWS

M
A

C
F

A
R

LA
N

E

W
O

O
D

-

M
A

R
K

E
T

G
R

O
V

E

S
H

E
P

H
E

R
D

'S

R
IC

H
FO

R
D

B
U

S
H

W
E

LLS

G
ER

R
O

AD

LIM
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

P
E

N
N

A
R

D

S
T

HO
PG

OO
D

R
D

SULGRAVE ROAD

B
A

M
B

-

POPLAR

GDS

BULWER

FR
ITH

V
ILLE

OSE
C

L

W
HITE CITY

EXHIBITIO
N

CLOSE

R
E

LA
Y

 R
O

A
D

ARIEL

L
 A

 T
 I M

 E
 R

SHINFIELD

CAV

EYNHAM

NASCOT

GLEN

STWALL

ST
ST

ROY

ERS-

ST

RO
AD

ST

KINGSBRIDGE

LATIMER

R
 O

 A
 D

PL

NEW ZEALAND

WAY

AVE

STO
W

E

MS

FORGE

MEWS

BECKLO
W

MEW
S

E
D

A
N

SC
T

G
R

A
N

S
D

E
N

R
D

C
O

LLIN
G

B
O

U
R

N
E

R
O

A
D

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

W
A

Y

PEONY

GDS

STOKESLE
Y ST

PIONEER
CLOSE

S
T

A
N

LA
K

E

PO
PL

AR MS

O
S

M
A

N

B
R

A
D

IN
G

C
T

AUGUSTUS

CLOSE

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
U

R
T

CL

BRACEW
ELL RD

WOODMANS

S T Q U I N T I N A V E N U E

C
A

LD
-

PL
ERON

BARLB
Y

D A L G A R N O

BREW
STER G

DS

H
IG

H
LEVER

Q
U

IN
TIN

R
D

GDNS

P
A

N
G

B
O

U
R

N
E

LANE

CRESSY

G
DSST

MARKET
APP

H
U

D
S

O
N

H
A

V
E

LO
C

K
C

L C
L

COMMONWEALTH

AVE

WESTVIEW

CL

ST

NURSERY

LANE

BLAKESCL

W
AY

R
D

WEALTH

LAKE

CH

G
R

E

MEWS

B
R

ID
G

E

M
U

R

C
O

M
B

E

DEPOT ROAD

C
L

M
A

C
K

E
N

ZIE

WHITE CITY

C
L

LA
U

R
E

N
C

E

RIN
G

ROAD

ROAD

WESTVILLE

M
E

W
S

RICH-

FORD

OROUGH

FIELD

BRAMBLE

GARDENS

JEDDO

MEW
S

GLADE
THE

A
R

C
H

-
D

A
L

E
 C

T

ELGIN CL

M
A

R
K

E
T

LA
N

E

ROSEWOOD

SQUARE

AN

SUNDEWCLOSE

JOSLINGS
CLOSE

ASKEW
 C

R
ES

SO
UT

HW
AY

CL
O

SE

CL

H
A

R
TS

RD
W

O
O

D
D'PORT

MS
S'GLERS

HADYN

H
A

V
ILLA

N
D

 M
E

W
S

H
A

D
Y

N
P

K
 M

S

R O A D

V A L E

AVE

U X B R I D G E

W
 O

 O
 D

BECKLO
W

ROAD

C
O

N
IN

G
H

A
M

R
O

A
D

H A M
 M

 E R S M
 I T H

A S K E W

W
O

O
D

B
 L O

 E
 M

 F O
 N

 T E
 I N

R O A D

C A N E
D U

R O A D

L A N E

LA
N

E

SCRUBS

LANE

NUE

A S K E W

EM
LYN

R
O

AD

Em
lyn

G
ardens

Hospital
Hammersmith

Stadium

Linford

Q P R
Football
Ground

Christie

BBC
Television
Centre

Scrubs

H.M. Prison

Wormwood

ROAD

R O

ASH

G
R

.

C
H

U
R

C
H

RD

ROAD

S
T

 E
LM

O
R

D

ROAD

SOUTH

AFRIC
A

DORANDO CLOSE

GOLD

O
 L D

R
 O

 A
 D

O
 A

 K

U X B R

R
 O

 A
 D

SHEPHERD'S
S

U
LG

R
A

V
E

O
 L D

O
 A

 K
C

 O
 M

 M
 O

 N
L A

 N
 E

I D G E
A D

HAWK

W A Y
W E S T

GOLDHAWK ROAD

B
LO

E
M

F
O

N
TE

IN
 R

O
A

D

Dwg. No. 40500/2/2
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

WORMHOLT & WHITE CITY WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 45



White City

Goldhawk

Latimer

Shepherd's
Bush

Road

Road

Shepherd's
Bush

Wood
Lane

Market

N
ational R

ail

Hammersm
ith

& City 
Line

ROAD

ROAD

IMRE CL

HEM

OLD

CLOSEPARNELL

ELG
IN

A
V

E

SIDE RDGREEN-

CREIGHTON

ELSHAM

HOFLAND

UPPER A
DDIS

ON
LORNE

CRE

P
L

Q U E E N S D A L E

GDS

MARY

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

ROADROAD
ANLEY RDS

Y
C

A
M

O
R

E

F
IE

LD
 R

D
L

E
Y

S
-

AMOR

R
O

A
DD

O
R

V
IL

LE

W
IN

G
A

TE

WELLESLEY

AV

R
D

C
R

BRACKENBURY

BENBOW

B
A

N
IM

PERRERS

FURBER

D
A

LL
IN

G S
TR

E
E

T

ST

B
R

A
D

M
O

R
E

 P
K

S
TR

E
E

T

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
D

R
O

S
S

N
A

S
M

Y
T

H

AD

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
TH

E
W

B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

U
R

Y

HEBRON

TA
B

O
RR

O
A

D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

S
O

U
TH

E
R

TO
N

ADIE

MARCO

RD

RD

IFFLE
Y

CARTHEW

COULTER

VILLAS

GDNS

BEAUCLERC

ROAD

A
G

A
TE

RD

G
S

ROAD

BROOK

STERNDALE

DEWHURST

NETHERWOOD

MELROSE

BATOUM

LENA

TRUSSLEY

O
V

E
R

S
TO

N
E

RD

RD

S
TR

E
E

T
M

EW
S

G
R

O
V

E

MS

A
S

TR
O

P

TCE
ASTROP

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E
 R

O
A

D
TC

E

M
S

B
A

R
B

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
 B

US
H

CROMWELL

GARDENS

R
D

GDNS

LO
R

IS

M
E

LR
O

S
E

GR

GDNS

CAIT
HNESS

DAN

IRVING

BLYTHE

BOLIN
GBROKE

U
ST

IN
E

HAARLEM

BROOK
GREEN

APPLEGARTH

GA
RT

H

ROAD

R
O

A
D

R
D

LAKESID
E

R
O

AD

ROAD

RE

C
EY

LO
N

M
A

S
B

R
O

'

ROAD

AY
NHO

E

SO
UL-ROAD
DERN ROAD

MILSON

FIELDING

V
A

LE
 T

E
R

S
P

R
IN

G
-

STREET

ROAD

RD

R
O

AD

R
O

AD

RD
ROAD

BENNELONG

STANLAKE VILLAS

RD

AUSTRALIA

ROAD

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

FINDON

GOODWIN

RD

LEFFERN

R
D

ROAD

C
A

TH
N

O
R

M
ELIN

ARD
R

O
A

D

B
O

S

ROAD

R O A D

O
A

K
LA

N
D

S

O
R

M
IS

TO
N

HALSBURY

ROAD

ROAD

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

R
O

A
D

THORNFIELD

SCOTT'S

RO

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

H
E

TLE
Y

S
T

 S
T

E
P

H
E

N
'S

G
O

D
O

LP
H

IN
R

D
IN

G
E

R
S

O
LL

R
D

A
R

M
IN

G
E

R

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

G'HK

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

A
D

TITMUSS

ROAD

D
E

V
O

N
P

O
R

T

W
A

R
B

E
C

K

R
O

A
D

C
O

V
E

R
D

A
LE

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

C O M M O N W E A L T H A V E

ROAD

ELLERSLIE

AVE

RDETHELDEN

W
A

Y

COMMON-

AUSTRALIA

IN
D

IA

C
A

N
A

D
A

A
B

D
A

LE

LO
FTU

S

CLOSE
BATMAN

STAN

SWINDON ST

TU
N

IS

ROAD

W
A

Y

R
O

A
D

A
U

S
T

R
A

LIA

BENTWORTH M
A

U
R

IC
E

S
T

S
T

TE
R

R
IC

K

R
D

SHALFLEET DR

B
 R

 A
 M

 L
 E

 Y

WESTWICK

MINFORD

ST

TADMOR

S
ILV

E
R

 R
O

A
D

M
A

C
F

A
R

LA
N

E

W
O

O
D

-

M
A

R
K

E
T

G
R

O
V

E

S
H

E
P

H
E

R
D

'S

R
IC

H
FO

R
D

B
U

S
H

W
E

LLS

G
ER

R
O

AD

LIM
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

P
E

N
N

A
R

D
S

T

HO
PG

OO
D

R
D

SULGRAVE ROAD

B
A

M
B

-

POPLAR

GDS

GROVE

BULWER
ST

S
T

IN
E

A
LD

C
A

X
TO

N
R

D

FR
ITH

V
ILLE

OSE
C

L

W
HITE CITY

EXHIBITIO
N

CLOSE

R
E

LA
Y

 R
O

A
D

ARIEL

WAY

RD

CHARECROFT WAY

R
O

C
K

LE
Y

GDNS

GARDENS

ROAD

S
TSTERNE

GDNS

SINCLAIR

W
O

O
DSTO

CKW
A

Y

GRO

C
LEAR

W
ATER

YA
L

TC
E

R
O

CR
R

O
Y

A
L

MS

V
ILLA

S

A
N

N
'S

R
 O

 A
 D

F
 R

 E
 S

 T
 O

 N

BAR
D

STEVESHAM

RD

S
W

A
N

S
-

R
DSQ

WILSHAM

ST

PLSTONELEIGH

STO
N

ELEIG
H

TREADGOLD

AN
SLEIG

H
A

N
N

'S
PL

ST

ST

WHITCHURCHRD

SIR
D

AR

ALE
D

AV
O

N

BOMORE

G
R

E
N

FE
LL

ST

SHINFIELD
OXFORD

R
 O

 A
 D

R
 O

 A
 D

DARFIE
LD

WAYNFLETE

WAY

SQ
STREET

BLECHYNDEN

KINGS

SILCHESTER

B
R

A
M

E
LE

Y
R

O
A

D

RD

CLOSE

G
R

A
TT

O
N

H
A

ZL
IT

T

ROAD

RUSSELL GARDENS MEW
S

RD

R
D

P
O

R
TE

N

R
D

RD

SIN
C

LAIR

ROAD

Q
U

E
E

N
S

D
A

LE

AD
D

ISO
N

H
 O

 L
 L

 A
 N

 D

ENT

GDNS

PL

ADDISON

SC

A
V

E
N

U
E

STREET

GARDENS
DARNLEY

R
O

A
D

RUNCORNP
A

R
KP

A
R

K
P

L
G

O
R

H
A

M

PL

PL

PL
HESKETHR

O
A

D
TH

R
E

S
H

E
R

S

P
L

A
V

O
N

D
A

LE

RD

W
ALM

ER

STDULF
ORD

NEW ZEALAND

WAY

AVE

Q
U

E
E

N
S

C
R

E
S

E
N

T

K
IN

G
S

D
A

LE

G
AR

D
EN

S

STO
W

E

MS

FORGE

MEWS

C
O

LLIN
G

B
O

U
R

N
E

R
O

A
D

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

W
A

Y

PIONEER
CLOSE

S
T

A
N

LA
K

E

PO
PL

AR MS

MILLER'S

WAY

O
S

M
A

N

R
D

BLYTHE
MS

B
E

R
G

-
M

S

B
R

A
D

IN
G

TC
E

C
T

AUGUSTUS

CLOSE

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
U

R
T

CL

CRESSY

R
O

A
D

G
DSST

MARKET
APP

VERITYCL

CHARLOTTE

MS

R
D

C
LO

S
E

H
U

D
S

O
N

H
A

V
E

LO
C

K
C

L C
L

COMMONWEALTH

AVE

CROW R
D

S
TA

B
LE

 W
A

Y

R
D

THORNE

DOWN

WEALTH

LAKE

C
O

M
B

E

CLO
SEDGE

BARTL
E

ROAD
C

O
W

LIN
G

C
LO

S
E

BR
I

DEPOT ROAD

C
L

M
A

C
K

E
N

ZIE

WHITE CITY

C
L

LA
U

R
E

N
C

E

RIN
G

ST JAMES'S

ROAD

TER

ROAD

WESTVILLE

M
E

W
S

RICH-

ST
FORD

OROUGH

KIN
G

H
AM

GARDENS

AP
PL

E-
RO

AD

ROAD

SA
M

UE
L'S

CL
OS

E

GLADE
THE

A
R

C
H

-
D

A
L

E
 C

T

ELGIN CL

M
A

R
K

E
T

LA
N

E

DALE
JOSLINGS

CLOSE

SO
UT

HW
AY

CL
O

SE

H
U

N
T

CLOSE

QUEENSDALE

CRES

CL

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 P

LA
CE

BOURBON

LANE

BUSH PLACESHEPHERD'SD'PORT
MS

S'GLERSH
A

V
ILLA

N
D

 M
E

W
S

S
H

E
P

H
E

U X B R I D G E

W
 O

 O
 D

BLYTHE

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

ROAD

C
O

N
IN

G
H

A
M

R
O

A
D

LOWER ADDISON

ADD

PADD

H O L L A N D

H O L L A N D

W E S T W A Y

H A M
 M

 E R S M
 I T H

W
ICK

ROAD

ENS

G R O V E

B
U

S
H

R
O

AD

R O

B
 L O

 E
 M

 F O
 N

 T E
 I N

R O A D

L A N E

A
 3 2 2 0

LA
N

E

R
D

'S

A D

GARDENS

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

Woodford

Court

CourtBush

Hospital

Q P R
Football
Ground

BBC
Television
Centre

Thames
Water
Tower

Westfield
London

ROAD

ALDENSLEY

RD

RD

ROAD RDD
U

N
S

A
N

Y

A
U

G

FA
R

O
E

ROAD

MILSON

ROAD

SOUTH

AFRIC
A

DORANDO CLOSE

H
AN

SAR
D

 M
EW

S

N
O

R
LA

N
D

O
LA

F

ST

COMBE

MORTIMER

R
 O

 A
 D

SHEPHERD'S

BUSH
GREEN

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E

HAWK

W A Y
W E S T

BU
SH

 R
OAD

GOLDHAWK ROAD

B
LO

E
M

F
O

N
TE

IN
 R

O
A

D

Bush
Shepherd's

Dwg. No. 40500/2/3
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

SHEPHERDS BUSH GREEN WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 46



T

Park
Ravenscourt

Stamford
BrookTurnham

Green

Town Hall
Hammersmith

District Line

H
AR

TSW
O

O
D

JEDDO

KINNEAR RD

RD
SWAINSON

TH
IR

D

RD

SOUTHFIELD

BLENHEIM RD

ADDISON GR

ABIN
G

ER

FA
IR

FA
X

P
R

IO
R

Y
AV

WHELLOCK

RD

BLANDFORD

W
O

O
D

ST
O

C
K

R
O

A
D

RD

FLANDERS

BATH

R
D

R
O

M
A

N

ROAD

R
D

LO
N

S
D

A
LE

R
O

AD

WENDELL

M
A

P
LE

R
D

R
E

C
H

T

PK MS
ESSEX

BEECH

A
V

AVE

H
O

LLE
Y

 R
D

LE
F

R
O

Y
 R

D

M
A

Y
F

IE
LD

 R
D

COBBOLD A
Y

LM
E

R

V A L E T T A

A
G

N
E

S

R
D

R
O

A
D

C
T

G
LE

N
D

U
N

B
R

O
M

Y
A

R
D

BOWES ROAD

R
D

G
LE

N
D

U
N

ASHFIELD

A
V

E
N

U
E

TRINITY

O
LD

 O
A

K

LA
N

E
C

O
M

M
O

N

WAY

MAY-

ROAD

IMRE CL

S
T

BROOK

OLD

CLOSEPARNELL

ELG
IN

A
V

E

SIDE RDGREEN-

CREIGHTON

F
IE

LD
 R

D
L

E
Y

S
-

W
E

S
TV

IL
LE

 R
O

A
D

R
Y

LE
TT

RCHBASSEIN

P
A

R
K

CT

RAVENS-

M
E

R
T

O
N

 A
V

R
D

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H

A
IR

E
D

A
LE

C
LE

V
E

LA
N

D
 A

V

N
E

TH
E

R
A

V
O

N

S
T

 P
E

T
E

R
'S

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SQUARE

CROFT

M
S

G
R

O
V

E

BLACK LION

B
R

O
O

K

VAUGHAN AV

RDPALGRAVE

SOUTH

PR
EBEN

D

P
LE

Y
D

E
LL

A
V

SIDE

S
TA

M
FO

R
D

FL

MS

C
O

S

BALMORAL

R
O

AD

FO

BINDEN

CL

GDNS
STAMFORD

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

OURT

A
V

E
N

U
E

S
Q

U
A

R
E

TERASHCHU

CRESCENT

ROAD

RD

RD

R
O

A
D

V
ILLA

S
A

S
H

C
H

U
R

C
H

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

GDS

THERESA R

S
TA

N
D

IS
H

ST
P

E
T

E
R

'S

HAMLET

H
A

M
LE

T

G
D

S

B
E

A
V

O
R

P
A

R
K

R
IV

E
R

C
O

U
R

T

P
LA

C
E

V
E

N
C

O
U

R
T

W
E

LTJE

R
A

V
E

N
S

-

A
V

E

C
O

U
R

T

H
O

G
 LA

N
E

H
A

M
P

S
H

IR
E

RAVENSCOURT

PLACE

SI
D

E
EN

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

GARDENS

SQ

G
D

S
K

E
LM

S
C

O
TT

R
O

A
D

D
O

R
V

IL
LE

W
IN

G
A

TE

WELLESLEY

AV

R
D

C
R

LA
M

IN
G

TO
N

REDMORE RD

R
O

A
D

GLENTHORNE

M
S

FE
LG

A
TE

C
R

O
M

W
E

LL

ALBION

P
L

R
D

MEWS

A
R

G
Y

LE
P

L P
L

S
TR

E
E

T

BRACKENBURY

BENBOW

B
A

N
IM

PERRERS

RAYNHAM

ATWOOD

RD

FURBER

D
A

LL
IN

G S
TR

E
E

T

ST

B
R

A
D

M
O

R
E

 P
KRD

R
O

A
D

S
TR

E
E

T

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
D

R
O

S
S

N
A

S
M

Y
T

H

AD

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
TH

E
W

B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

U
R

Y

TA
B

O
RR

O
A

D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

CARTHEW

COULTER

VILLAS

GDNS

LIL

CU

STREET

RD

COURT

ASKHAM

PL

C
U

R
W

E
N

VESPAN

THE

ARMSTRONG

R
D

C
O

W
LE

Y
 R

D
A

V

S
E

C
O

N
D

A
S

K
H

A
M

ASKEW

ST ELMO

R
D

FIE
LD

O
L

D
-

BECKLOW

S
TR

O
N

S
A

GAYFORD

R O A D

E
LIZA

B
E

TH
D

A
V

IS

GDS

A
V

R
D

ROAD

PARK

R
Y

LE
TT

ROAD

RD

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

M
S

LAU EN
C

E

R

LANDOR

WK

OLLGAR CLOSE

CLIFTON

CR

ASKEW

AV C
R

ES

R
O

A
D

W
ALLFLO

YEW

L 
O

 C
 K

STEVENTON

ROAD

A
V

E
N

U
E

FIR
S

T

ROAD

ST

HILARY

WAY

FOXGLOVE

SQTAMARIS
K

H E
 M

RD

R
O

A
D

AYCLIFFE

URNE

S A W L E Y

ALDBO

R
O

A
D

S
T

S
E

D
G

E
FO

R
D

ROAD

CLEMATIS

TREE

R
 O

 A
 D

DAFFODIL

W
ER

VIOLASQ

SU
ND

EWSTREET

AV
EN

UE

RD

AUSTRALIA

ROAD

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

G
R

O
V

E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

BATSON

FINDON

ROAD

S
TA

R
FI

E
LD

D
A

V
IS

V
IL

LE

PARK

ROXWELL

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

P
E

R
C

Y
P

E
R

C
Y

R
O

A
D

ROAD

LYCETT

KEITH

R
O

A
D

G
R

O
V

E

C
L

W
E

S
T

-

ROAD

R
O

A
D

GOODWIN

ST

R
O

A
D

RD

LEFFERN

R
D

E
LL

IN
G

H
A

M

ROAD

C
A

TH
N

O
R

M
ELIN

ARD
R

O
A

D

B
O

S

HAM
CONING-

ROAD

V
A

LE
W

ILLO
W

DUNRAVEN

G
R

A
V

E
S

E
N

D

W
O

R
M

H
O

LT

ROAD

ROAD

TH
O

R
P

E
B

A
N

K

G
A

LLO
W

A
Y

R
D

S
T

P
A

N

ST

BRYONY

ORCH ID

AC

RVE

ST

THE

CU

G
D

S

SY

RVE

M
ILFO

IL

R O A D

A
D

E
LA

ID
E

O
A

K
LA

N
D

S

O
R

M
IS

TO
N

HALSBURY

ROAD

S
T

E
R

IC
A

ROAD

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

THORNFIELD

SCOTT'S

RO

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

H
E

TLE
Y

S
T

 S
T

E
P

H
E

N
'S

G
O

D
O

LP
H

IN
R

D
IN

G
E

R
S

O
LL

R
D

A
R

M
IN

G
E

R

G'HK

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

A
D

D
E

V
O

N
P

O
R

T

W
A

R
B

E
C

K

R
O

A
D

ROAD

C O M M O N W E A L T H A V E

ROAD

ELLERSLIE

AVE

RDETHELDEN

W
A

Y
COMMON-

AUSTRALIA

IN
D

IA

C
A

N
A

D
A

LO
FTU

S

BATMAN

ROAD

W
A

Y

R
O

A
D

A
U

S
T

R
A

LIA

NEW ZEALAND

WAY

AVE

STO
W

E

AITEN

P
L

C
H

A
M

B
O

N

PL

ALBION

M
S

MS

FORGE

MEWS

BECKLO
W

MEW
S

E
D

A
N

SC
T

G
R

A
N

S
D

E
N

R
D

C
O

LLIN
G

B
O

U
R

N
E

R
O

A
D

B
LO

E
M

FO
N

TE
IN

W
A

Y

PEONY

GDS

B
R

A
D

IN
G

TC
E

C
T

AUGUSTUS

CLOSE

H
O

M
E

FIE
LD

E
N

N
IS

M
O

R
E

A
V

U
P

H
A

M
P

A
R

K

TH
O

R
N

TO
N

A
V

R
A

V
E

N
S

M
E

D
E

W
A

YR
O

A
D

W
O

O
D

ST
O

C
K

RD

Q
U

E
E

N

RUPERT RD

A
N

N
E

'S
G

D
N

S

TH
E

A
V

E
N

U
E

GREENEND

RD

SALT
COATS

RD
HAMILT

ON
RD

H
A

W
K

S
-

R
D

H
EA

D

RD

CANHAM RD

S
TA

N
LE

Y
G

A
R

D
E

N
S

BRADFORD

RD

OAK
WAY

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

C
LS

EAST

ACTON

LANE

B
LA

C
K

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

ROAD

RD

FIELDING

RD

CRESSY

LA
R

C
H

A
V

D
U

 C
R

O
S

R
D

EMLYN
GNS

H
U

D
S

O
N

H
A

V
E

LO
C

K
C

L C
L

COMMONWEALTH

AVE

WEALTH

CH

G
R

E

MEWS

B
R

ID
G

E

ENSCRAV

WEST

S
T

M
U

R

D
O

C
O

M
B

E

RD

M
A

C
K

E
N

ZIE

C
L

LA
U

R
E

N
C

E

WESTVILLE

PETER'S

W
O

RC
E-

DR

PETER'S

ST
ER

ST ST

BLENHEIM RD

VILLAS

FIELD

BRAMBLE

GARDENS

JEDDO

MEW
S

GLADE
THE

IN
V

E
R

M
E

A
D

C
LO

S
E

A
R

C
H

-
D

A
L

E
 C

T

ELGIN CL

G
A

LE
N

A

AN
RD

SUNDEWCLOSE

JOSLINGS
CLOSE

ASKEW
 C

R
ES

CL

AM
BER W

AY

H
A

R
TS

RD
W

O
O

D

D'PORT
MS

S'GLERS

HADYN

H
A

V
ILLA

N
D

 M
E

W
S

H
A

D
Y

N
P

K
 M

S

R O A D

CHISWICK

V A L E

E
M

LY
N

R
O

A
D

LA
R

D
E

N

AVE

T H E

WEST

K I N G

K I N G

U X B R I D G E

R
O

AD

ST
UD

LA
ND

ST

BECKLO
W

ROAD

C
O

N
IN

G
H

A
M

R
O

A
D

PADD

HIGH ROAD

RO
AD

S T R

W
ICK

ROAD

ENS

GLENTHORNE

R 
O

 A
 D

A S K E W

B
 L O

 E
 M

 F O
 N

 T E
 I N

R O A D

ERN

E E T

NUE

A S K E W

EM
LYN

R
O

AD

LA
R

D
E

N

of Ealing

of Hounslow
London Borough

London Borough

Gardens
Flora

Em
lyn

G
ardens

The
Ravenscourt Park

Hospital

Q P R
Football
Ground

MULTI

W
ARPLE

W
AY

ROAD

R O

ALDENSLEY

ASH

STAM

G
R

O
V

E

BROOK

FORD

G
R

.

C
H

U
R

C
H

N
IG

E
L

ROAD
S

T
 E

LM
O

R
D

SOUTH

AFRIC
A

GOLD
D 

A 
L 

L 
I N

 G

O
 L D

R
 O

 A
 D

O
 A

 K

U X B R

R
 O

 A
 D

I D G E
A D

HAWK

GO
LD

H
AW

K

GOLDHAWK ROAD

B
LO

E
M

F
O

N
TE

IN
 R

O
A

D

GLENTHORNE ROAD

Dwg. No. 40500/2/4
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

ASKEW WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

Produced by the Land & Asset Survey Team

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 47



T

RIVER THAMES

Park
Ravenscourt

Stamford
BrookTurnham

Green

Town Hall
Hammersmith

District Line

H
AR

TSW
O

O
D

JEDDO

KINNEAR RD

RD
SWAINSON

RD

BLENHEIM RD

ADDISON GR

ABIN
G

ER

FA
IR

FA
X

P
R

IO
R

Y
AV

W
O

O
D

S
TO

C
K

R
O

A
D

RD

FLANDERS

BATH

R
D

R
O

M
A

N

ROAD

R
D

LO
N

S
D

A
LE

R
O

AD

WENDELL

H
O

LLE
Y

 R
D

LE
F

R
O

Y
 R

D

M
A

Y
F

IE
LD

 R
D

COBBOLD A
Y

LM
E

R

V A L E T T A

R
D

R
O

A
D

WAY

MAY-

ROAD

S
T

BROOK

OLD

CLOSEPARNELL
ELG

IN

A
V

E

SIDE RDGREEN-

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

FIE
LD

 R
D

L
E

Y
S

-

W
E

S
TV

IL
LE

 R
O

A
D

R
Y

LE
TT

RCHBASSEIN

P
A

R
K

CT

RAVENS-

LIO
N

M
E

R
T

O
N

 A
V

R
D

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

A
D

A
IR

E
D

A
LE

C
LE

V
E

LA
N

D
 A

V

N
E

TH
E

R
A

V
O

N

LIO
N

S
T

 P
E

T
E

R
'S

S
Q

U
A

R
E

S
T

 P
E

T
E

R
'S

 S
Q

ST PETER'S SQ

GS

M
AL

L

GR

BRITISH

E
Y

O
T

BERESTEDE

RD

G
S

E
Y

O
T

GS

TERHAMMERSMITH

VERBENA

LA

SQUARE

CROFT

SQ

M
S

G
R

O
V

E

BLACK LION

B
R

O
O

K

VAUGHAN AV

RDPALGRAVE

SOUTH

PR
EBEN

D

P
LE

Y
D

E
LL

A
V

SIDE

S
TA

M
FO

R
D

FL

MS

C
O

S

BALMORAL

R
O

AD

FO

BINDEN

CL

GDNS
STAMFORD

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

OURT

A
V

E
N

U
E

S
Q

U
A

R
E

TERASHCHU

CRESCENT

ROAD

RD

RD

R
O

A
D

V
ILLA

S
A

S
H

C
H

U
R

C
H

LONSDALE

RD

GLENTHAM

LILLIAN

ARU
ROAD

S
T

 H
IL

D
A

'S
 R

D

OADR

RIVERVIEWCLAVE

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

UPPER

LA
N

EST PETER'S

S
O

U
TH

C
O

U
R

T
R

D
SAM

ELS PLACENAPIERLORD

LA
N

E
O

IL M
ILL

GDS

THERESA R

S
TA

N
D

IS
H

ST
P

E
T

E
R

'S

HAMLET

H
A

M
LE

T

G
D

S

B
E

A
V

O
R

P
A

R
K

R
IV

E
R

C
O

U
R

T

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

MALL

P
LA

C
E

V
E

N
C

O
U

R
T

W
E

LTJE

R
A

V
E

N
S

-

A
V

E

C
O

U
R

T

H
O

G
 LA

N
E

H
A

M
P

S
H

IR
E

RAVENSCOURT

PLACE

S
ID

E
EN

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

GARDENS

SQ

G
D

S
K

E
LM

S
C

O
TT

R
O

A
D

D
O

R
V

IL
LE

W
IN

G
A

TE

WELLESLEY

AV

R
D

C
R

LA
M

IN
G

TO
N

REDMORE RD

R
O

A
D

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

GLENTHORNE

LOWER

RIVERSIDE
GDS

M
S

FE
LG

A
TE

N
IG

EL
 P

LA
YF

AI
R

A
V

C
R

O
M

W
E

LL
ALBION

P
L

H
O

L
-

S
T

C
O

M
B

E

R
D

MEWS

M
A

C
B

E
TH

GA
RD

EN
S

MALL

GVE

RUTLAND

M
AL

L
RD

PLACE

G
R

O
V

E

A
R

G
Y

LE
P

L

DOWN

A
S

P
E

N
P

L
D

IM
E

S

S
TR

E
E

T

BRACKENBURY

BENBOW

B
A

N
IM

PERRERS

RAYNHAM

ATWOOD

RD

FURBER

D
A

LL
IN

G S
TR

E
E

T

ST

B
R

A
D

M
O

R
E

 P
KRD

R
O

A
D

S
TR

E
E

T

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
D

R
O

S
S

N
A

S
M

Y
T

H

AD

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
TH

E
W

B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

U
R

Y

TA
B

O
RR

O
A

D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

IFFLE
Y

CARTHEW

COULTER

VILLAS

GDNS G
S

PL

C
U

R
W

E
N

VESPAN

R
D

ASKEW

ST ELMO

R
D

FIE
LD

O
L

D
-

BECKLOW

S
TR

O
N

S
A

GAYFORD

R O A D R
D

ROAD

PARK

R
Y

LE
TT

ROAD

RD

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

M
S

LAU EN
C

E

R

LANDOR

WK

CR

ROAD

BATSON

FINDON

ROAD

S
TA

R
FI

E
LD

D
A

V
IS

V
IL

LE

PARK

ROXWELL

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

P
E

R
C

Y
P

E
R

C
Y

R
O

A
D

ROAD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

GOODWIN

ST

R
O

A
D

RD

LEFFERN

R
D

E
LL

IN
G

H
A

M

ROAD

C
A

TH
N

O
R

M
ELIN

ARD
R

O
A

D

ROAD

THORNFIELD

SCOTT'S

RO

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

S
T

 S
T

E
P

H
E

N
'S

G
O

D
O

LP
H

IN

R
O

A
D

ROAD

G'HK

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

A
D

ROAD

D
E

V
O

N
P

O
R

T

Hammersmith
Pier

STO
W

E

BR
ITI

SH

MUL-

BERRY

PL

MILLER'SCT

GR
OV

E
ST

H

AITEN

P
L

C
H

A
M

B
O

N

PL

NORTH

ALBION

M
S

MS

FORGE

MEWS

BECKLO
W

MEW
S

E
D

A
N

SC
T

G
R

A
N

S
D

E
N

R
D

PRINCE'S

MEWS

GS

VER-
NTHBENA

CHISWIC
K

B
R

A
D

IN
G

TC
E

C
T

AUGUSTUS

CLOSE

C
AS

TE
LN

AU

G
LE

N
TH

A
M

G
D

N
S

CHIS
W

IC
K

MALL

NETHERAVEN
RD

CORNWALL GVEBALFERN
GVEASH

GROVE

WILTON
AVE

BROOK

RD BEVERLEY

ROAD

H
O

M
E

FIE
LD

R
O

A
D

C
H

IS
W

IC
K

LAN
E

E
N

N
IS

M
O

R
E

A
V

U
P

H
A

M
P

A
R

K

TH
O

R
N

TO
N

A
V

R
A

V
E

N
S

M
E

D
E

W
A

Y

STH

R
O

A
D

LANE
SOUTH

W
O

O
D

ST
O

C
K

RD

RUPERT RD

B
LA

C
K

LA
N

E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S
ROAD

CRESSY

R
O

A
D

EMLYN
GNS

MYLNE
CL

B
LA

C
K

PASS

RD

CH

G
R

E

ENSCRAV

WEST

S
T

CRAN-

BOURNE

RING

M
U

R

CHIS

RD

WESTVILLE

PETER'S

DR

PETER'S

ST
ER

ST ST

VILLAS

AV
E

DORCHESTER GVE

MAWSON

LANE

FIELD

JEDDO

MEW
S

WICK

GLADE
THE

IN
V

E
R

M
E

A
D

C
LO

S
E

ELGIN CL

G
A

LE
N

A

AN
RD

SO
UT

HW
AY

AM
BER W

AY

H
A

R
TS

RD
W

O
O

D

HADYN

H
A

V
ILLA

N
D

 M
E

W
S

H
A

D
Y

N
P

K
 M

S

R O A D

CHISWICK

E
M

LY
N

R
O

A
D

LA
R

D
E

N

K I N G

K I N G
R

O
AD

ST
UD

LA
ND

ST

BECKLO
W

C
O

N
IN

G
H

A
M

R
O

A
D

PADD

HIGH ROAD

RO
AD

HA
MMER

SM
ITH

S T R

G R E A T W E S T

W
ICK

ROAD

ENS

R O A D

GLENTHORNE

R 
O

 A
 D

A S K E W

R O A D

E E T

GREAT WEST ROAD

EM
LYN

R
O

AD

LA
R

D
E

N

Gardens
Flora

Em
lyn

G
ardens

The
Ravenscourt Park

Hospital

ROAD

ALDENSLEY

ASH

STAM

B
R

IT
IS

H
G

R
O

V
E

BROOK

FORD

G
R

.

C
H

U
R

C
H

N
IG

E
L

P
LA

Y
FA

IR
 A

V
E

ROAD

GOLD

D 
A 

L 
L 

I N
 G

HAWK

GO
LD

H
AW

K

GOLDHAWK ROAD

GLENTHORNE ROAD

Dwg. No. 40500/2/5
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

RAVENSCOURT PARK WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 48



T

THAMES

R
IV

E
R

Goldhawk

Hammer-
smith

Park
Ravenscourt

Baron's Court

Road

Ham-
mersmith

Town Hall
Hammersmith

District LineWORLIDGE ST

RD

S
T

HEM

CLOSEPARNELL

ELG
IN

A
V

E

SIDE RDGREEN-

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

ROADROAD
ANLEY RDS

Y
C

A
M

O
R

E

F
IE

LD
 R

D
L

E
Y

S
-

AMOR

R
O

A
D

KILMARSH

RD

GLENTHAM

LILLIAN

S
T

 H
IL

D
A

'S
 R

D

OADR

RIVERVIEWCLAVE

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
O

U
R

T

UPPER

R
IV

E
R

C
O

U
R

T

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

MALL

W
E

LTJE

A
V

E

C
O

U
R

T

H
O

G
 LA

N
E

H
A

M
P

S
H

IR
E

RAVENSCOURT

PLACE

R
O

A
D

D
O

R
V

IL
LE

W
IN

G
A

TE

WELLESLEY

AV

R
D

C
R

LA
M

IN
G

TO
N

REDMORE RD

R
O

A
D

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

GLENTHORNE

LOWER

RIVERSIDE
GDS

M
S

FE
LG

A
TE

N
IG

EL
 P

LA
YF

AI
R

A
V

C
R

O
M

W
E

LL

ALBION

P
L

H
O

L
-

S
T

C
O

M
B

E

R
D

MEWS

A
V

E

BR
ID

G
E

M
A

C
B

E
TH

GA
RD

EN
S

MALL

GVE

RUTLAND

M
AL

L
RD

B
R

ID
G

E
V

IE
W

PLACE

G
R

O
V

E

A
R

G
Y

LE
P

L

DOWN

A
S

P
E

N
P

L
D

IM
E

S

S
TR

E
E

T

LE
A

M
O

R
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BRACKENBURY

BENBOW

B
A

N
IM

PERRERS

RAYNHAM

ATWOOD

RD

FURBER

D
A

LL
IN

G S
TR

E
E

T

ST

B
R

A
D

M
O

R
E

 P
KRD

R
O

A
D

S
TR

E
E

T

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
D

R
O

S
S

N
A

S
M

Y
T

H

AD

R
O

A
D

C
A

R
TH

E
W

B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

U
R

Y

HEBRON

TA
B

O
RR

O
A

D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

S
O

U
TH

E
R

TO
N

IFFLE
Y

RD

ADIE

MARCO

RD

RD

IFFLE
Y

CARTHEW

COULTER

VILLAS

GDNS

BEAUCLERC

ROAD

A
G

A
TE

RD

G
S

ROAD

ST JAMES

BERYL

PARFREY STREET

ST DUNSTAN'S

ST

RD

LOCHALINE

WINSLOW

DISTILLERY

ROAD

ST
PLAYFAIR

C
LAYBR

O
O

K

M
ARG

RAVINE

GASTEIN

CLAXTON

LU
R

G
A

N
 A

V

GROVE

BROOK

STERNDALE

DEWHURST

NETHERWOOD

BISCAYYELDHAM

LU
X

E
M

B
U

R
G

W
A

LK

CHANCELLORS

TERRIVER

CRISP ST

BLACK'S

A
N

G
E

L

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

B
U

TE

MELROSE

BATOUM

LENA

TRUSSLEY

O
V

E
R

S
TO

N
E

RD

RD
S

TR
E

E
T

M
EW

S
G

R
O

V
E

MS

A
S

TR
O

P

TCE
ASTROP

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E
 R

O
A

D

TC
E

M
S

B
A

R
B

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
 B

US
H

CROMWELL

GARDENS

R
D

GDNS

LO
R

IS

M
E

LR
O

S
E

GR

GDNS

GREAT CHURCH

ROAD

R
O

W
A

NTE
R

R
A

C
E

G
AR

D
EN

S
W

O
LVER

TO
N

MARGRAVINE
C

O
LE

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

CLOSE
WATERHOUSE

CAIT
HNESS

DAN

IRVING

BLYTHE

BOLIN
GBROKE

U
ST

IN
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

HAARLEM

BROOK
GREEN

GREEN

R
O

A
D

APPLEGARTH

GA
RT

H

ROAD

R
O

A
D

R
D

LAKESID
E

R
O

AD

ROAD

RE

M
A

S
B

R
O

'

ROAD

GIR
DLE

RS

AY
NHO

E

SO
UL-ROAD
DERN

MILSON

FIELDING

V
A

LE
 T

E
R

S
P

R
IN

G
-

STREET

ROAD

RD

RD

ROAD

GOODWIN

ST

R
O

A
D

RD

LEFFERN

E
LL

IN
G

H
A

M
ROAD

C
A

TH
N

O
R

M
ELIN

ARD
R

O
A

D

SCOTT'S

RO

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

G'HK

A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

A
D

TITMUSS

ROAD

WESTWICK

MINFORD

W
O

O
D

-

G
R

O
V

E
S

H
E

P
H

E
R

D
'S

R
IC

H
FO

R
D

B
U

S
H

W
E

LLS

G
ER

R
O

AD

P
E

N
N

A
R

D

SULGRAVE ROAD

B
A

M
B

-

POPLAR

GDS

GROVE

CHARECROFT WAY

R
O

C
K

LE
Y

GDNS

GARDENS

ROAD GDNS

SINCLAIR

W
O

O
DSTO

CKW
A

Y

GRO

Hammersmith
Pier

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

DISTILLERY

LANE

M
ANB

STO
W

E

SUSSEX
PL

ALBION

M
S

MS

MILLER'S

WAY

O
S

M
A

N

R
D

BLYTHE
MS

B
E

R
G

-
M

S

OXFORD

GATE

ME
RC

ER
S

PL
AC

E

CHALK HILL

ROAD

Frank

Banfield

Park

PRINCE'S

MEWS

B
R

A
D

IN
G

TC
E

C
T

AUGUSTUS

CLOSE

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
U

R
T

G
LE

N
TH

A
M

G
D

N
S

BROOK

CRESSY

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

G
DSST R

D

S
T

RING

R
E

 R
D

STREET

LANE

WESTVILLE

RICH-

ST
FORD

OROUGH

AV
E

AP
PL

E-
RO

AD

ROAD

SA
M

UE
L'S

CL
OS

E

Riverside

Studios

ELGIN CL

M
A

R
K

E
T

LA
N

E

R
O

A
D

G
A

LE
N

A

SO
UT

HW
AY

CL
O

SE

R
D

HAMMERSMITH

S
H

E
P

H
E

K I N G

ST
UD

LA
ND

ST

BLYTHE

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

ROAD

R
O

A
D

PADD

H A M
 M

 E R S M
 I T H

HA
MMER

SM
ITH

BR
ID

GE

HA
MMER

SM
ITH

W
ICK

ROAD

ENS
R O A D

GLENTHORNE ROAD

R 
O

 A
 D

BRIDGE

QUEEN

CA
RO

LIN
E

BEADON
ROAD

ROAD

ST
RE

ET

HAMMERSMITH

BUTTERW
ICK

G R O V E

B
U

S
H

R
O

AD

H A M M E R S

S T R E E T

HAMMER
FLYOVER

E E T

R
D

'S

SMITH

ADDIS
ON

BROADWAY

M I T H

GREAT WEST ROAD

Estate

Gardens
Flora

Linacre
Court

Guinness

Peabody
Estate

Es
ta

te

Q
ue

en
 C

ar
ol

in
e

Woodford

Court

CourtBush

Charing

Hospital

Cross

Centre
Broadway

Apollo

Kings Mall Lyric
Square

ROAD

TALGARTH

ROAD

ALDENSLEY

N
IG

E
L

P
LA

Y
FA

IR
 A

V
E

CHANCELLOR'S

GARDENS

ROAD

RD

RD

ROAD

R
O

W
A

N

S
H

O
R

T
 LA

N
D

S

RDD
U

N
S

A
N

Y

A
U

G

FA
R

O
E

ROAD

H
AN

SAR
D

 M
EW

S

D 
A 

L 
L 

I N
 G

FULHAM

SHEPHERD'S

BUSH

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
RO

AD

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E

HAWK

W
ILS

O
N

'S

FULHAM
PALACE

PALACE

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 R

OAD

GOLDHAWK ROAD

ROAD

GLENTHORNE ROAD

RD

Dwg. No. 40500/2/6
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

HAMMERSMITH BROADWAY WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 49



Goldhawk

Hammer-
smith

Shepherd's
Bush

Road

Ham-

Shepherd's
Bush

Kensington
(Olympia)

Market

LILY

HEM

STREET

ELSHAM

HOFLAND

UPPER A
DDIS

ON
LORNE

CRE

P
L

Q U E E N S D A L E

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

ROADROAD
ANLEY RD

AMOR

R
O

A
D

KILMARSH

S
O

U
TH

E
R

TO
N

RD

BEAUCLERC

BROOK

STERNDALE

DEWHURST

NETHERWOOD

LU
X

E
M

B
U

R
G

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

B
U

TE

MELROSE

BATOUM

LENA

TRUSSLEY

O
V

E
R

S
TO

N
E

RD

RD

S
TR

E
E

T
M

EW
S

G
R

O
V

E

MS

A
S

TR
O

P

TCE
ASTROP

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E
 R

O
A

D

TC
E

M
S

B
A

R
B

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
 B

US
H

CROMWELL

GARDENS

R
D

GDNS

LO
R

IS

M
E

LR
O

S
E

GR

GDNS

GREEN

R
O

W
A

NTE
R

R
A

C
E

G
AR

D
EN

S
W

O
LVER

TO
N

C
O

LE
T

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S MORE CLOSE

WINDSOR

CAIT
HNESS

DAN

IRVING

BLYTHE

BOLIN
GBROKE

U
ST

IN
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

HAARLEM

BROOK
GREEN

GREEN

R
O

A
D

APPLEGARTH

GA
RT

H

ROAD

R
O

A
D

R
D

LAKESID
E

R
O

AD

ROAD

RE

C
EY

LO
N

M
A

S
B

R
O

'

ROAD

GIR
DLE

RS

AY
NHO

E

SO
UL-ROAD
DERN ROAD

MILSON

FIELDING

V
A

LE
 T

E
R

S
P

R
IN

G
-

STREET

ROAD

RD

R
O

AD

R
O

AD
RD

ROAD

STANLAKE VILLAS

WESTWICK

MINFORD

ST

TADMOR

M
A

C
F

A
R

LA
N

E

W
O

O
D

-

M
A

R
K

E
T

G
R

O
V

E

S
H

E
P

H
E

R
D

'S

R
IC

H
FO

R
D

B
U

S
H

W
E

LLS

G
ER

R
O

AD

LIM
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

P
E

N
N

A
R

D

S
T

HO
PG

OO
D

R
D

SULGRAVE ROAD

B
A

M
B

-

POPLAR

GDS

GROVE

BULWER
ST

S
T

IN
E

A
LD

C
A

X
TO

N
R

D

FR
ITH

V
ILLE

RD

CHARECROFT WAY

R
O

C
K

LE
Y

GDNS

GARDENS

ROAD
S

TSTERNE

GDNS

SINCLAIR

W
O

O
DSTO

CKW
A

Y

GRO

C
LEAR

W
ATER

YA
L

TC
E

R
O

CR
R

O
Y

A
L

MS

V
ILLA

S

A
N

N
'S

S
W

A
N

S
-

WILSHAM

ST

CR

NAPIER

MORE

GORLESTON

SO
UTH-

VERNON

AVE
FITZ-

EDITH

AURIO
L

G
LID

D
O

N

E
D

ITH
 R

O
A

D

ROAD

M
UNDEN

ST

COM
BE ST

MS

ST

AVEFITZJAMES

GDS

RUSSELL

G
R

A
TT

O
N

H
A

ZL
IT

T

ROAD

BLYTHE

W
AY

R
O

A
D

W
ALK

LYO
N

S

BE
AC

ON
SF

IE
LD

RO
AD

TE
RR

AC
E

RUSSELL GARDENS MEW
S

RD

R
D

P
O

R
TE

N

R
D

RD

SIN
C

LAIR

ROAD
RD

RUSSELL

BISHOP KING'S
ROAD

EAR
SBY PLACE

ADDISON

SO
N

GDSLA
NDHO

L-

R
 O

 A
 D

AD
DI

CRES

Q
U

E
E

N
S

D
A

LE

R O A D

AD
D

ISO
N

V
 I L

 L
 A

 S
SQ

H
 O

 L
 L

 A
 N

 D

ENT

GDNS

PL

ADDISON

SC

G
DNS

H
O

LLA
N

D
 P

K

D
A

LE

A
V

E
N

U
E

Q
U

E
E

N
S

-W
K

N
O

R
LA

N
D

GARDENS
DARNLEY

PENZANCE

PRINCES

PENZANCE ST

PRINCEDALE

PL
RO

AD

LANE

CUMBERLAND

Q
U

E
E

N
S

C
R

E
S

E
N

T

K
IN

G
S

D
A

LE

G
AR

D
EN

S

OLYM
PIA

W
AY

S
T

A
N

LA
K

E

PO
PL

AR MS

MILLER'S

WAY

O
S

M
A

N

R
D

BLYTHE
MS

B
E

R
G

-
M

S

MS

OXFORD

GATE

ME
RC

ER
S

PL
AC

E

CHARLOTTE

MEW
S

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
U

R
T

ABBO
TSBU

R
Y

ST
AVONMORE

VERNON

HAZLITT

BROOK

G
DS

MARKET
APP

R
D

N
O

R
LA

N
D

SQ

NORLAND

PL

C
LO

S
E

PO
R

TLAN
D

RD

R
D

ST JAMES'S

TER

M
E

W
S

RICH-

ST
FORD

OROUGH

KIN
G

H
AM

H
O

LLA
N

D
 P

K

HOLLAND

GARDENS

AP
PL

E-
RO

AD

ROAD

SA
M

UE
L'S

CL
OS

E

CR
S

AVON-

PK

GEORGE

M
A

R
K

E
T

LA
N

E

DALE
H

U
N

T

QUEENSDALE

CRES

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 P

LA
CE

BOURBON

LANE

HAMMERSMITH

BUSH PLACESHEPHERD'S

S
H

E
P

H
E

W
 O

 O
 D

BLYTHE

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

ROAD

R
O

A
D

RD

LOWER ADDISON

ADD

ADDISO
N

H O L L A N D
H O L L A N D

H A M
 M

 E R S M
 I T H

ROAD
BEADON

ROAD

HAMMERSMITH

BUTTERW
ICK

G R O V E

B
U

S
H

R
O

AD

H A M M E R S

R O

L A N E

A
 3 2 2 0

NORTH

END

R O A D

R O A D

A V E N U E

S T R E E T

P A R K

ISON

R
D

'S

A D

GARDENS

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

BROADWAY

M I T H

R O A D

Woodford

Court

CourtBush

MARCUS
GARVEY
PARK

Olympia

Kings Mall

Thames
Water
Tower

Lyric
Square

Westfield
London

GARDENS

RD

RD

ROAD

R
O

W
A

N

S
H

O
R

T
 LA

N
D

S

RDD
U

N
S

A
N

Y

A
U

G

FA
R

O
E

ROAD

MILSON

H
AN

SAR
D

 M
EW

S

N
O

R
LA

N
D

COMBE

ROAD

MACLISE

RD

SHEPHERD'S

BUSH
GREEN

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
RO

AD

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 R

OAD

GOLDHAWK ROAD

RD

Dwg. No. 40500/2/7
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

ADDISON WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 50



R
IV

E
R

T
H

A
M

E
S

West Kensington

Goldhawk

Hammer-
smith

Baron's Court

Road

Ham-
mersmith

Shepherd's
Bush

Kensington
(Olympia)

Market

N
ational R

ail

District Line

C
H

ESTN
U

T

ALLEY

ROSEDEW

COLWITH R
 A

 N
 N

 O
 C

 H

ROAD

EVER
IN

G
TO

N

SEDLESCOMBER
O

AD

R
O

AD

C
LO

SE
C

R
A

M
M

O
N

D

R
O

AD

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E

CREFIELD

C
L

LARNACH

NELLA

R
O

A
D

BOWFELL
RDSKELWITH

R
AIN

VILLE

WINGRAVE

P
E

TLE
Y

RD

RD
DELORME

AVERILL

ROAD

ROAD

SILVERTON
ELLALINE

R
 O

 A
 D

ROAD

BOTHW
ELL

STREET
HAWKSMOOR

STREET

STREET

STREET S
T

CLOSEADENEY

ANCILL

H
U

M
B

O
LT R

O
A

D

HUMBOLT ROAD

DISBROWE

CARO
LINE

A
B

B
E

Y

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 R
DCL

B
A

Y
O

N
N

E

BRECON RD

LAMPETER

GDNS M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

BRECON TILTO
N

R
YLSTO

NSTREETST

COOMER PL

COOMER

MEWS

ANSELM

RACTON

MARGARET

LEN

H
U

G
H

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

C
L

G
A

ITS
K

E
LL

TC
E

WORLIDGE ST

RD

LILY

HEM

STREET

BEAUFORT

MS

TELEPHONE

PL

LANFREY
PL

CHEESEMANS

ELSHAM

HOFLAND

UPPER A
DDIS

ON
LORNE

ST ALBAN'S
CHELMSFORD

ROAD

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

ROADROAD
ANLEY RD

ST JAMES

BERYL

PARFREY STREET

ST DUNSTAN'S

ST

RD

LOCHALINE

WINSLOW

DISTILLERY

ROAD

ST
PLAYFAIR

C
LAYBR

O
O

K

M
ARG

RAVINE

ROAD
ASPENLEA

GASTEIN

CLAXTON

RD
LU

R
G

A
N

 A
V

RD

GROVE

CLOSE

BROOK

STERNDALE

DEWHURST

NETHERWOOD

BISCAYYELDHAM

LU
X

E
M

B
U

R
G

CHANCELLORS

TERRIVER

CRISP ST

BLACK'S

R
O

A
D

ROAD

B
U

TE

MELROSE

BATOUM

LENA

TRUSSLEY

RD

S
TR

E
E

T
M

EW
S

G
R

O
V

E

MS

A
S

TR
O

P

TCE

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E
 R

O
A

D

TC
E

M
S

B
A

R
B

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
 B

US
H

CROMWELL

GARDENS

R
D

GDNS

LO
R

IS

M
E

LR
O

S
E

GR

GDNS

GREEN

GREAT CHURCH

ROAD

R
O

W
A

NTE
R

R
A

C
E

G
AR

D
EN

S
W

O
LVER

TO
N

MARGRAVINE

C
O

LE
T

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

CLOSE
WATERHOUSE

MORE CLOSE

WINDSOR

CAIT
HNESS

DAN

IRVING

BLYTHE

BOLIN
GBROKE

U
ST

IN
E

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

HAARLEM

BROOK
GREEN

GREEN

R
O

A
D

APPLEGARTH

GA
RT

H

ROAD

R
O

A
D

R
D

LAKESID
E

R
O

AD

ROAD

RE

C
EY

LO
N

M
A

S
B

R
O

'

ROAD

GIR
DLE

RS

AY
NHO

E

SO
UL-ROAD
DERN ROAD

MILSON

FIELDING

V
A

LE
 T

E
R

S
P

R
IN

G
-

STREET

ROAD

RD

R
O

AD

R
O

AD

RD
ROAD

WESTWICK

MINFORD

ST

TADMOR

W
O

O
D

-

M
A

R
K

E
T

S
H

E
P

H
E

R
D

'S

R
IC

H
FO

R
D

B
U

S
H

W
E

LLS

G
ER

R
O

AD

P
E

N
N

A
R

D

S
T

HO
PG

OO
D

SULGRAVE ROAD

B
A

M
B

-

POPLAR

GDS

GROVE

BULWER
ST

S
T

IN
E

A
LD

C
A

X
TO

N
R

D

CHARECROFT WAY

R
O

C
K

LE
Y

GDNS

GARDENS

ROAD

S
TSTERNE

GDNS

SINCLAIR

W
O

O
DSTO

CKW
A

Y

GRO

C
LEAR

W
ATER

YA
L

TC
E

R
O

CR
R

O
Y

A
L

CR

CL

CL
BELLAM

Y

STANIER

THAXTON

RO

GDNS
PEM

BR
O

KE

PEMBROKE

DENS

ROAD

C
H

A

G
LED

STAN
ES CHARLEVILLE

CLUB

FAIRHOLME

R
O

AD

SPEN
C

ER
M

S

TER

FIELD

TASSO

R
D

KIN
N

O
U

L

GARDENS

Q
U

EEN
'S

C
LU

B

ST

M
U

SAR
D

ANDREW'S

QUEEN'S

GDS

RD

PERHAM

R
O

AD

CHESSON

RO
AD

RD

CHESSON

BRAMBER

RD
ARCHEL

N
O

R
M

AN
D

TURNE-

VILLE

RD

ROAD

TU
R

N
E

V
ILLE

RD

RD

ARCHEL

SQ
P

LA
C

E

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ST
FANE

MARCHBANK

FRANKLIN

A
V

E
N

U
E

NAPIER

CASTLETOWN

ROAD

ADDISON BR

MORE

ROAD
ROAD

GORLESTON

SO
UTH-

COMERAGH
BARTON ROAD

VERNON

AVE
FITZ-

EDITH

R
O

A
D

DENSGAR

P
A

LLIS
E

R
 R

O
A

D

BARON'S

AURIO
L

G
LID

D
O

N

E
D

ITH
 R

O
A

D

CLOSE

ROAD

GUNTERSTONE

M
UNDEN

ST

COM
BE ST

R
D

G
LA

Z
B

U
R

Y

COURT

GWENDWRR
D

VER
EKER

MS

ST

AVEFITZJAMES

ROADTR
E

V
A

N
IO

N

GDS

RUSSELL

G
R

A
TT

O
N

H
A

ZL
IT

T

ROAD

BLYTHE

W
AY

R
O

A
D

W
ALK

LYO
N

S

BE
AC

ON
SF

IE
LD

RO
AD

TE
RR

AC
E

RUSSELL GARDENS MEW
S

RD

R
D

P
O

R
TE

N

R
D

RD

SIN
C

LAIR

ROAD
RD

RUSSELL

BISHOP KING'S
ROAD

EAR
SBY PLACE

ADDISON

SO
N

GDSLANDHO
L-

R
 O

 A
 D

AD
DI

CRES

ROAD

ROAD

C
H

ALLO
N

ER
ST

ROAD

C
R

CR

LL
O

N
E

R

B
E

A
U

M
O

N
T

MONT

BEAU

LIS

EDITH VILLAS

NOR

CRES
E

N
D

RDST
ONOR

STANWICK

AV

RD

MORNINGTON

ROAD

M
AT

HES
O

N

AVONMORE

MUND ST

IV
A

T
T

AV

A
IS

G
ILL

CLO
SE

BECKFORD

W
ARW

ICK

HOLLAND PK RD

N
APIER

 PL

ROAD
ROAD

RADNOR

TER

RD

OAKWOOD COURT

ADDISO
NRD

MELBURY

EDW
ARDESPL

ABBO
T'S

S
T M

A
R

Y

PEMBROKE

GDS

GAR

SQ

CLU
NY

PH
IL

CRES

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

V
 I L

 L
 A

 S

H
 O

 L
 L

 A
 N

 D

ENT

GDNS

G
DNS

H
O

LLA
N

D
 P

K

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

DISTILLERY

LANE

M
ANB

CUMBERLAND

K
IN

G
S

D
A

LE

G
AR

D
EN

S

OLYM
PIA

W
AY

SUSSEX
PL

PO
PL

AR MS

MILLER'S

WAY

O
S

M
A

N

R
D

BLYTHE
MS

B
E

R
G

-
M

S

MS

OXFORD

GATE

ME
RC

ER
S

PL
AC

E

CHARLOTTE

MEW
S

CHALK HILL

ROAD

COM

M
EW

S

NORMAND

MS

Frank

Banfield

Park

ORCHARD

SQ

G
A

IN
S

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
U

R
T

SO
M

ER
VILLE

O
AK

LE
Y WK

PAYNES

W
K

FR
EEM

AN

S
H

U
TE

R
S SQ

VINE

SQ

S
U

N

RD

INGTON

HALLGDS

KENS-

DIEPPE

C
LO

SE

MAY ST

AISGILL

AV

STH EDWARDES

SQ

ST MARY ABBOTS TCE

STRANGW
AYS

TCE

RD

ILCHESTER

ABBO
TSBU

R
Y

RD

ABBO
TSBU

R
Y

CL

OAKWOOD

LN

SO
M

ER
SE

T

SQ

RO
AD

ST
AVONMORE

VERNON

HAZLITT

BROOK

G
DS

MARKET
APP

C
LO

S
E

R
D

TH

GAR
TERRACE

R
E

 R
D

STREET

LANE

RD

AD

RICH-

ST
FORD

OROUGH

KIN
G

H
AM

H
O

LLA
N

D
 P

K

GARDENS

OAKWOOD

COURT

ADDISON RD

AP
PL

E-
RO

AD

ROAD

SA
M

UE
L'S

CL
OS

E

CR
S

AVON-

ROAD

FENELO
N

PL

MEWS

Riverside

Studios

SQ

COOMER

ROAD

R
D

S
U

N
R

D

SUN

MAY

ST

PK

PLACE

GEORGE

CROWTHER

CLOSE

LE
R

R
Y

 C
L

M
A

R
K

E
T

LA
N

E

TERR

R
O

A
D

CASTLE CLOSE

BARBARA

RD
JERVIS

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 P

LA
CE

LANE

R
D

HAMMERSMITH

BUSH PLACESHEPHERD'S

L I L L I E

S
H

E
P

H
E

ROAD

GREYHOUND

BLYTHE

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

ROAD

ROAD

STAR

R
O

A
D

RD

LOWER ADDISON

ADD

ADDISO
N

H O L L A N D

H O L L A N D

ROAD

BRIDGE

QUEEN

CA
RO

LIN
E

BEADON
ROAD

ROAD

ST
RE

ET

HAMMERSMITH

BUTTERW
ICK

G R O V E

B
U

S
H

R
O

AD

H A M M E R S

R O

R O A D

NORTH

END

R
O

AD

R O A D

R O A D

W A R W I C K

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

E
N

D

KENSINGTON

HIGH
STREET

WEST CROMWELL ROAD

S T R E E T

P A R K

HAMMER
FLYOVER

N
O

R
TH

EN
D

ISON

R
D

'S

SMITH

A D

GARDENS

GDNS

ADDIS
ON

BROADWAY

M I T H

R O A D

Estate

Estate
Clem Attlee

Green
Estate

Burne Jones
House

Linacre
Court

Guinness

Peabody
Estate

Es
ta

te

Q
ue

en
 C

ar
ol

in
e

Woodford

Court

CourtBush

Gibbs

MARCUS
GARVEY
PARK

Charing

Hospital

Cross

Centre
Broadway

Olympia

Apollo

Kings Mall

Fulham
Pools

Thames
Water
Tower

Lyric
Square

ROAD

ROAD

L I L L I E
R O A D

TALGARTH ROAD

WELL

CHANCELLOR'S

GARDENS

ROAD

RD

RD

ROAD

R
O

W
A

N

S
H

O
R

T
 LA

N
D

S

RDD
U

N
S

A
N

Y

A
U

G

FA
R

O
E

ROAD
MILSON

H
AN

SAR
D

 M
EW

S

HOUND
GREY

ROAD

ROAD

MACLISE

RD

FULHAM

SHEPHERD'S

BUSH
GREEN

L I L L I E

ROAD

WEST CROM

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
RO

AD

S
U

LG
R

A
V

E

NORFOLK

W
ILS

O
N

'S

FULHAM
PALACE

PALACE

ROAD
TALGARTH

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 R

OAD

ROAD

RD

Dwg. No. 40500/2/8
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

AVONMORE AND BROOK GREEN WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 51



R
IV

E
R

T
H

A
M

E
S

Hammer-
smith

Baron's Court

Ham-
mersmith

District Line

TER

ROSEDEW

COLWITH R
 A

 N
 N

 O
 C

 H

ROAD

EVER
IN

G
TO

N

R
O

AD

R
O

AD

C
LO

SE
C

R
A

M
M

O
N

D

R
O

AD

SQ
MARRYAT

CRABTREE

CHILDERLEY

ST

KINGWOOD

STRODE

CREFIELD

C
L

N
A

G
E

S
T

E
V

E

LANGTHORNE

QUEENSMILL

W
O

O
D

LAW
N

LYSIA

LARNACH

NELLA

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ETERNIT

WALK

C
LO

S
E

M
ILLS

H
O

TT

CLOSEROWBERRY

WHEATSHEAF

MEADOWBANK

CLOSE

H
O

LY

LANE

BOWFELL
RDSKELWITH

R
AIN

VILLE

WINGRAVE

P
E

TLE
Y

RD

RD

STREET

INGLETHORPE

HARBORD

KENYON

STREET

R
O

AD

NITON

STREET

ROAD

STREET

STREET

STREET

STREET
ATALANTA

DELORME

AVERILL

ROAD

ROAD

SILVERTON
ELLALINE

R
 O

 A
 D

ROAD

LANE

BOTHW
ELL

STREET
HAWKSMOOR

STREET

STREET

STREET S
T

CLOSEADENEY

ANCILL

SWIFT ST

FI
LM

ER

FERNHURST ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

ROAD CHALDON

AINTREE
ROADHANNELL

ROAD

R
O

A
D

S
ID

B
U

R
Y

 S
TLAMBROOK

WARDO

ST

TER

DANEHURST

ALLESTREE ROAD
ROWALLAN ROAD

ROADMABLETHORPEBRONSART ROAD

B
R

O
N

S
A

R
T

ROAD
KILMAINE ROAD

ROAD

REPORTON

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET
ROAD

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

ROSALINE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD

R
O

AD

BEDFORD PS

H
U

M
B

O
LT R

O
A

D

HUMBOLT ROAD

DISBROWE

WK

CARO
LINE

A
B

B
E

Y

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 R
D

C
R

CL

P
U

R
C

E
LL

RD
B

A
Y

O
N

N
E

BRECON RD

LAMPETER

GDNS M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

BRECON

ROAD DELAFORD

TILTO
N

ROAD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

CHESILTO
N

RO
STREVO

R
R

O
AD

RO
AD

RADIPO
LE

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD

RD

R
O

A
D

R
YLSTO

NSTREET

ROAD

ST

ROAD

WILL
IAM

BURY

MS

B
R

A
N

K
S

E
A

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

WORLIDGE ST

RD

LILY

STREET

CHEESEMANS

ST ALBAN'S
CHELMSFORD

ROAD

KILMARSH

AV

RIVERVIEW

GDNS

A
V

E

BR
ID

G
E

GA
RD

EN
S

MALL

GVE

RUTLAND

RD

B
R

ID
G

E
V

IE
W

PLACE

G
R

O
V

E

LE
A

M
O

R
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
O

U
TH

E
R

TO
N

IFFLE
Y

RD

ST JAMES

BERYL

PARFREY STREET

ST DUNSTAN'S

ST

RD

LOCHALINE

WINSLOW

DISTILLERY

ROAD

ST
PLAYFAIR

C
LAYBR

O
O

K

M
ARG

RAVINE

ROAD
ASPENLEA

GASTEIN

CLAXTON

RD
LU

R
G

A
N

 A
V

RD

GROVE

CLOSE

BROOK

BISCAYYELDHAM

LU
X

E
M

B
U

R
G

W
A

LK

CHANCELLORS

TERRIVER

CRISP ST

BLACK'S

A
N

G
E

L

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

B
U

TE

O
V

E
R

S
TO

N
E

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
 B

US
H

GREEN

GREAT CHURCH

ROAD

R
O

W
A

NTE
R

R
A

C
E

G
AR

D
EN

S
W

O
LVER

TO
N

MARGRAVINE

C
O

LE
T

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

CLOSE
WATERHOUSE

MORE CLOSE

WINDSOR

CAIT
HNESS

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

GREEN

GREEN

R
O

A
D

GIR
DLE

RS

AY
NHO

E

ROAD

ROAD

C
H

A

G
LED

STAN
ES CHARLEVILLE

CLUB

FAIRHOLME

R
O

AD

SPEN
C

ER
M

S

TER

FIELD

TASSO

R
D

KIN
N

O
U

L

GARDENS

Q
U

EEN
'S

C
LU

B

ST

M
U

SAR
D

ANDREW'S

QUEEN'S

GDS

RD

PERHAM

R
O

AD

RO
AD

CHESSON

BRAMBER

RD
ARCHEL

N
O

R
M

AN
D

TURNE-

VILLE

RD

ROAD

TU
R

N
E

V
ILLE

RD

CASTLETOWN

ROAD

ADDISON BR
MORE

ROAD
ROAD

GORLESTON

SO
UTH-

COMERAGH
BARTON ROAD

VERNON

AVE
FITZ-

EDITH

R
O

A
D

DENSGAR

P
A

LLIS
E

R
 R

O
A

D

BARON'S

AURIO
L

G
LID

D
O

N

E
D

ITH
 R

O
A

D

CLOSE

ROAD

GUNTERSTONE

M
UNDEN

ST

COM
BE ST

R
D

G
LA

Z
B

U
R

Y

COURT

GWENDWRR
D

VER
EKER

MS

ST

AVEFITZJAMES

ROADTR
E

V
A

N
IO

N

BLYTHE

W
AY

R
O

A
D

W
ALK

LYO
NS

BISHOP KING'S
ROAD

EAR
SBY PLACE

ROAD

ROAD

C
H

ALLO
N

ER
ST

ROAD

LL
O

N
E

R

BEAU

LIS

EDITH VILLAS

NOR

CRES
E

N
D

M
AT

HES
O

N

AVONMORE

ROAD

RADNOR

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

DISTILLERY

LANE

M
ANB

CUMBERLAND

W
AY

SUSSEX
PL

OXFORD

GATE

ME
RC

ER
S

PL
AC

E

CHARLOTTE

MEW
S

CHALK HILL

ROAD

COM

M
EW

S

NORMAND

MS

Frank

Banfield

Park

ORCHARD

SQ

SO
M

ER
VILLE

AVBRASENOSE

DVE

O
RIEL

DVE

CHURCH

ROAD

CA
RT

W
RI

GH
T

WAY

WYATT

D
R

IV
E

HEIDEGGERCRES
EDMUNDS

SQ

SAINT O
AK

LE
Y WK

PAYNES

W
K

S
U

N

GDS

ST
AVONMORE

VERNON

BROOK

R
O

A
D

A
D

A
M

WK

SALIS-

TH

GAR
TERRACE

RING

R
E

 R
D

STREET

LANE

SA
M

UE
L'S

CL
OS

E

CR
S

AVON-

ROAD

PLACEKEBLE

Riverside

Studios

SQ

R
D

MAY

ST

RD

GEORGE

P
O

R
T

MUNSTER

MEW
S

TERR

R
O

A
D

PALEM
EAD

CLOSE

RD

HAMMERSMITH

DERE CL
WYFOLD

DERE CL

R O A D

L I L L I E

R
O

A
D

DAWES

M
U

N
S

K I N G

ROAD

GREYHOUND

STAR

HA
MMER

SM
ITH

BR
ID

GE

HA
MMER

SM
ITH

GLENTHORNE ROAD

BRIDGE

QUEEN

CA
RO

LIN
E

BEADON
ROAD

ROAD

ST
RE

ET
HAMMERSMITH

BUTTERW
ICK

G R O V E

H A M M E R S
NORTH

END

R
O

AD

R O A D

N
O

R
TH

S T R E E T

HAMMER
FLYOVER

T
E

R

SMITH

BROADWAY

ROAD

M I T H

R O A D

Estate
H

ouse
O

w
en

R
obert

Burne Jones
House

Linacre
Court

Guinness

Peabody
Estate

Es
ta

te

Q
ue

en
 C

ar
ol

in
e

MARCUS
GARVEY
PARK

Charing

Hospital

Cross

Centre
Broadway

Apollo

Kings Mall

Fulham
Pools

Lyric
Square

ROAD

CLOSE

BISHOP'S

PELLAN
T

ROAD

ROAD

P A L

F U L H A M

L I L L I E

ROAD

TALGARTH ROAD

CHANCELLOR'S

GARDENS

ROAD

R
O

W
A

N

S
H

O
R

T
 LA

N
D

S

HOUND
GREY

ROAD

FULHAM

WEST

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
RO

AD

NORFOLK

W
ILS

O
N

'S

DAWES

FULHAM
PALACE

PALACE

ROAD
TALGARTH

SH
EP

HE
RD

'S
BU

SH
 R

OAD

ROAD

RD

Dwg. No. 40500/2/9
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

FULHAM REACH WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 52



T

Fulham
Broadway

West Kensington

Baron's Court

Earls
Court

West
Brompton

Fulham

Hall
Town

N
ational R

ail

C
H

ESTN
U

T

ALLEY

SEDLESCOMBER
O

AD

R
O

AD

C
LO

SE
C

R
A

M
M

O
N

D

R
O

AD

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E

TAM
W

O
R

TH
 ST

ROAD

RO
AD

R
O

AD

ST

STRODE

CREFIELD

C
L

ATALANTA

S
T

CLOSEADENEY

ANCILL

CLOSE

WAITE

ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

ROAD CHALDON

AINTREE
ROADHANNELL

ROAD

R
O

A
D

ALLESTREE ROAD
ROWALLAN ROAD

ROADMABLETHORPEBRONSART ROAD

B
R

O
N

S
A

R
T

ROAD
KILMAINE ROAD

REPORTON

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

ROSALINE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD

R
O

AD

BEDFORD PS

H
U

M
B

O
LT R

O
A

D

HUMBOLT ROAD

DISBROWE

WK

CARO
LINE

A
B

B
E

Y

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 R
D

C
R

CL

P
U

R
C

E
LL

RD
B

A
Y

O
N

N
E

BRECON RD

LAMPETER

GDNS M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

BRECON

ROAD DELAFORD

TILTO
N

TOURNAY

ST. T
HOMAS'S W

AY

H
AR

TISM
ER

E

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

M
IR

ABEL R
O

AD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

R
O

AD

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD

RD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

R
O

A
D

DARLAN

SHORROLDS

E RD

BURNTH

EPIRUS

RO
AD

R
YLSTO

NSTREET

ROAD

ST

ROAD

COOMER PL

HALDANE

COOMER

MEWS

HARW
OOD

MOORE

MS
EPIRUS

FARM

BAR
C

LAY

PLACE

FIELD

HECK-ROAD

ROAD

PULTON

BARCLAY

CASSIDYROAD

VANSTON

M
U

S
G

A
R

G
O

N

RD

M
S

EFFIE

PLACE

ANSELM

EUSTACE
RDARMADALE

HALFORD

ROAD

ROAD

RACTON

RD

KN
IVETT

RD

WALHAM

ROAD
ROAD

LANE

LANE

GROVE

FARM

RD

M
IC

KLETH
W

AITE

BROMPTON

WILL
IAM

BURY

MS

WHEAT-

SHEAFTERR

PALACE
MEWS

B
R

A
N

K
S

E
A

EXETER

MEW
S

JOHN

AVENUE

INGRAMMARGARET

CLOSE

PL

LEN

H
U

G
H

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

C
L

G
A

ITS
K

E
LL

TC
E

LILY

STREET

BEAUFORT

MS

TELEPHONE

PL

LANFREY
PL

CHEESEMANS

ST ALBAN'S
CHELMSFORD

ROAD

GASTEIN

CLAXTON

RD

GROVE

CLOSE

GREEN

MARGRAVINE

MORE CLOSE

WINDSOR

ROAD

CL

CL
BELLAM

Y

STANIER

THAXTON

RO

GDNS
PEM

BR
O

KE

PEMBROKE

DENS

ROAD

C
H

A

G
LED

STAN
ES CHARLEVILLE

CLUB

FAIRHOLME
R

O
AD

SPEN
C

ER
M

S

TER

FIELD

TASSO

R
D

K
IN

N
O

U
L

GARDENS

Q
U

EEN
'S

C
LU

B
ST

M
U

SAR
D

ANDREW'S

QUEEN'S

GDS

RD

PERHAM

R
O

AD

CHESSON

RO
AD

RD

CHESSON

BRAMBER

RD
ARCHEL

N
O

R
M

AN
D

TURNE-

VILLE

RD

ROAD

TU
R

N
E

V
ILLE

RD

RD

ARCHEL

SQ
P

LA
C

E

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ST
FANE

MARCHBANK

FRANKLIN

A
V

E
N

U
E

CASTLETOWN

ROAD

ADDISON BR

MORE

ROAD
ROAD

GORLESTON

SO
UTH-

COMERAGH
BARTON ROAD

VERNON

AVE
FITZ-

EDITH

R
O

A
D

DENSGAR

P
A

LLIS
E

R
 R

O
A

D

BARON'S

AURIO
L

G
LID

D
O

N

E
D

ITH
 R

O
A

D

CLOSE

ROAD

GUNTERSTONE

M
UNDEN

ST

COM
BE ST

R
D

G
LA

Z
B

U
R

Y

COURT

GWENDWRR
D

VER
EKER

MS

ST

AVEFITZJAMES

ROADTR
E

V
A

N
IO

N

BLYTHE

W
AY

R
O

A
D

W
ALK

LYO
NS

BISHOP KING'S
ROAD

EAR
SBY PLACE

ROAD

ROAD

C
H

ALLO
N

ER
ST

ROAD

C
R

CR

LL
O

N
E

R

B
E

A
U

M
O

N
T

MONT

BEAU

LIS

EDITH VILLAS

NOR

CRES
E

N
D

RDST
ONOR

STANWICK

AV

RD

MORNINGTON

ROAD

M
AT

HES
O

N

AVONMORE

MUND ST

IV
A

T
T

AV

A
IS

G
ILL

CLO
SE

BECKFORD

W
ARW

ICK

ROAD
ROAD

RADNOR

TER
PEMBROKE

GDS

GAR

SQ

C
R

ES

O
NG

AR
PL

ROAD

RICKETT

HILDYARD

SEAG
R

AVE

YD
LILLIE

RDMERRINGTON

RD

RESS
E

M
P

-

ST

PLROXBY

EARL'S

PENYW
ERN R

OAD

LOGAN PLACE

CRO
M

W
ELL

GARD

SQ

NEVERN

LONGRIDGE

ROAD

CLU
NY

PH
IL

CRES

NEVERN

NEVERN ROAD

TR
EBOVIR

 R
OAD

G
D

N
S

E
A

R
D

LE
Y

K
E

M

NEVERN SQ

NEVERN

SQ

SQ

C
LO

SE

RD

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

M
S

KRAM
ER

CUMBERLAND

W
AY

OXFORD

GATE

CHARLOTTE

MEW
S

COM

M
EW

S

NORMAND

MS

ORCHARD

SQ

LANGTRY PL

TEM
PLETO

N PLACE

CASS

PLAC
E

LANCAS

COURT
ACCESS

ROAD

PAYNES
W

K

FR
EEM

AN

SMITH

S
H

U
TE

R
S SQ

VINE

SQ

S
U

N

RD

INGTON

HALLGDS

KENS-
DIEPPE

C
LO

SE

MAY ST

AISGILL

AV

STH EDWARDES

RO
AD

ST
AVONMORE

VERNON

IDY ROAD

TER

G
IRO

ND

SALIS-

TH

BEACH
ENS

GAR
TERRACE

P
S

F
O

R
D

RD
AD

CR
S

AVON-

ROAD

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

 V
ILLA

S

FENELO
N

PL

MEWS

NEVERN
PLACE

SQ

COOMER

ROAD

R
D

S
U

N
R

D

SUN

MAY

ST

JOHN'S

WALHAM

YARD

EFFIE
CLOSE

GEORGE

CROWTHER

CLOSE

EM
PRESS

APPROACH

HARWOOD

MEWS

LE
R

R
Y

 C
L

MUNSTER

MEW
S

TERR

CASTLE CLOSE

BARBARA

RD
JERVIS

ERIN CL

H
O

M
ESTEAD

KELVE

R O A D

R
O

A
D

R O
 A 

D

DAWES

M
U

N
S

ROAD

ROAD

STAR

R O A D

NORTH

END

R
O

AD

R O A D

W A R W I C K

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

E
N

D

KENSINGTON

OLD
BROMPTON

WEST CROMWELL ROAD

W A R W I C K

R O A D

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

EN
D

T
E

R

ROAD

ROAD

M I T H

R O A D

Estate
Clem Attlee

Green
Estate

Burne Jones
House

Gibbs

MARCUS
GARVEY
PARK

Earls Court
Exhibition
Building

Empress

Building

Olympia

Fulham
Pools

State

CLOSE PELLAN
T

ROAD

OP'S

BIS
H

ROAD

JERDAN

BROADWAY

FULHAM

RD

R
'S ALLEY

DAWES

L I L L I E

ROAD

R O A D

ROAD

TALGARTH ROAD

WELL

HOUND
GREY

ROAD

L I L L I E

ROAD

WEST CROM

R O A D

PL

G
O

ATE

NORFOLK

DAWES

ROAD
TALGARTHBaron's

Court

Dwg. No. 40500/2/10
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

NORTH END WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 53



R
IV

E
R

T
H

A
M

E
S

R
IVER

TH
AM

ES

Fulham
Broadway

Putney
Bridge

Parsons
Green

Dist
ric

t L
ine

REV
OR

R
O

ST-

C
H

ESTN
U

T

ALLEY

ROSEDEW

COLWITH R
 A

 N
 N

 O
 C

 H

ROAD

EVER
IN

G
TO

N

SEDLESCOMBER
O

AD

R
O

AD

C
LO

SE
C

R
A

M
M

O
N

D

R
O

AD

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E

TAM
W

O
R

TH
 ST

ROAD

RO
AD

R
O

AD

ROAD

MONTSERRAT

R
O

AD

O
XF

O
R

D

ST

ESMOND

W
IN

TH
O

R
P

E
 R

D
W

AD
H

AM
R

O
AD

ROAD

PLBE
C

TI
VE

B
R

A
N

D
LE

H
O

W

S
K

E
LG

IL
L

N
O

R
TH

FI
E

LD
S

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T

P
O

IN
T

R
O

AD ENTERPRISE

SQ
MARRYAT

F
U

LH
A

M

GDS

ST

ST M
ARKS C

L

CRABTREE

CHILDERLEY

ST

KINGWOOD

STRODE

PARK

STREET

CREFIELD

C
L

W
OODLAW

N

GRESWELL STREET

ROAD

D
A

N
E

M
E

R
E

R
D

R
O

S
K

E
LL

A
S

H
LO

N
E

FE
S

TI
N

G

ST

R
O

A
D

E
 M

 B
 A

 N
 K

 M
 E

 N
 T

RUVIGNY

B
E

M
IS

HFELSHAM

C
H

A
R

LW
O

O
D

R
E

D
G

R
A

V
E

 R
D

R
D

BENDEM
EER

JACKSON

H
E

N
R

Y
R

D
S

A
LV

IN

RD

R
O

TH
E

R
W

O
O

D

R
D

G
LA

D
W

YN

ST

G
LE

N
D

A
R

V
O

N

W
E

IS
S

 R
DR

O
W

B
IG

G
'S

KINGS-

ST

W
AT

ER
M

AN

M
A

S
C

O
TT

E

G
W

A
LI

O
R

R
D

R
D

ROAD C
LO

SE
M

ER
E

G
D

S

R
D

R
O

ELLERBY

DONERAILE

T H
 E

RD

FIN
LAY

BISHOP'S

BIS
HOP'S

CLONCURRY

RO
AD

STREET

STREET

N
A

G
E

S
T

E
V

E

LANGTHORNE

QUEENSMILL

W
O

O
D

LAW
N

LYSIA

LARNACH

NELLA

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

ETERNIT

WALK

C
LO

S
E

M
ILLS

H
O

TT

CLOSEROWBERRY

WHEATSHEAF

MEADOWBANK

CLOSE

H
O

LY

LANE

BOWFELL
RDSKELWITH

R
AIN

VILLE

WINGRAVE

P
E

TLE
Y

RD

RD

STREET

INGLETHORPE

HARBORD

KENYON

STREET

R
O

AD

NITON

STREET

ROAD

STREET

STREET

STREET

STREET

STREET
ATALANTA

DELORME

AVERILL

ROAD

ROAD

SILVERTON
ELLALINE

R
 O

 A
 D

ROAD

LANE

BOTHW
ELL

STREET
HAWKSMOOR

STREET

STREET

STREET S
T

CLOSEADENEY

ANCILL

ACKMAR R
D

ELTHIRON RD

BASUTO

W
HITTINGSTALL

VERA RO
ADGOWAN

ROAD

R
O

AD

ROAD

LIN
V

E
R

A
TN

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

D
E

O
D

A
RFL

O
R

IA
N

R
D

ROAD

FU
LH

AM

RD

ROAD

CLO
SE

STE
EPLE

B
U

R
S

TO
C

K
 R

D

ST

W
EI

M
AR

BR
EW

H
O

U
SE

DEODAR

M
ER

IV
AL

E
R

O
AD

R
O

AD

ST
H

IG
H

WILLOWBANK

GATE

CHURCH

ST
VILLE
GON-

RANELAGH

A
P

P
R

STATION

W
ALDEM

AR

EDGARLEY

TER

AVENUE

ROAD COLEHILL

GDNS

KIM
BELL G

S

FIRTH G
S

CO
LE

HI
LL

RIG
AULT

BU
R

LIN
G

TO
N

BUER

RO
AD

PLA
CE

BURLIN
GTON

COMBE
RINGMERBURNFOOT

O
XBERRY

HORDER

RD

A
V

GARDENS

GDNS

HURLINGHAM

E
D

E
N

H
U

R
S

T

N
A

P
IE

RR
A

N
E

LA
G

H

CROOKHAM ROAD

M
IM

OSA STREET

LE
TT

IC
E

LAUREL

R
D

LANDRIDGE

FU
LH

AM

GD

G
RIM

ELYSIUM

R
D

RD

RD

PARK

FO
S

K
E

TT

EW
A

D
O

LB
Y

A
V

R
D

A
V

E
N

U
E

PK
 R

D

STR
EET

N
S

DANCER ROAD

BETTRIDGE

C
O

R
TA

Y
N

E

ASHINGTON

R
O

AD
C

R
ISTO

W
E

BANK

RD R
O

A
D

A
LD

E
R

V
ILLE

ROAD

R
D

HEATH

E
D

D
IS

C
O

M
B

E

DIONIS

R
D

ST

ROAD

STREET

DORIA

G
U

IO
N

 R
D

CT

DAIS
Y

SULI

SULIVAN

CARNWATH

LANE

FORD
M

OLES-

P
E

TE
R

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
N

IG
ER

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

IRENE

DELV
IN

O

RD

D
IN

G
STO

N
E

R
O

AD

ST

ST

Q
U

AR
R

EN
D

O
N

BR
AD

BO
U

R
N

E
CHID

CRONDACEROAD

RD

CHIPS

CLOSE

WAITE

ROAD

SWIFT ST

FI
LM

ER

FERNHURST ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

ROAD CHALDON

AINTREE
ROADHANNELL

ROAD

R
O

A
D

S
ID

B
U

R
Y

 S
TLAMBROOK

WARDO

ST

TER

DANEHURST

ALLESTREE ROAD
ROWALLAN ROAD

ROADMABLETHORPEBRONSART ROAD

B
R

O
N

S
A

R
T

ROAD
KILMAINE ROAD

ROAD

REPORTON

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET

LANE

ROAD

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

ROSALINE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD

R
O

AD

BEDFORD PS

H
U

M
B

O
LT R

O
A

D

HUMBOLT ROAD

DISBROWE

WK

CARO
LINE

A
B

B
E

Y

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 R
D

C
R

CL

P
U

R
C

E
LL

RD
B

A
Y

O
N

N
E

BRECON RD

LAMPETER

GDNS M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

BRECON

ROAD DELAFORD

TILTO
N

TOURNAY

ST. T
HOMAS'S W

AY

H
AR

TISM
ER

E

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

ROAD
RO

AD

ROAD

W
INCHENDO

N

M
IR

ABEL R
O

AD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

CHESILTO
N

RO
STREVO

R

FELD
EN

R
O

AD

RO
AD

M
EW

S

RO
AD

RADIPO
LE

LILYVILLE

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD
RD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

R
O

A
D

DARLAN

R
O

AD

R
O

AD
ST M

AUR
ROAD

C
LO

NM
EL

EPPLE

PLACE
BRIDGES

CROSS

ROAD

SHORROLDS

E RD

BURNTH

EPIRUS

RO
AD

R
YLSTO

NSTREET

ROAD

ST

ROAD

COOMER PL

HALDANE

COOMER

MEWS

MS
EPIRUS

FARM

CAMPANA

BAR
C

LAY

C
L

NOVELLO

SHOTTENDANE

DOWN

HARBLE

RD

RDELMS RD

PLACE

FIELD

HECK-ROAD

ROAD

PULTON

BARCLAY

CASSIDYROAD

VANSTON

PARTHENIA

ST

RD

RD

RD

FAV

ROAD

M
U

S
G

A
R

G
O

N

RD

M
S

EFFIE

PLACE

ANSELM

EUSTACE
RDARMADALE

HALFORD

ROAD

ROAD

RACTON

RD

KN
IVETT

RD

WALHAM

ROAD
ROAD

LANE

LANE

GROVE

FARM

RD

M
IC

KLETH
W

AITE

ROAD

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVEN
U

E

AVE

ROAD

WILL
IAM

BURY

MS

WHEAT-

SHEAFTERR

PALACE
MEWS

M
U

ST
O

W

ST

ELY
SIU

M
 P

L

B
R

A
N

K
S

E
A

MELBRAY

MS

LALOR S
T

EXETER

MEW
S

JOHN

AVENUE

INGRAMMARGARET

CLOSE

PL

LEN

H
U

G
H

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

C
L

G
A

ITS
K

E
LL

SW
AN

M
S

RD

BEAUFORT

MS

TELEPHONE

PL

ST ALBAN'S
CHELMSFORD

ROAD

PARFREY STREET

LOCHALINE

WINSLOW

DISTILLERY

ROAD

ST
PLAYFAIR

C
LAYBR

O
O

K

M
ARG

RAVINE

ROAD
ASPENLEA

GASTEIN

CLAXTON

RD
LU

R
G

A
N

 A
V

RD

GROVE

CLOSE

THAXTON

RO

CLUB

R
O

AD

SPEN
C

ER
M

S

TER

FIELD

TASSO

R
D

K
IN

N
O

U
L

GARDENS

Q
U

EEN
'S

C
LU

B

ST

M
U

SAR
D

ANDREW'S

QUEEN'S

GDS

RD

PERHAM

R
O

AD

CHESSON

RO
AD

RD

CHESSON

BRAMBER

RD
ARCHEL

N
O

R
M

AN
D

TURNE-

VILLE

RD

TU
R

N
E

V
ILLE

RD

RD

ARCHEL

SQ

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ST
FANE

MARCHBANK

FRANKLIN

A
V

E
N

U
E

O
NG

AR
PL

ROAD

RICKETT

HILDYARD

SEAG
R

AVE

YD
LILLIE

RDMERRINGTON

RD

RESS
E

M
P

-
ST

PLROXBY

ROAD

M
ANB NORMAND

MS

Park

ORCHARD

SQ

LANGTRY PL

G
W

A
LI

O
R

R
D

LI
FF

O
R

D
R

D

LACY
RD

CARDINAL
RD

BANGA

B
LA

C
K

E
T

T

S
TA

N
B

R
ID

G
E

FA
R

LO
W

R
D

W
Y

M
O

N
D

P
E

N
TLO

W

S
E

FTO
N

R
D

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

D
A

FU
R

ST

D
R

YA
D

ST

CLOSE

STOCKHURST

C
O

M
M

O
N

D
A

LE

WAY

HORNE WAY

S
U

LIV
A

N

C
T

P
L

CASS

PLAC
E

TH
A

M
E

S
P

L

RUVIGNY
CL

LOWER
RICHMOND

RD

MUNSTER CT

LANCAS

COURT
ACCESS

ROAD

O
AK

LE
Y WK

PAYNES

W
K

FR
EEM

AN

SMITH

S
H

U
TE

R
S

SQ

S
U

N

A
D

A
M

WK

PARSONS

IDY ROAD

TER

G
IRO

ND

SALIS-

TONE

LD
 R

D

STO
N

CT
IVE

R
E

 R
D

STREET

RD

AD

HESTER

PURSERS

MANS

ART

VAN

GREEN

SQ
COOMER

ROAD

R
D

S
U

N
R

D

MAY

ST

JOHN'S

WALHAM

YARD

A
D

EFFIE
CLOSE

FLOSS
ST

F
A

N
T

H
O

R
P

E
S

T

W
A

LK
E

R
P

L

HOTHAM ROAD

B
O

R
N

E
O

S
T

W
ES

TH
OR

PE
R

D

LORE

ST
R

EE
T

D
E

O
D

O
R

 R
O

A
D

RD

P
O

R
T

CROWTHER

CLOSE

EM
PRESS

APPROACH

LE
R

R
Y

 C
L

MUNSTER

MEW
S

TERR

RO
DA

CASTLE CLOSE

BARBARA

RD
JERVIS

PALEM
EAD

CLOSE

CROWN YD

DAIRY CL

R
D

DERE CL

ERIN CL

MEWSBOROUGH

BEACONSFIELD W
K

PETER-

WYFOLD

DERE CL

MEWSGATEPARSONS

BR
ID

GE

STER

MUN

R
O

AD

PAR
SO

N
S

H
O

M
ESTEAD

KELVE
DON

RD

PU
TN

EY

RICHMOND

ROAD

ROAD

PUTNEY

HI
GH

BRIDGE

R O A D

L I L L I E

R O

R
O

A
D

K 
I N

 G
 'S

PU
TN

EY

BR
ID

GE

PU
TN

EY

AP
PR

OAC
H

FULH
AM

RO
AD

N E W
K I N

 G ' S

R O
 A 

D

DAWES

M
U

N
S

F U L H
 A M

ST
RE

ET

ROAD

GREYHOUND

ROAD

STAR

R
O

A
D

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

EN
D

T
E

R

ROAD

LOWER

G
R

EEN

ROAD

Estate
Clem Attlee

H
ouse

O
w

en
R

obert

SwanWharf Willowbank
Wharf

F
o

o
tb

ri
d

g
e

CarraraBank Wharf

Charing

Hospital

Cross

Fulham

Football

G
round

Empress

Building

PALACE
FULHAM

Enterprise Centre

Fulham
Pools

State

ROAD

RO
AD

CLOSE

ROAD

DURRELL

DO
RNCLIFFE

HURLINGHAM

LA
N

E

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

G
R

E
E

N
LA

N
E

CLANCARTY

BISHOP'S

PELLAN
T

ROAD

OP'S

ROAD

BIS
H

ROAD

JERDAN

BROADWAY

FULHAM

RD

R
'S ALLEY

P A L

F U L H A M

STREET

N E W

R O A D

FULHAM
HIGH

R O A D

DAWES

L I L L I E

ROAD

R O A D

ROAD

CHANCELLOR'S

HOUND
GREY

ROAD

L I L L I E

R O A D

PL

G
O

ATE

A C E

BELL'S AL

P
A

R
S

O
N

S

NORFOLK

DAWES

FULHAM
PALACE

Dwg. No. 40500/2/11
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

PALACE RIVERSIDE WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 54



R
IVER

TH
AM

ES

REV
OR

R
O

ST-

C
H

ESTN
U

T

ALLEY

EVER
IN

G
TO

N

R
O

AD

R
O

AD

C
LO

SE
C

R
A

M
M

O
N

D

R
O

AD

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E

SQ
MARRYAT

GDS

CHILDERLEY

ST

KINGWOOD

STRODE

PARK

STREET

CREFIELD

C
L

W
OODLAW

N
GRESWELL STREET

R
O

ELLERBY

DONERAILE

FIN
LAY

BISHOP'S

BIS
HOP'S

CLONCURRY

RO
AD

STREET

STREET

STREET

INGLETHORPE

HARBORD

STREET

STREET

ROAD

STREET

STREET

STREET

STREET

STREET
ATALANTA

DELORME

AVERILL

ROAD

ROAD

LANE

BOTHW
ELL

STREET
HAWKSMOOR

STREET

STREET

STREET S
T

CLOSEADENEY

ANCILL
W

HITTINGSTALL

VERA RO
ADGOWAN

ROAD

FU
LH

AM

RD

W
ALDEM

AR

EDGARLEY

TER

AVENUE

ROAD COLEHILL

GDNS

KIM
BELL G

S

FIRTH G
S

CO
LE

HI
LL

RIG
AULT

BU
R

LIN
G

TO
N

BUER

PLA
CE

BURLIN
GTON

COMBE
RINGMERBURNFOOT

O
XBERRY

HORDER

RD

CROOKHAM ROAD

M
IM

OSA STREET

LE
TT

IC
E

LAUREL

R
D

LANDRIDGE

FU
LH

AM

GD

G
RIM

ELYSIUM

RD

RD

PARK

FO
S

K
E

TT

EW
A

D
O

LB
Y

PK
 R

D

STR
EET

N
S

DANCER ROAD

BETTRIDGE

C
O

R
TA

Y
N

E

ASHINGTON

R
O

AD
C

R
ISTO

W
E

BANK

RD ROAD

R
D

HEATH

E
D

D
IS

C
O

M
B

E

DIONIS

R
D

ST

ROAD

STREET

G
U

IO
N

 R
D

WAITE

SWIFT ST

FI
LM

ER

FERNHURST ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

ROAD CHALDON

AINTREE
ROADHANNELL

ROAD

R
O

A
D

S
ID

B
U

R
Y

 S
TLAMBROOK

WARDO

ST

TER

DANEHURST

ALLESTREE ROAD
ROWALLAN ROAD

ROADMABLETHORPEBRONSART ROAD

B
R

O
N

S
A

R
T

ROAD
KILMAINE ROAD

ROAD

REPORTON

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET

LANE

ROAD

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

ROSALINE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD

R
O

AD

BEDFORD PS

H
U

M
B

O
LT R

O
A

D

HUMBOLT ROAD

DISBROWE

WK

CARO
LINE

A
B

B
E

Y

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 R
D

C
R

CL

P
U

R
C

E
LL

RD
B

A
Y

O
N

N
E

BRECON RD

LAMPETER

GDNS M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

BRECON

ROAD DELAFORD

TILTO
N

TOURNAY

ST. T
HOMAS'S W

AY

H
AR

TISM
ER

E

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

ROAD

RO
AD

ROAD

W
INCHENDO

N

M
IR

ABEL R
O

AD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

CHESILTO
N

RO
STREVO

R

FELD
EN

R
O

AD

RO
AD

M
EW

S

RO
AD

RADIPO
LE

LILYVILLE

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD

RD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

R
O

A
D

DARLAN

R
O

AD

R
O

AD
ST M

AUR
ROAD

C
LO

NM
EL

EPPLE
CROSS

SHORROLDS

E RD

BURNTH

EPIRUS

RO
AD

R
YLSTO

NSTREET

ROAD

ST

ROAD

COOMER PL

HALDANE

COOMER

MEWS

ROAD

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVEN
U

E

AVE

WILL
IAM

BURY

MS

WHEAT-

SHEAFTERR

M
U

ST
O

W

ST

ELY
SIU

M
 P

L

B
R

A
N

K
S

E
A

LALOR S
T

JOHN

AVENUE

INGRAMMARGARET

CLOSE

PL

LEN

H
U

G
H

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

C
L

G
A

ITS
K

E
LL

P
L

MUNSTER CT

O
AK

LE
Y

PAYNES

W
K

FR
EEM

AN

SMITH

G
IRO

ND

SALIS-

LD
 R

D

HESTER

PURSERS

MANS

SQ

COOMER

ROAD

A
D

MUNSTER

MEW
S

CASTLE CLOSE

BARBARA

RD
JERVIS

DERE CL

BEACONSFIELD W
K

WYFOLD

DERE CL

STER

MUN

R
O

AD

H
O

M
ESTEAD

KELVE
DON

RD

R O A D

L I L L I E

R
O

A
D

K 
I N

 G
 'S

FULH
AM

RO
AD

DAWES

M
U

N
S

F U L H
 A M

GREYHOUND
N

O
R

TH

T
E

R

ROAD

ROAD

Estate
Clem Attlee

H
ouse

O
w

en
R

obert

FULHAM

Pools

CLOSE

DURRELL

DO
RNCLIFFE

BISHOP'S

PELLAN
T

ROAD

OP'S

ROAD

BIS
H

ROADR
'S ALLEY

P A L

F U L H A M

R O A D

FULHAM
HIGH

R O A D

L I L L I E

ROAD

R O A D

G
O

ATE

A C E

DAWES

Dwg. No. 40500/2/12
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

MUNSTER WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 55



T

Fulham
Broadway

West Kensington

Parsons
Green

Earls
Court

West
Brompton

Fulham

Hall
Town

Dist
ric

t L
ine

N
ational R

ail

REV
OR

R
O

ST-

C
H

ESTN
U

T

ALLEY

SEDLESCOMBER
O

AD

R
O

AD R
O

AD

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E

TAM
W

O
R

TH
 ST

ROAD

RO
AD

R
O

AD

SQ
MARRYAT

VILLE

R
O

BER
TS

ST

ST M
ARKS C

L FORD

ACKMAR R
D

ELTHIRON RD

BASUTO

W
HITTINGSTALL

VERA RO
ADGOWAN

ROAD

ROADRD

W
ALDEM

AR

EDGARLEY

TER

ROAD COLEHILL

GDNS

KIM
BELL G

S

FIRTH G
S

CO
LE

HI
LL

COMBE
RINGMERBURNFOOT

O
XBERRY

HORDER CROOKHAM ROAD

M
IM

OSA STREET

LE
TT

IC
E

STR
EET

DANCER ROAD

HEATH

DIONIS

ROAD

STREET

G
U

IO
N

 R
D

PERRYM

FORD
M

OLES-

IRENE

DELV
IN

O

RD

Q
U

AR
R

EN
D

O
N

CHID

CRONDACEROAD

RD

CHIPS

RO
AD

IN
GDON

RCH

RYECROFTB
O

W
E

R
D

E
A

N
 S

T

EAD

STR
EET

S
TO

K
E

N

ST

CHU

ST

BOV

R
D

A
C

FO
LD

PEARSCROFT

RD

RD

CLOSE

WAITE

ROAD

SWIFT ST

FI
LM

ER

FERNHURST ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

CHALDON

AINTREE
ROADHANNELL

ROAD

S
ID

B
U

R
Y

 S
T

WARDO

DANEHURST

ALLESTREE ROAD
ROWALLAN ROAD

ROADMABLETHORPEBRONSART ROAD

ROAD
KILMAINE ROAD

ROAD

REPORTON

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET

LANE

ROAD

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

ROSALINE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD
R

O
AD

BEDFORD PS

H
U

M
B

O
LT R

O
A

D

HUMBOLT ROAD

DISBROWE

WK

CARO
LINE

A
B

B
E

Y

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 R
D

BRECON RD

LAMPETER

GDNS M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

BRECON

ROAD DELAFORD

TILTO
N

TOURNAY

ST. T
HOMAS'S W

AY

H
AR

TISM
ER

E

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

ROAD

RO
AD

ROAD

W
INCHENDO

N

M
IR

ABEL R
O

AD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

CHESILTO
N

RO
STREVO

R

FELD
EN

R
O

AD

RO
AD

M
EW

S

RO
AD

RADIPO
LE

LILYVILLE

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD

RD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

R
O

A
D

DARLAN

R
O

AD

R
O

AD
ST M

AUR
ROAD

C
LO

NM
EL

EPPLE

PLACE
BRIDGES

CROSS

ROAD

SHORROLDS

E RD

BURNTH

EPIRUS

RO
AD

R
YLSTO

NSTREET

ROAD

ST

ROAD

COOMER PL

HALDANE

COOMER

MEWS

KEMPSON

AVE
HARW

OOD

MOORE

MS
EPIRUS

FARM

CAMPANA

BAR
C

LAY

C
L

NOVELLO

SHOTTENDANE

DOWN

HARBLE

RD

RDELMS RD

PLACE

FIELD

HECK-ROAD

ROAD

PULTON

BARCLAY

CASSIDYROAD

VANSTON

PARTHENIA

ST

RD

RD

RD

FAV

ROAD

R
M

U
S

G

A
R

G
O

N

RD

M
S

EFFIE

PLACE

ANSELM

EUSTACE
RDARMADALE

HALFORD

ROAD

ROAD

RACTON

RD

KN
IVETT

RD

WALHAM

ROAD
ROAD

LANE

LANE

GROVE

FARM

RD

M
IC

KLETH
W

AITE

RD

AVALON R
D

HARW
OOD

HILARY

RD
TYRAW

LE
Y

BLA
KE

CRES

RD

GDS

BOROUGH

PETER-

VILL
AS

ROAD

WANSDOWN

W
ATER

FO
R

D

C
E

D
A

R
N

E

RD

PLACE

B
R

ITA
N

N
IA

PARK

LO
R

D

IMP

RO
W

ED

TER

MELD
ON

CHERYLS

CL

CLOSE

ROAD

WAY

BRITANNIA

R
O

AD

SQ
RIAL

E

ITH

RD

RUMBOLD RD

ROAD

WKLENODAN

W
ELL

M
A

X

HOLMEAD RD

CRESCENT

PARK

BROMPTON

BILLING RD

PL

ROAD

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVEN
U

E

ROAD

WILL
IAM

BURY

MS

WHEAT-

SHEAFTERR

PALACE
MEWS

CLARE

MWS

BROUGHTON

M
S

GRAN-

PLACE

LALOR S
T

EXETER

MEW
S

JOHN

AVENUE

INGRAMMARGARET

CLOSE

PL

LEN

H
U

G
H

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

C
L

G
A

ITS
K

E
LL

SW
AN

M
S

TC
E

BEAUFORT

MS

TELEPHONE

PL

LANFREY
PL

CHEESEMANS

ROAD

CL

CL
BELLAM

Y

STANIER

THAXTON

RO

ROAD

C
H

A

G
LED

STAN
ES CHARLEVILLE

CLUB

FAIRHOLME

R
O

AD

SPEN
C

ER
M

S
TASSO

R
D

KIN
N

O
U

L

GARDENS

Q
U

EEN
'S

C
LU

B

ST

M
U

SAR
D

ANDREW'S

QUEEN'S

GDS

RD

PERHAM

R
O

AD

CHESSON

RO
AD

RD

CHESSON

BRAMBER

RD
ARCHEL

N
O

R
M

AN
D

TURNE-

VILLE

RD

ROAD

TU
R

N
E

V
ILLE

RD

RD

ARCHEL

SQ
P

LA
C

E

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ST
FANE

MARCHBANK

FRANKLIN

A
V

E
N

U
E

CASTLETOWN

ROAD

ROAD
ROAD

COMERAGH
BARTON ROAD

VERNON

AVE
FITZ-

EDITH

R
O

A
D

P
A

LLIS
E

R
 R

O
A

D

BARON'S

AURIO
L

G
LID

D
O

N

ROAD

GUNTERSTONE

M
UNDEN

R
D

G
LA

Z
B

U
R

Y

COURT

GWENDWRR
D

VER
EKER

MS

AVEFITZJAMES

ROADTR
E

V
A

N
IO

N

ROAD

ROAD

C
H

ALLO
N

ER
ST

ROAD

C
R

CR

LL
O

N
E

R

B
E

A
U

M
O

N
T

MONT

BEAU

EDITH VILLAS

NOR

CRES
E

N
D

RDST
ONOR

STANWICK

AV

RD

MORNINGTON

ROAD

M
AT

HES
O

N
MUND ST

IV
A

T
T

AV

A
IS

G
ILL

CLO
SE

BECKFORD

REDCLIFFE SQ

CO
LEHERNE

F
 I N

 B
 O

 R

C
R

ES

O
NG

AR
PL

ROAD

RICKETT

HILDYARD

SEAG
R

AVE

YD
LILLIE

RDMERRINGTON

RD

RESS
E

M
P

-

ST

PLROXBY

IFIELD

REDCLIFFE SQ

TER
W

ESTGATE

U
 G

 H

M
S

O

RO
AD

REDCLIF
FE S

T

EARL'S

PENYW
ERN R

OAD

GARD

SQ

NEVERN

LONGRIDGE

ROAD

CLU
NY

PH
IL

NEVERN

NEVERN ROAD

TR
EBOVIR

 R
OAD

G
D

N
S

E
A

R
D

LE
Y

K
E

M

NEVERN SQ

NEVERN

SQ

SQ

CO
LEHERNE

EARL'S COURT SQ
COURT

M
S

KRAM
ER ST

WHARFEDALE

COM

M
EW

S

NORMAND

MS

ORCHARD

SQ

LANGTRY PL

TEM
PLETO

N PLACE

REDCLIFFE

CASS

PLAC
E

CL

MUNSTER CT

LANCAS

COURT
ACCESS

ROAD

FR
EEM

AN

SMITH

S
H

U
TE

R
S SQ

VINE

SQ

S
U

N

RD

INGTON

HALLGDS

KENS-

DIEPPE

C
LO

SE

MAY ST

AISGILL

AV

SQ

FA
RNELL

MS

RO
AD

VERNON

PARSONS

IDY ROAD

TER

G
IRO

ND

SALIS-

TH

BE

TONE

ACH
ENS

TERRACE

P
S

F
O

R
D

RD

AD

TEAD

HESTER

PURSERS

MANS

ART

CRES

SOTHERON

GREEN

FENELO
N

PL

MEWS

NEVERN
PLACE

SQUARE

EARL'S
C

O
U

R
T

RO
AD

SQ

COOMER

ROAD

R
D

S
U

N
R

D

SUN

MAY

ST

JOHN'S

WALHAM

YARD

EFFIE
CLOSE

GEORGE

CROWTHER

CLOSE

EM
PRESS

APPROACH

HARWOOD

MEWS

LE
R

R
Y

 C
L

MUNSTER

MEW
S

TERR

W
A

LH
A

M
 G

R
E

E
N

C
O

U
R

T

RO
DA

CASTLE CLOSE

BARBARA

RD
JERVIS

DAIRY CL

ERIN CL

BEACONSFIELD W
K

WYFOLD

STER

MUN

PAR
SO

N
S

H
O

M
ESTEAD

KELVE
DON

RD

BAGLEY'S

F U

R O

R
O

A
D

RO
AD

K I N
 G ' S

W
A

N
D

S
W

O
R

TH

R O
 A 

D

DAWES

M
U

N
S

F U L H
 A M

K I N
 G

 ' S

ROAD

STAR

R O A D

END

R
O

AD

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

E
N

D

OLD
BROMPTON

WEST CROMWELL ROAD

W A R W I C K

R O A D

ROAD

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

EN
D

A MT
E

R

A 
D

L H

ROAD

G
R

EEN

ROAD

B
R

ID
G

E

Estate
Clem Attlee

Green
Estate

Burne Jones
House

Gibbs

Chelsea

Ground
Football

Earls Court
Exhibition
Building

Empress

Building

Fulham
Pools

State

LANE

R 
O

 A
 D

CLOSE

DURRELL

DO
RNCLIFFE

G
R

E
E

N
LA

N
E

SANDILA
NDS

RD

RSCROFT

PEA-

BISHOP'S

PELLAN
T

ROAD

OP'S

ROAD

BIS
H

ROAD

JERDAN

BROADWAY

FULHAM

RD

MICHAEL
EM

DE
N

SANDS END LANE

BILL
IN

G

R
'S ALLEY

R O A D

DAWES

L I L L I E

ROAD

R O A D

ROAD

ROAD

WELL

HOUND
GREY

ROAD

L I L L I E

ROAD

WEST CROM

R O A D

PL

G
O

ATE

P
A

R
S

O
N

S

NORFOLK

DAWES

R
O

A
D

ROAD
TALGARTH

Dwg. No. 40500/2/13
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

FULHAM BROADWAY WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 56



T

Fulham
Broadway

Putney
Bridge

Parsons
Green

Fulham

Hall
Town

Dist
ric

t L
ine

REV
OR

R
O

ST-

SQ
MARRYAT

F
U

LH
A

M

PETERBOROUGH

GDS

ST

ST M
ARKS C

L

ACKMAR R
D

ELTHIRON RD

BASUTO

W
HITTINGSTALL

VERA RO
ADGOWAN

ROAD

R
O

AD

ROAD

LIN
V

E
R

ROAD

FU
LH

AM

RD

CLO
SE

STE
EPLE

ST
H

IG
H

WILLOWBANK

GATE

CHURCH

ST
VILLE
GON-

RANELAGH

A
P

P
R

STATION

W
ALDEM

AR

EDGARLEY

TER

AVENUE

COLEHILL

GDNS

KIM
BELL G

S

FIRTH G
S

CO
LE

HI
LL

RIG
AULT

BU
R

LIN
G

TO
N

BUER

RO
AD

PLA
CE

BURLIN
GTON

COMBE
RINGMERBURNFOOT

O
XBERRY

HORDER

RD

A
V

GARDENS

GDNS

HURLINGHAM

E
D

E
N

H
U

R
S

T

N
A

P
IE

RR
A

N
E

LA
G

H

CROOKHAM ROAD

M
IM

OSA STREET

LE
TT

IC
E

LAUREL

R
D

LANDRIDGE

FU
LH

AM

GD

G
RIM

ELYSIUM

R
D

RD

RD

PARK

FO
S

K
E

TT

EW
A

D
O

LB
Y

A
V

R
D

A
V

E
N

U
E

PK
 R

D

STR
EET

N
S

DANCER ROAD

BETTRIDGE

C
O

R
TA

Y
N

E

ASHINGTON

R
O

AD
C

R
ISTO

W
E

BANK

RD R
O

A
D

A
LD

E
R

V
ILLE

ROAD

R
D

HEATH

E
D

D
IS

C
O

M
B

E

DIONIS

R
D

ST

ROAD

STREET

DORIA

G
U

IO
N

 R
D

ROAD

PERRYM
STR

EET

CT

DAIS
Y

SULI

LANE

FORD
M

OLES-

P
E

TE
R

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
N

IG
ER

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

IRENE

DELV
IN

O

RD

D
IN

G
STO

N
E

ST

STUDDRIDGE

R
O

AD

ST

ST

Q
U

AR
R

EN
D

O
N

BR
AD

BO
U

R
N

E
CHID

CRONDACEROAD

RD

CHIPS

RO
AD

EAD

CLOSE

WAITE

ROAD

SWIFT ST

FI
LM

ER

FERNHURST ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

CHALDON

AINTREE
ROADHANNELL

ROAD

S
ID

B
U

R
Y

 S
T

WARDO

DANEHURST

ALLESTREE ROAD
ROWALLAN ROAD

ROADMABLETHORPEBRONSART ROAD

ROAD
KILMAINE ROAD

ROAD

REPORTON

AVENUE

AVENUE

STREET

LANE

ROAD

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

ROSALINE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD

R
O

AD

BEDFORD PS

ROAD DELAFORD

TOURNAY

ST. T
HOMAS'S W

AY

H
AR

TISM
ER

E

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

ROAD

RO
AD

ROAD

W
INCHENDO

N

M
IR

ABEL R
O

AD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

CHESILTO
N

RO
STREVO

R

FELD
EN

R
O

AD

RO
AD

M
EW

S

RO
AD

RADIPO
LE

LILYVILLE

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD

RD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

R
O

A
D

DARLAN

R
O

AD

R
O

AD
ST M

AUR
ROAD

C
LO

NM
EL

EPPLE

PLACE
BRIDGES

CROSS

ROAD

SHORROLDS

E RD

BURNTH

EPIRUS

RO
AD

ROAD

ROAD
HALDANE

KEMPSON

AVE
HARW

OOD

MOORE

MS
EPIRUS

FARM

CAMPANA

BAR
C

LAY

C
L

NOVELLO

SHOTTENDANE

DOWN

HARBLE

RD

RDELMS RD

PLACE

FIELD

HECK-ROAD

ROAD

PULTON

BARCLAY

CASSIDYROAD

VANSTON

PARTHENIA

ST

RD

RD

RD

FAV

ROAD

R
M

U
S

G

A
R

G
O

N

RD

M
S

EFFIE

PLACE

EUSTACE
RDARMADALE

ROAD

RD

RD

WALHAM

LANE

LANE

GROVE

BLA
KE

CRES

RD

WANSDOWN

C
E

D
A

R
N

E

RD

ROAD

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVEN
U

E

AVE

ROAD

HURLINGHAM

WILL
IAM

BURY

MS

WHEAT-

SHEAFTERR

PALACE
MEWS

M
U

ST
O

W

ST

ELY
SIU

M
 P

L

MELBRAY

MS

LALOR S
T

EXETER

MEW
S

JOHN

AVENUE

INGRAM

CLOSE

PL

SW
AN

M
S

S
U

LIV
A

N

C
T

P
L

CASS

PLAC
E

MUNSTER CT

LANCAS

COURT
ACCESS

ROAD

FR
EEM

AN

SMITH

PARSONS

IDY ROAD

TER

G
IRO

ND

SALIS-

TONE

LD
 R

D

STO
N

TEAD

HESTER

PURSERS

MANS

ART

VAN

GREEN

JOHN'S

WALHAM

YARD

EFFIE
CLOSE HARWOOD

MEWS

MUNSTER

MEW
S

RO
DA

CROWN YD

DAIRY CL

ERIN CL

MEWSBOROUGH

BEACONSFIELD W
K

PETER-

WYFOLD

MEWSGATEPARSONS

BR
ID

GE

STER

MUN

R
O

AD

PAR
SO

N
S

H
O

M
ESTEAD

KELVE
DON

RD

R O

R
O

A
D

K 
I N

 G
 'S

PU
TN

EY

BR
ID

GE

PU
TN

EY

AP
PR

OAC
H

FULH
AM

RO
AD

N E W
K I N

 G ' S

R O
 A 

D

DAWES

M
U

N
S

F U L H
 A M

R
O

A
D

EN
D

T
E

R

A 
D

ROAD

G
R

EEN

ROAD

SwanWharf Willowbank
Wharf Carrara

RO
AD

CLOSE

ROAD

DURRELL

DO
RNCLIFFE

HURLINGHAM

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

G
R

E
E

N
LA

N
E

CLANCARTY

BISHOP'S

PELLAN
T

OP'S

ROAD

BIS
H

ROAD

JERDAN

BROADWAY

FULHAM

RD

R
'S ALLEY

STREET

N E W

R O A D

FULHAM
HIGH

R O A D

DAWES

ROAD
ROAD PL

G
O

ATE

BELL'S AL

P
A

R
S

O
N

S

DAWES

Dwg. No. 17621/5/14
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

TOWN WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 57



T

E 
S

T 
H

A 
M

E R

Fulham
Broadway

Putney
Bridge

Parsons
Green

Imperial
Wharf

West
Brompton

Fulham

Hall
Town

N
ational R

ail

Dist
ric

t L
ine

REV
OR

R
O

ST-

C
H

ESTN
U

T

ALLEY

SEDLESCOMBE

R
O

AD

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E

TAM
W

O
R

TH
 ST

ROAD

RO
AD

R
O

AD

R
 O

 A
 D

FU
LH

A
M

SETTRINGTON

PLA

CL
TH

O
R

N
D

IKE

R
O

AD

PETERBOROUGH

P
A

R
K

GDS

VILLE

R
O

BER
TS

ST

M
EW

S
SO

U
TH

ST M
ARKS C

L

ROAD

ROAD

ALTHEA ST

STMEAD

CAMBRIA

W
ANDON RD

FORD

ACKMAR R
D

ELTHIRON RD

BASUTO

W
HITTINGSTALL

RO
AD

ROAD

R
O

AD

ROAD

LIN
V

E
R

ROAD

FU
LH

AM

RD

ST
H

IG
H

WILLOWBANK

GATE

ST
VILLE
GON-

RANELAGH

A
P

P
R

STATION

RIG
AULT

BU
R

LIN
G

TO
N

BUER

RO
AD

PLA
CE

BURLIN
GTON

COMBE
RINGMERBURNFOOT

HORDER

RD

A
V

GARDENS

GDNS

HURLINGHAM

E
D

E
N

H
U

R
S

T

N
A

P
IE

RR
A

N
E

LA
G

H

CROOKHAM ROAD

M
IM

OSA STREET

LE
TT

IC
E

LAUREL

R
D

LANDRIDGE

FU
LH

AM

GD

G
RIM

ELYSIUM

R
D

RD

RD

PARK

FO
S

K
E

TT

EW
A

D
O

LB
Y

A
V

R
D

A
V

E
N

U
E

PK
 R

D

STR
EET

N
S

DANCER ROAD

BETTRIDGE

C
O

R
TA

Y
N

E

ASHINGTON

R
O

AD
C

R
ISTO

W
E

BANK

RD R
O

A
D

A
LD

E
R

V
ILLE

ROAD

R
D

HEATH

E
D

D
IS

C
O

M
B

E

DIONIS

R
D

ST

ROAD

STREET

DORIA

G
U

IO
N

 R
D

ROAD

PERRYM
STR

EET

CT

DAIS
Y

SULI

SULIVAN

CARNWATH

LANE

FORD
M

OLES-

P
E

TE
R

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
N

IG
ER

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

IRENE

DELV
IN

O

RD

D
IN

G
STO

N
E

ST

STUDDRIDGE

R
O

AD

ST

ST

Q
U

AR
R

EN
D

O
N

BR
AD

BO
U

R
N

E
CHID

CRONDACEROAD

RD

CHIPS

RO
AD

RD

ROSEBURY
STE

PHENDALE

WOOLNEIGH

HUGON

SQPHILPOT

RO
AD

DYM
O

CK

ST

BR
EER

STR
EET

STR
EET

ROAD

ROAD

DE
M

ORGAN RD

HAMBLE

HAZLEBURY

IN
GDON

BELTRAN

STASHCOMBE

STNARBOROUGH

ST
FRISTON

RD

RCH

RYECROFT

STREET

B
O

W
E

R
D

E
A

N
 S

T

EAD

STR
EET

S
TO

K
E

N

ST

CHU

ST

BOV

R
D

A
C

FO
LD

RD

BROU

RDSNOW
BURY

KBURY R
D

C
R

A
N

B
U

R
Y

R
D

OA

ROAD

FU
R

N
E

S
S

GILSTEAD

PEARSCROFT

RD

COURT

RD

CLOSE

WAITE

ROAD

SWIFT ST

FI
LM

ER

FERNHURST ROAD

ST

PETER'S

ESTCOURTPROTHEROMENDORA

KILMAINE ROAD

ROAD

REPORTON

LANE

ROAD

ST
OLAF'S

STREET

ORBAIN
SHERBROOKE

VAR
N

A

ROAD
ROAD

ROAD

R
O

AD

BEDFORD PS

M
O

YLAN
 R

O
AD

ROAD

DELAFORD

TILTO
N

TOURNAY

ST. T
HOMAS'S W

AY

H
AR

TISM
ER

E

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

ROAD

RO
AD

ROAD

W
INCHENDO

N

M
IR

ABEL R
O

AD

B
LO

O
M

 P
A

R
K

TER
MARVILLE

CHESILTO
N

RO
STREVO

R

FELD
EN

R
O

AD

RO
AD

M
EW

S

RO
AD

RADIPO
LE

LILYVILLE

BROOKVILLEROSAVILLE

PARKVILLE

ROAD

LETTER-

STONE

R
O

AD

RD

R
O

A
D

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

R
O

A
D

DARLAN

R
O

AD

R
O

AD
ST M

AUR
ROAD

C
LO

NM
EL

EPPLE

PLACE
BRIDGES

CROSS

ROAD

SHORROLDS

E RD

BURNTH

EPIRUS

RO
AD

R
YLSTO

NSTREET

ROAD

ST

ROAD

COOMER PL

HALDANE

COOMER

MEWS

KEMPSON

AVE
HARW

OOD

MOORE

MS
EPIRUS

FARM

CAMPANA

BAR
C

LAY

C
L

NOVELLO

SHOTTENDANE

DOWN

HARBLE

RD

RDELMS RD

PLACE

FIELD

HECK-ROAD

ROAD

PULTON

BARCLAY

CASSIDYROAD

VANSTON

PARTHENIA

ST

RD

RD

RD

FAV

ROAD

R
M

U
S

G

A
R

G
O

N
RD

M
S

EFFIE

PLACE

ANSELM

EUSTACE
RDARMADALE

HALFORD

ROAD

ROAD

RACTON

RD

KN
IVETT

RD

WALHAM

ROAD
ROAD

LANE

LANE

GROVE

FARM

RD

M
IC

KLETH
W

AITE

STR
EET

BILL
IN

G

RD

AVALON R
D

HARW
OOD

HILARY

RD
TYRAW

LE
Y

BLA
KE

CRES

RD

GDS

BOROUGH

PETER-

VILL
AS

ROAD

WANSDOWN
W

ATER
FO

R
D

C
E

D
A

R
N

E

RD
PLACE

B
R

ITA
N

N
IA

PARK

LO
R

D

IMP

RO
W

ED

TER

MELD
ON

CHERYLS

CL

CLOSE

ROAD

WAY

BRITANNIA

R
O

AD

SQ
RIAL

E

ST

ITH

ST

RD

RUMBOLD RD

ROAD

WKLENODAN

W
ELL

M
A

X

HOLMEAD RD

CRESCENT

PARK

BROMPTON

BILLING RD

PL

M
O

R
R

IS

EDENVALE ST

WILLIAM

ST

CHARLOW

CL

LANE

WATERMEADOW

PO
TT

ER
S

STEPHENDALE

LINDROP ST

ST

Q
U

E
R

R
IN

BYAM

GLENROSA ST

R
O

A
D

K
IL

RD

ST

ST

TYNEMOUTH ST

ELBE

R
O

A
D

RD

ST

EL
SW

IC
K

M
AL

TI
NG

S

STREET

R
O

AD
W

AY

G
RO

VE
U

PC
ER

N
E

TETC
O

TTST

ST
FORD

SAND-

REW
ELL

TETC
O

TT
RD

R
O

AD
R

O
AD

BURNABY

U
VER

D
ALE

FERNSHAW

HO
RTENSIA

G
UNTER

EDITH TER

RD
EDITH

HARBO
UR

CHELSEA

M
AYNARD C

L

ROAD

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVENUE

AVEN
U

E

ROAD

HURLINGHAM

SQUARE

BURY

MS

WHEAT-

SHEAFTERR

PALACE
MEWS

CLARE

MWS

BROUGHTON

RD APPROACH

M
U

ST
O

W

ST

ELY
SIU

M
 P

L

M
S

GRAN-

PLACE

MELBRAY

MS

EXETER

MEW
S

JOHN

AVENUE

INGRAMMARGARET

CLOSE

PL

LEN

H
U

G
H

DALTON

AVE

HUGH

C
L

G
A

ITS
K

E
LL

SW
AN

M
S

BEAUFORT

MS

TELEPHONE

PL

ROAD

THAXTON

RO

CLUB

R
O

AD

GARDENS

Q
U

EEN
'S

C
LU

B

ST

ANDREW'S

QUEEN'S

GDS

RD

PERHAM

R
O

AD

CHESSON

RO
AD

RD

CHESSON

BRAMBER

RD
ARCHEL

N
O

R
M

AN
D

TURNE-

VILLE

RD

TU
R

N
E

V
ILLE

RD

RD

ARCHEL

SQ

ROAD

ROAD

ROAD

ST
FANE

MARCHBANK

A
V

E
N

U
E

F
 I N

 B
 O

 R

O
NG

AR
PL

ROAD

RICKETT

HILDYARD

SEAG
R

AVE

YD
LILLIE

RDMERRINGTON

RD

RESS
E

M
P

-

ST

PLROXBY

IFIELD

REDCLIFFE SQ

TER
W

ESTGATE

U
 G

 H

M
S

O

REDCLIF
FE S

T

NORMAND

MS

ORCHARD

SQ

LANGTRY PL

REDCLIFFE

GARDENS

CATHCART R
D

FAW
CETT S

T

REDCLIF
FE

PL

S
U

LIV
A

N

C
T

P
L

CASS

PLAC
E

CL

MUNSTER CT

LANCAS

COURT
ACCESS

ROAD

BURFORD W
K

FR
EEM

AN

SMITH

S
H

U
TE

R
S

S
U

N

PARSONS

IDY ROAD

TER

G
IRO

ND

SALIS-

TONE

KIE

GHTON

LD
 R

D

STO
N

RD

AD

TEAD

HESTER

PURSERS

MANS

ART

VAN

CRES

CE

FU
L-

SOTHERON

PL

GREEN

COOMER

ROAD

R
D

MAY

ST

JOHN'S

WALHAM

YARD

ST MARKS
GROVE

REDCLIFFE MEWS

EFFIE
CLOSE

MARINEFIELD

MALTINGS PL

CROWTHER

CLOSE

EM
PRESS

APPROACH

GURNEYRD

HARWOOD

MEWS

IMPERIAL

CRESCENT

LE
R

R
Y

 C
L

W
A

LH
A

M
 G

R
E

E
N

C
O

U
R

T

RO
DA

CASTLE CLOSE

BARBARA

RD
JERVIS

THE

LE
N

SB
U

R
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

MILLSYARD

CROWN YD

DAIRY CL

ERIN CL

MEWSBOROUGH

BEACONSFIELD W
K

P
A

R
K

 S
T

PETER-

MEWSGATEPARSONS

BR
ID

GE

STER

MUN

R
O

AD

PAR
SO

N
S

H
O

M
ESTEAD

KELVE
DON

RD

BAGLEY'S

LANE

BR
ID

G
E

W
AN

D
SW

O
R

TH

F U

R O

K 
I N

 G
 'S

AP
PR

OAC
H

FULH
AM

RO
AD

N E W
K I N

 G ' S

R
O

A
D

TOWNMEAD

B
R

ID
G

E

W
A

N
D

S
W

O
R

TH

R O
 A 

D

F U L H
 A M

K I N
 G

 ' S

R
O

AD

TO
W

N
M

E
A

D
R

O
A

D

R O

LO
TS

R
O

AD
ROAD

STAR

R
O

A
D

N
O

R
TH

R
O

A
D

EN
D

A M

A 
D

A D

L H

ROAD

G
R

EEN

B
R

ID
G

E

W
A

N
D

S
W

O
R

TH
B

R
ID

G
E

BAGLEY'S

R D

Royal Borough of
Kensington & Chelsea

Estate
Clem Attlee

Willowbank
Wharf

F
o

o
tb

ri
d

g
e

CarraraBank Wharf

Chelsea

Ground
Football

Empress

Building

Sulivan
Enterprise Centre

Fulham
Pools

State

BAG

LANE

RO
AD

R 
O

 A
 D

CLOSE

RD

ROAD

DURRELL

DO
RNCLIFFE

HURLINGHAM

LA
N

E

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

G
R

E
E

N
LA

N
E

CLANCARTY

SANDILA
NDS

ROAD

RD

RSCROFT

PEA-

BISHOP'S

PELLAN
T

ROAD

OP'S

ROAD

BIS
H

ROAD

JERDAN

BROADWAY

FULHAM

RD

MICHAEL

EM
DE

N

SANDS END LANE

BILL
IN

G

GWYN
CLOSE

R
'S ALLEY

STREET

N E W

FULHAM
HIGH

R O A D

DAWES

L I L L I E

ROAD

R O A D

ROAD

IMPERIAL

ROAD

L I L L I E

R O A D

PL

G
O

ATE

LEY'S

BELL'S AL

P
A

R
S

O
N

S

DAWES

R
O

A
D

LANE

Dwg. No. 40500/2/15
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

PARSONS GREEN & WALHAM WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 58



T

E 
S

T 
H

A 
M

E RR I V

B
A
T
T
E
R
S
E
A

R
E
A
C
H

R
IV

E
R

W
A

N
D

LE

Chelsea
Harbour

Fulham
Broadway

Parsons
Green

Imperial
Wharf

Fulham

Hall
Town

National Rail

N
ational R

ail

Dist
ric

t L
ine

N
O

R
TH

FI
E

LD
S

P
O

IN
T

CRESCENT

V
IC

A
R

A
G

E

GWYNNE

HOLMAN RD

LO
M

B
A

R
D

R
O

A
D

ROAD

Y
O

R
K

B
R

ID
G

E
S

C
O

U
R

T

HOLGATE AVE

CLOSE

W
AL

LI
S

ST

HIBBERT

HO
PE

STREET

YORK

PLACE

PL
AC

E

YO
RK

WAY

G
AR

TO
NS

CHATFIELD RD
MENDIP

RD

ROAD W
YNTER

STREET

USK
ROAD

CLOSE

NANTES

SETTRINGTON

PLA

ST

CL
TH

O
R

N
D

IKE

R
O

AD

PETERBOROUGH

P
A

R
K

VILLE

R
O

BER
TS

ST

M
EW

S
SO

U
TH

ST M
ARKS C

L

ROAD

ROAD

ALTHEA ST

STMEAD

CAMBRIA

W
ANDON RD

FORD

ACKMAR R
D

ELTHIRON RD

BASUTO

ROAD

R
O

AD

ROAD

LIN
V

E
R

ROAD

PERRYM
STR

EET

CT

DAIS
Y

SULI

SULIVAN

CARNWATH

LA
NE

FORD
M

OLES-

P
E

TE
R

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
C

O
N

IG
ER

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

IRENE

DELV
IN

O

RD

D
IN

G
STO

N
E

ST

STUDDRIDGE

R
O

AD

ST

ST

Q
U

AR
R

EN
D

O
N

BR
AD

BO
U

R
N

E
CHID

CRONDACEROAD

RD

CHIPS

RO
AD

RD

ROSEBURY
STE

PHENDALE

WOOLNEIGH

HUGON

SQPHILPOT

RO
AD

DYM
O

CK

ST

BR
EER

STR
EET

STR
EET

ROAD

ROAD

DE
M

ORGAN RD

HAMBLE

HAZLEBURY

IN
GDON

BELTRAN

STASHCOMBE

STNARBOROUGH

ST
FRISTON

RD

RCH

RYECROFT

STREET

B
O

W
E

R
D

E
A

N
 S

T

EAD

STR
EET

S
TO

K
E

N

ST

CHU

ST

BOV

R
D

A
C

FO
LD

RD

BROU

RDSNOW
BURY

KBURY R
D

C
R

A
N

B
U

R
Y

R
D

OA

ROAD

FU
R

N
E

S
S

GILSTEAD

PEARSCROFT

RD

COURT

RD

CLOSE

KEMPSON

AVE
HARW

OOD

MOORE

MS
EPIRUS

FARM

CAMPANA

BAR
C

LAY

C
L

NOVELLO

SHOTTENDANE

DOWN

HARBLE

RD

RDELMS RD

PLACE

FIELD

HECK-ROAD

ROAD

PULTON

BARCLAY

CASSIDYROAD

VANSTON

PARTHENIA

ST

RD

RD

RD

FAV

ROAD

R
M

U
S

G

A
R

G
O

N

RD

M
S

EFFIE

PLACE

EUSTACE

ROAD
WALHAM

LANE

STR
EET

BILL
IN

G

RD

AVALON R
D

HARW
OOD

HILARY

RD
TYRAW

LE
Y

BLA
KE

CRES

RD
GDS

BOROUGH

PETER-

VILL
AS

ROAD

WANSDOWN

W
ATER

FO
R

D

C
E

D
A

R
N

E

RD

PLACE

B
R

ITA
N

N
IA

PARK

LO
R

D

IMP

RO
W

ED

TER

MELD
ON

CHERYLS

CL

CLOSE

ROAD

WAY

BRITANNIA

R
O

AD

SQ
RIAL

E

ST

ITH

ST

RD

RUMBOLD RD

ROAD

WKLENODAN

W
ELL

M
A

X

HOLMEAD RD

BILLING RD

PL

M
O

R
R

IS

EDENVALE ST

WILLIAM

ST

CHARLOW

CL

LANE

WATERMEADOW

PO
TT

ER
S

STEPHENDALE

LINDROP ST

ST

Q
U

E
R

R
IN

BYAM

GLENROSA ST

R
O

A
D

K
IL

RD

ST

ST

TYNEMOUTH ST

ELBE

R
O

A
D

RD

ST

EL
SW

IC
K

M
AL

TI
NG

S

STREET

R
O

AD
W

AY

Pier

Chelsea

Harbour

G
RO

VE

ASHBURNHAM

STADIU
M

G
RO

VE
U

PC
ER

N
E

TETC
O

TTST

ST
FORD

SAND-

REW
ELL

TETC
O

TT
RD

R
O

AD
LOTS

Chelsea
R

O
AD

BURNABY

U
VER

D
ALE

TAD
EM

A
R

O
AD

RD

TERDAMER

HO
RTENSIA

RD

Wharf
Chelsea

Creek

Wharf

ROAD

CREMORNE RD

RD

ST

Cremorne
AVENUE

HARBO
UR

HARBOUR DR

CHELSEA

SQUARE

ADMIRAL

THAMES AVE

YORK

ELTRINGHAM

PETERGATE

MARL R
D

SMUGGLERS WAY

M
AYNARD C

L

JE
W

S
ROW

ROAD

HURLINGHAM

SQUARE

MEWS

CLARE

MWS

BROUGHTON

RD APPROACH

M
S

GRAN-

PLACE

EXETER

MEW
S

SW
AN

M
S

BLA
ST

ST

S
U

LIV
A

N

C
T

CASS

PLAC
E

CL

COURT
ACCESS

ROAD

BURFORD W
K

PARSONS

IDY ROAD

TER

TONE

KIE

GHTON

TEAD

NT
YR

E

ART

VAN

CRES

CE

FU
L-

SOTHERON

PL

GREEN

JOHN'S

WALHAM

YARD

EFFIE
CLOSE

MARINEFIELD

MALTINGS PL

TERRACE

PIER

N
E

W
C

O
M

E
N

 R
D

P
LO

U
G

H
 R

O
A

D

GURNEYRD

HARWOOD

MEWS

IMPERIAL

CRESCENT

W
A

LH
A

M
 G

R
E

E
N

C
O

U
R

T

RO
DA

THE

LE
N

SB
U

R
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

BOULEVARD
MILLSYARD

CROWN YD

DAIRY CL

ERIN CL

MEWSBOROUGH

P
A

R
K

 S
T

PETER-

MEWSGATEPARSONS

PAR
SO

N
S BAGLEY'S

LANE

WAY

BR
ID

G
E

W
AN

D
SW

O
R

TH

F U

R O

N E W
K I N

 G ' S
R

O
A

D

TOWNMEAD

B
R

ID
G

E

W
A

N
D

S
W

O
R

TH

R O
 A 

D

K I N
 G

 ' S

R
O

AD

TO
W

N
M

E
A

D
R

O
A

D

R O

LO
TS

R
O

AD

CHEYNE

BR
ID

G
EN

D
R

O
AD

R
O

A
D

A M

A 
D

W
ALK

A D

L H

G
R

EEN

B
R

ID
G

E

W
A

N
D

S
W

O
R

TH
B

R
ID

G
E

BAGLEY'S

R D

Chelsea

Ground
Football

Sulivan
Enterprise Centre

BAG

LANE

RO
AD

R 
O

 A
 D

RD

ROAD

LA
N

E

B
R

O
O

M
H

O
U

S
E

G
R

E
E

N
LA

N
E

CLANCARTY

SANDILA
NDS

ROAD

RD

RSCROFT

PEA-

JERDAN

BROADWAY

FULHAM

RD

MICHAEL

EM
DE

N

SANDS END LANE

BILL
IN

G

GWYN
CLOSE

DAWES
ROAD

IMPERIAL

ROAD

PL

LEY'S

BELL'S AL

P
A

R
S

O
N

S

R
O

A
D

LANE

Dwg. No. 40500/2/16
NOT TO SCALE

Crown copyright and database rights©
2021 OS Licence No. LA100019223

SANDS END WARD

Major Refurbishment

Door Entry

LED Lighting

Fire safety

Warden Call

Lift

Communal Heating

Project

Approval

Complete

On Site

Planned

KEY
Status

Housing Works - September 2021

DRAFT & U
NCHECKED 01

/10
/20

21

Blue

Orange

Green

Red

Page 59


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Resident Involvement Update
	6 Update on the Council’s delivery of Affordable Homes
	7 Fire safety housing
	40500_2_1
	40500_2_2
	40500_2_3
	40500_2_4
	40500_2_5
	40500_2_6
	40500_2_7
	40500_2_8
	40500_2_9
	40500_2_10
	40500_2_11
	40500_2_12
	40500_2_13
	40500_2_14
	40500_2_15
	40500_2_16


